2021
R

ANNUAL REPORT
GOLDEN SOL AR

Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings Limited

SallZE s i =] e YN

(Incorporated in the Cayman islands with limited liability)

(RS SEMMIIFERAE)

Overseas / /84h

Quanzhou factory / RN TR

Fujian factory / @2 T

[

Xuzhou factory / #/N Tk

www.goldensolargroup.com
Stock Code:1121

i8R 1121



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (re-designated from the Vice-chairman
to the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

on 26 February 2021)
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong

Dr. XU Zhi (appointed as Chief Technology Officer

on 26 February 2021)

Non-Executive Director
Ms. LIN Weihuan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. AN Na
Mr. CHEN Shaohua
Professor ZHAO Jinbao

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. CHEN Shaohua (Chairperson)
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Ms. AN Na

Remuneration Committee

Ms. AN Na (Chairperson)
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

Nomination Committee

Professor ZHAO Jinbao (Chairperson)
Mr. CHEN Shaohua
Ms. AN Na

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. IP Pui Sum

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong

STOCK CODE
01121

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.goldensolargroup.com

Corporate Information

ANCR=§

BEEE

HITES

PEmesE(R—E-—F—- A =-+,50
HETFEATATIRFITHRER)

BSR4
FEELt (R-E-—F=-A=+/,1H
EZEAEREME)

FHITES
MEBLZ L

BYFATES
£ Bgun
RAOERE

e R

BEEZET
EREES

BRAOERE (XF)
HE REIR
i+

FHEaR
EHLL ()
B RAE
PR S

REZES
HEREE (EF)
RAERE

£ Bgu
REME
E o e
RERR

RFHEE
BRREE

R 131X 5%

01121

NGNS

www.goldensolargroup.com

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE

1

N

A



Corporate Information

NCTR=§

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Huoju Industrial Zone
Jiangnan Town
Licheng District
Quanzhou City
Fujian Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 504, 5/F
OfficePlus @Sheung Wan
93-103 Wing Lok Street
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P. O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Confucius International CPA Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank
HSBC
Industrial Bank

o [ 48 &R

[
B4
RN
29 [

T 3R
NIET ¥R

EREITRERME
0

FR

K 44593-103%%
BATT IR
SIE504%

AMREE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

FENREIEROBFETRE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A
Block 3, Building D

P. O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

ERRFERLE
BEBSETLAR AT
BB

EFRNER1839

A A L5412

= BLEm

REBERemEEMERAA

FEERRT
oh B 12 R 4R 1T

[ & R 1T
B 4R 1T

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2021



Corporate Information

Five-Year Financial Summary

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Biographical Details of Directors

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R HE@RkERRS
EXEEHB
EFEWmE

B Z AR

meEBmkEMEmkEE

REMBARK

A mARNE

Content

B &%

19
37
60
64
79

89

90
92
93

95

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE




4

Five-Year Financial Summary

T EHMBEBRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-_A=1t—HILFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“B--f ZZT-TF T-NF ZT-N\F ZT—+F
Profitability data BRELHE
(RMB million) (AR®EETR)
Revenue Yz 313.5 111.9 169.7 164.5 125.5
Gross profit ES ] 88.5 18.0 30.1 39.5 28.5
Profit/(loss) for the year ENME/(EE) 9.2 (108.8) (314.4) (275.3) (435.4)
Profitability ratios (%) BFIEE N E(%)
Gross profit margin EF= 28.2% 16.1% 17.7% 24.0% 22.7%
Net profit/(loss) margin FAE/ (BB % 2.9% (97.2)% (185.3)% (167.4)% (346.9)%
Assets and liabilities data EERAEEE
(RMB million) (AR¥BER)
Non-current assets FRBEE 160.9 92.8 153.9 4419 705.3
Current assets MEEE 415.8 102.8 120.5 128.8 110.4
Current liabilities nEEE 268.5 234.9 2233 251.9 294.1
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 234 5.6 3.1 4.8 108.2
Shareholders' equity RRER 284.8 (44.9) 48.0 3139 4134
Asset and working BEREELES
capital data g5
Current asset ratios (%) MEEELLE(%) 72.1% 52.5% 43.9% 22.6% 13.5%
Current ratios (time) MEILL & () 1.5x 0.4x 0.5x 0.5x 0.4x
Gearing ratios (%) B2 (%) 100.2% (523.8)% 466.4% 80.9% 96.0%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings
Limited (“"Golden Solar” or the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the financial report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

2021 was both a challenging and promising year to the Group.
During the year, the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") epidemic
still had a serious impact on Southeast Asia and India, the
severity of the domestic epidemic and the economy in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") had recovered substantially.
Customers of the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM")
business had transferred their original orders from Southeast
Asia and Indian manufacturers to the Group, resulting in an
increase in revenue of OEM business this year. Besides, the
Group successfully utilised casting technology to produce cast
monocrystalline silicon (“Cast-mono”) wafers, which was then
used to manufacture Cast-mono heterojunction (“HJT") solar
cells with an energy conversion efficiency exceeding 24.0%
in 2020. During 2021, the Group has received and completed
the first procurement order for photovoltaic modules based
on our Cast-mono HJT solar cells. The first production facility
of our Cast-mono wafers in Xuzhou has successfully entered
the commercial production stage during the year, bringing a
new source of income to the Group. The revenue of the Group
increased substantially by approximately RMB201.6 million
or 180.2% to approximately RMB313.5 million and the gross
profit of the Group during the year also increased substantially
to approximately RMB88.5 million, being approximately 5
times of gross profit of 2020. Besides, the Group successfully
turned from net loss of approximately RMB108.8 million of
2020 to net profit of approximately RMB9.2 million in 2021.

Looking ahead to 2022, the global outbreak of the COVID-19
epidemic is expected to continue to have a negative impact on
the global retail market. However, the overseas retail market is
expected to return to growth as many countries started to ease
the restrictive measures and the Group expects a mild increase
in the revenue of OEM business. The Group successfully
transformed from a traditional manufacturer to a renewable
energy technology company within 2021 as scheduled, and
achieved the target of investment, mass production, delivery
and realised profit in the same year. The full production
capacity of the Cast-mono wafers production base of the
Group reached approximately 300 million pieces per year. The
unmodified casting silicon furnaces are scheduled to complete
modification in 2022 and depending on market demands, the
Group will further expand its production capacity.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRES

Besides continuous production of Cast-mono wafers to fulfil
orders from existing and potential customers, we also expect
to establish proprietary production of Cast-mono HIT solar
cells and Cast-mono HJT solar modules. As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2021, we
will establish a project company with Shangyi County Chahar
Wind Power Co., Ltd.* (HEZZEWKVBEASABEAA), a
subsidiary of Hua Yuan Power Co., Ltd.* (ZERZEHER A
Al) and SDIC Power Holding Co., Ltd. Under the leadership
of the Group, the project company will set up a HJT solar
cell and HJT solar module production line and provide related
products to the HIT solar power plants planned to be set up by
other partners of the project company in the future. The Group
will form a complete vertical supply chain consisting of Cast-
mono wafers, solar cells, solar modules (including flexible solar
modules for Business-to-Customers), distributed household
power station, and therefore becoming an integrated solar
solution provider covering upstream materials to end users.
In addition, the Group will become the industry benchmark
as the sole vertical supply chain integrated provider of new
generation HJT technology.

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank our management and all staff for their dedication and
contribution to the development of the Group. | would also
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders
for their continuous commitment and support.

* the English translation of Chinese names or words above,
where indicated, is included for information purpose only, and
should not be regarded as the official English translation of such
Chinese names or words.

Leung Tsz Chung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB313.5 million (2020: RMB111.9 million),
representing a substantial increase of approximately RMB201.6
million or 180.2%. The gross profit of the Group during the
year also increased substantially to approximately RMB88.5
million, being approximately 5 times of gross profit of
2020. The gross profit margin of the Group during the year
also increased to approximately 28.2% as compared to
approximately 16.1% in 2020.

The increase in revenue and gross profit were primarily
attributable to the following factors:

i) The Group successfully utilised casting technology to
produce Cast-mono wafers, which was then used to
manufacture Cast-mono HJT solar cells with an energy
conversion efficiency exceeding 24.0% in 2020. During
the year, the Group has received and completed the
first procurement order for photovoltaic modules based
on our Cast-mono HJT solar cells. The first production
facility of our Cast-mono wafers in Xuzhou has
successfully entered the commercial production stage
during the year, bringing a new source of income to the
Group, and

i) During the year, the COVID-19 epidemic still had a
serious impact on Southeast Asia and India, the severity
of the domestic epidemic and the economy in the PRC
had recovered substantially. Customers of the OEM
business had transferred their original orders from
Southeast Asia and Indian manufacturers to the Group,
resulting in an increase in revenue of OEM business this
year.

EEENWKR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

During the year, the Group recorded a net profit of
approximately RMB9.2 million, as compared with the net
loss of approximately RMB108.8 million of last year. Such
turnaround from net loss to net profit was mainly attributable
to (i) increase in gross profit of approximately RMB70.5
million; (ii) decrease in impairment loss on intangible assets
of approximately RMB64.8 million; (iii) compensation for land
resumption of approximately RMB22.2 million; (iv) decrease in
amortisation of intangible assets of approximately RMB12.2
million; (v) decrease in share-based payments of approximately
RMB9.9 million; net-off by (vi) decrease in fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately RMB18.8 million; (vii)
consultancy fee incurred for the new business of Cast-mono
wafers and Cast-mono HJT solar cells and modules (collectively
as "Photovoltaic Products”) of approximately RMB22.5 million;
(viii) increase in wages and salaries of approximately RMB7.1
million as more senior management and administrative staff

AEBEBRFAHEEFANBEHOARE
9,200,000yt MEAFRE 2 FEIBL A
AR #108,800,000L - BRI FEEE
BIFMNBEFERHROENEMHDARE
70,500,0007T ; (i) 2 & E R ER 2 A
R #64,800,0007T (i) BB 4 A R #&
22,200,0007T ; (V)EF EESHB DDA
F<#12,200,0007T 5 (v)PARR 13 7% B 6 6 1
TR A4 AN R #9,900,0007T : EA(VIRE Y
¥z AP EWER D H A RE18,800,000
TC (DB SRR RESHITABREE M X
B (HEBAIARER]) 2HEBHE
& 4 A R #22,500,0007T ; (viii) & B2 35
TEZEMERRITHRAB U #H XK
ERMZHER TERFSEMHARE
7,100,0007T : (ix)fff 2% Al AN 38 pn 49 A R &
4,800,0007T ; M (x)IE 18 KE N AR HE

were recruited to support the new business of Photovoltaic ~ 5,900,0007T & 48K 54 BT 35 o
Products; (ix) increase in research and development costs of
approximately RMB4.8 million; and (x) increase in exchange
loss of approximately RMB5.9 million.
FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% [0 B
Revenue by Product Category REREN BN RS
Increase/
2021 2020  (decrease)
RMB’000 RMB’000 % change
1,
e A CRi)
AR®BTRT ARETTT % 5
Revenue (Boree Products) Wk (EARBREm) 1,300 2,025 (35.8)%
Revenue (Graphene-based Products) W (AEWER) 5,663 4,154 36.3%
Revenue (OEM Business) Wz (OEMETS) 261,709 105,690 147.6%
Revenue (Photovoltaic Products) Wz CeIREMR) 44,834 - N/AT@E
Revenue (Total) W (%) 313,506 111,869 180.2%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Boree Products

Revenue from Boree branded slippers, sandals and casual
footwear (“Boree Products”) decreased by 35.8% to
approximately RMB1.3 million during the year (2020: RMB2.0
million) because of the decrease in online sales.

Graphene-based Products

The revenue of graphene-based ethylene-vinyl acetate (“EVA")
foam material (“Graphene-based EVA Foam Material”) and
slippers (“Graphene-based Slippers”), graphene deodorizing
and sterilizing chips for air purifiers and air conditioners
(“Sterilizing Chips”) and graphene air sterilizers (collectively
as "Graphene-based Products”) increased by approximately
RMB1.5 million to approximately RMB5.7 million during the
year (2020: RMB4.2 million), the indoor graphene-based
sterilizing slippers “Graphener” and the other graphene
application products accounted for approximately RMB2.1
million and approximately RMB3.6 million respectively.
Following the launch of air sterilizers “Graphenix” and the
completion of the first order in the second half of last year,
the Group has successfully designed and developed a new
air purification device tailored made according to customer
requirement in return of a tooling income of approximately
RMB1.9 million and sales of such devices of approximately
RMB1.6 million during the year.

OEM Business

The revenue of OEM business increased by approximately
RMB156.0 million to approximately RMB261.7 million during
the year (2020: RMB105.7 million). As the COVID-19 epidemic
still had a serious impact on the Southeast Asia and India,
customers of the OEM business had transferred their original
orders from Southeast Asia and Indian manufacturers to the
Group, resulting in increase in both revenue and gross profit
margin of the OEM business during the year.

EEENWKR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Photovoltaic Products

The Group successfully utilised casting technology to produce
Cast-mono wafers, which was then used to manufacture
Cast-mono HIJT solar cells with an energy conversion
efficiency exceeding 24.0% in 2020. During the year, the
Group has received and completed the first procurement
order for photovoltaic modules based on our Cast-mono HJT
solar cells which will be used for building a demonstrating
integrated charging station for new energy vehicles for State
Grid Corporation of China. In April 2021, Golden Solar
Silicon Science & Technology (Xu Zhou) Co., Ltd. (“Golden
Solar Xuzhou"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company was set up to manufacture Cast-mono wafers and
has entered into a silicon wafer framework sale and purchase
agreement with Jiangsu Runergy New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd. and has entered into silicon wafer sales agreements with
Taoistic Solar Technology (Changzhou) Co., Ltd. and Panda
PV Tech Co., Ltd. respectively, providing Cast-mono wafers
with a total amount up to 400 million pieces. The signing
of the above agreements demonstrated that the Cast-mono
wafers of the Group have been recognised by the photovoltaic
manufacturers.

The first production facility of our Cast-mono wafers in
Xuzhou has successfully achieved commercial mass production
in the second half of the year. Despite the power restriction
measures in the PRC having impact on the operation in
Xuzhou and Quanzhou, the main bases of the business of the
Photovoltaic Products, the impact was limited as the restriction
measures only lasted for just more than two months and
operation resumed quickly. This new business of Photovoltaic
Products brought a new source of income to the Group mainly
in the last two months of the fourth quarter and the revenue
totally amounted to approximately RMB44.8 million. The
Group expects that this new business would become the main
business of the Group and the driving force of higher profit
growth for the near future.

B ERE (&)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year, selling and distribution expenses increased by
33.3% to approximately RMB10.6 million as compared with
that of last year (2020: RMB7.9 million), which accounted for
3.4% (2020: 7.1%) of the Group’s revenue. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in sales during the year.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses recorded an increase
of approximately RMB28.8 million or 48.2% during the
year to approximately RMB88.5 million as compared with
that of last year (2020: RMB59.7 million), which was mainly
attributable to (i) consultancy fee incurred for the new business
of Photovoltaic Products of approximately RMB22.5 million;
(i) increase in wages and salaries of approximately RMB7.1
million as more senior management and administrative staff
were recruited to support the new business of Photovoltaic
Products; (iii) increase in research and development costs of
approximately RMB4.8 million; and (iv) increase in exchange
loss of approximately RMB5.9 million; net-off by (v) decrease in
share-based payments of approximately RMB9.9 million.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, net cash outflow from operating activities of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB63.1 million (2020:
RMB2.6 million). As at 31 December 2021, cash and bank
balances were approximately RMB135.8 million, representing
an increase of approximately 216.3 times as compared with
the cash and bank balances as at the end of last year (2020:
RMBO0.6 million). As at 31 December 2021, around 68.5%
and 25.9% of the Group’s cash and bank balances were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi respectively.
As at 31 December 2021, the short term borrowings of the
Group were approximately RMB100.4 million (2020: RMB130.1
million). All loans were denominated in Renminbi, with fixed
interest rates and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group was
100.2% (2020: -523.8%). Gearing ratio was calculated as total
debt divided by the total equity. Total debt refers to the total
liability minus the sum of tax payable and deferred tax liability.
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EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital Structure

As at 1 January 2021, the Company had 1,486,859,608
ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) in issue and
a paid-up capital of approximately RMB99,310,000. During
the year, the Company issued a total of 98,050,000 Shares
to share option holders who exercised their share options,
and issued a total of 20,000,000 Shares and 57,000,000
Shares in respect of the completion of share subscription
and placing on 19 April 2021. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 24 March 2021 and 19 April 2021,
Mr. Lin Dongliang, an independent subscriber, subscribed
for a total of 20,000,000 new Shares of US$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$4 per subscription share (the “Share
Subscription”), and the Company placed a total of 57,000,000
new Shares through a placing agent to not less than six
independent placees at placing price of HK$4 per placing
share (the ”Placing”). As at 31 December 2021, the Company
had 1,661,909,608 Shares in issue and a paid-up capital of
approximately RMB110,606,000.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals

During the year, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the bills payables were secured
by a pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
approximately RMBO0.4 million (2020: RMB3.8 million). As at
31 December 2021, the bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by a pledge of the Group’s buildings with carrying
amount of approximately RMB2.2 million (2020: RMB3.6
million), leasehold land of right-of-use assets and the land of
investment properties with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB4.0 million (2020: RMB4.2 million) and approximately
RMB35.2 million (2020: RMB31.2 million) respectively.

The building of investment properties with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB11.1 million (2020: RMB10.5
million) was pledged to an independent third party for a loan
facility of RMB20 million (2020: RMB20 million). The loan
facility was not yet utilised as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent Liabilities

During the year of 2020, a supplier had filed lawsuit against
the overdue payment of Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co., Ltd.
("Quanzhou Baofeng”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, with total amount of approximately RMBO.5
million (the “Amount in Question”) and the first trial held that
Quanzhou Baofeng shall repay the Amount in Question plus
interest.

Based on the best estimation of the management of the
Company at that time, Quanzhou Baofeng had valid ground
in opposing the Amount in Question in the judgement of the
above said case. As the lawsuit was in the process of appeal,
the corresponding legal fee and interest were uncertain.
Accordingly, no provision had been made in the consolidated
financial statement as at 31 December 2020.

According to the judgement of the second trial, the appeal
was rejected and Quanzhou Baofeng was required to repay the
Amount in Question plus interest to the supplier. Subsequently
on 28 April 2021, Quanzhou Baofeng entered into a
settlement agreement with the supplier, which Quanzhou
Baofeng would settle the Amount in Question without interest
to the supplier in five monthly instalments from April to
August 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the Amount in
Question and the corresponding legal fee were fully settled by
Quanzhou Baofeng.

Except as described above, there was no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the year, the revenue of the Group were mainly
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi. The cost of sales and
operating expenses were mainly denominated in Renminbi.
Management of the Group monitors the foreign exchange
risk and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
exposure if necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Human Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of
approximately 780 employees (2020: 600 employees), with
total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2021,
including directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately
RMB78,354,000 (2020: RMB64,616,000). The Group's
emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications and
competence of individual employee and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically. The emoluments of the
Directors are recommended by the remuneration committee
and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Company also adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2021 Share Option Scheme”) on 2
July 2021 to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
employees.

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Subscription and
Placing

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 24
March 2021 and 19 April 2021, the Share Subscription and
Placing were completed on 19 April 2021. The closing market
price. was HK$4.76 per Share on the date on which the
terms of the Share Subscription and Placing were fixed. The
gross proceeds from the Share Subscription and Placing were
approximately HK$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB67,494,000) and approximately HK$228,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB192,359,000) respectively,
and the net proceeds (after deducting the relevant expenses
incurred in the Share Subscription and Placing) were
approximately HK$79,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB67,242,000) and approximately HK$226,720,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB191,280,000) respectively.
The net subscription price and net placing price, after
deducting relevant expenses, were approximately HK$3.99 per
subscription share and HK$3.98 per placing share, respectively.

The Directors considered that the Share Subscription and
Placing represented an opportunity to strengthen the Group’s
financial position and raise additional funding for the business
operations of the Group without any interest burden, as well
as to enlarge shareholders’ base of the Company which may in
turn enhance the liquidity of the Shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Subscription and

Placing (continued)

The utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31 December 2021 is

set out as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Subscription and
Placing (continued)
Note:

1. Itis expected that the remaining balances of the unutilised net
proceeds allocated for the “Development of photovoltaic and
related business” and “Settlement of other payables and short
term borrowings” will be utilised in the financial period ending
30 June 2022.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME, STOCK SHORT
NAME, COMPANY LOGO AND COMPANY
WEBSITE

The English name of the Company has been changed from
“Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company Limited” to
“Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings Limited” and
its dual foreign name in Chinese has been changed from " & &
BB R AR to "2 B RBHRERBR AT,
both with effect from 30 June 2021. The stock short name
of the Company for trading in the Shares on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) has been changed from “BAOFENGMODERN” to
“GOLDENSOLAR” in English and from “EI&E %" to "&£
¥eeJR " in Chinese, with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 2 August
2021. The logo of the Company has been changed to @
with effect from 28 July 2021. The website of the Company
has been changed from “www.baofengmodern.com” to
“www.goldensolargroup.com” with effect from 20 August
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Photovoltaic Products Business

Since the commencement of the business of Photovoltaic
Products in early 2021 and the signing of casting silicon
furnaces purchase agreement with the subsidiary of GCL-Poly
Energy Holdings Limited (“GCL-Poly”) on 29 January 2021, the
Group has successively completed the lease arrangements for
preliminary production plant, the application for 16 patents in
relation to Cast-mono wafers and Cast-mono HIT solar cells
technologies, the recruitment of approximately 19 research
and development staff and 66 production staff, the upgrade
of 113 of the 290 casting silicon furnaces at our Xuzhou
production line acquired from GCL-Poly, the commissioning
of related equipment, production and delivery of Cast-mono
wafer orders of several customers. The Group transformed
from a traditional manufacturer to a renewable energy
technology company within 2021 as scheduled, and achieved
the target of investment, mass production, delivery and
realised profit in the same year.

The full production capacity of Cast-mono wafers of Golden
Solar Xuzhou, the Cast-mono wafers production base of the
Group, reached approximately 300 million pieces per year
(Based on a wafer size of 182mm. Due to the gradual shift
in customer demand from 158.75mm to 182mm in 2021,
all wafer production units in previous announcements of the
Company were based on 158.75mm). The unmodified casting
silicon furnaces are scheduled to complete modification
in 2022. In addition, depending on market demands, the
Group will further expand its production capacity in 2022.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
22 October 2021, Golden Solar Xuzhou entered into the
investment agreement and related supplemental agreement
with Xuzhou Economic & Technological Development Zone
Management Committee* (fRMEBERMHAEREREEZES),
in relation to the 20 gigawatts large-sized HJT silicon wafer
project. The Group expects to complete the construction of
new plant and commence production in the second quarter of
2022.

During the year, the Group invested heavily in research and
development and technology and subsequently achieve a
major breakthrough in thin silicon wafer mass production
technology. The new plant will start mass production of 100u
ultra-thin silicon wafers for HJT N-type solar cells (according
to our understanding, only HJT solar cells can utilise mass
production grade ultra-thin silicon wafers of 100y and below),
which will give HIJT solar cells an absolute cost advantage
over other conventional solar cells. The mass production of
ultra-thin silicon wafer also represents a significant estimated
increase in the profit of the Group.
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EEENWR DM

FUTURE PROSPECTS (continued)

Photovoltaic Products Business (continued)

Besides continuous production of Cast-mono wafers to fulfil
orders from existing and potential customers, we also expect
to establish proprietary production of Cast-mono HIJT solar
cells and Cast-mono HJT solar modules. As disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2021,
Golden Solar (Hong Kong) Solar Material Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, will establish a
project company with Shangyi County Chahar Wind Power
Co., Ltd.* (MEZRWBBEAEABR LA, a subsidiary of Hua
Yuan Power Co., Ltd.* (FEJRE HABR A 7)) and SDIC Power
Holding Co., Ltd. which will hold 51%, 29% and 20% of the
equity interests in the project company respectively. Under the
leadership of the Group, the project company will set up a HIT
solar cell and HJT solar module production line and provide
related products to the HIT solar power plants planned to be
set up by other partners of the project company in the future.
The Group will form a complete vertical supply chain consisting
of Cast-mono wafers, solar cells, solar modules (including
flexible solar modules for Business-to-Customers), distributed
household power station, and therefore becoming an
integrated solar solution provider covering upstream materials
to end users. In addition, the Group will become the industry
benchmark as the sole vertical supply chain integrated provider
of new generation HJT technology.

We believe that we will lead the new round of cost reduction
of worldwide solar energy with the advanced new generation
ultra-thin cast HJT solar cell technology and contribute to
achieving carbon neutrality for our country and the world.

Other Business

The global outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic is expected to
continue to have a negative impact on the global retail market
in 2022. However, the overseas retail market is expected
to return to growth as many countries started to ease the
restrictive measures and the Group expects a mild increase in
the revenue of OEM business in 2022.

For Graphene-based Products, the Group would focus to sell
the tailor-made air purification device in 2022 and continue
to develop and modify sterilizing modules for air conditioning
system through cooperation with customer.

* the English translation of Chinese names or words in this
management discussion and analysis, where indicated, is
included for information purpose only, and should not be
regarded as the official English translation of such Chinese
names or words.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions as set out in the then
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) which was
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the code provision (the
“Code Provision”) as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021, save for the deviations
as discussed below. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous
compliance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required
standard for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors
and each of them confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
financial year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members are:

° Executive Directors:

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (re-designated from the
Vice-chairman to the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer on 26 February 2021)

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong

Dr. XU Zhi (appointed as Chief Technology Officer on
26 February 2021)
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Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

° Non-Executive Director:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

e Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
60 to 63 of this annual report. The composition of the Board is
well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and
extensive experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Company has complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules during the
financial year ended 31 December 2021. All independent non-
executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Every director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles”).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgement.

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives
and development plans, monitoring the performance of
the business and senior management and making major
investments and funding decisions of the Group.

The daily business operations and administrative functions of
the Group are delegated to the management with department
heads responsible for different aspects of the business and
functions of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over the
management. Sufficient notice of meetings is given to
Directors prior to a regular board meeting, and each director
is able to request inclusion of matters in the agenda for board
meeting. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, the annual
general meeting (“AGM") and the extraordinary general
meetings (“EGM") held during the financial year ended 31
December 2021 are summarised as follows:

TEREREE

BEEE (£

REBEE2-F-_—F+-_A=+—HBLEFHK
FEMBTESeeS BREAFRKE ([K
RAFKE]) RBRERERAS ([REFH

REDHHFELEFBEHAmT

Number of
board Number of Number of
meetings AGM EGM
attended/ attended/ attended/
held in 2021 held in 2021 held in 2021
—EB-—F —EBE-—F —EB-—F
HE BT HE BT HE BT
NWEEE HREBE 7 B SR 45 Al
PN RERE RERE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung BT o A 30/30 171 2/2
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong B= RS A 30/30 11 2/2
Dr. XU Zhi (appointed on FEEE (RZE—F
26 February 2021) —A-+NBEZEZMT) 24/26 171 2/2
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. LIN Weihuan WEEBLZ + 30/30 11 2/2
Independent Non-Executive BYHHITES
Directors
Ms. AN Na 2+ 30/30 0/1 0/2
Professor ZHAO Jinbao HERHEE 29/30 11 2/2
Mr. CHEN Shaohua PBRAZE S A 29/30 11 2/2
PROFESSIONAL TRAINING OF THE COMPANY RAMEZEXEIEI

SECRETARY

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company
secretary of the Company must take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in each financial year. The
company secretary, Mr. Ip Pui Sum, provided his training
records to the Company, indicating that he has taken no less
than 35 hours of relevant professional training by means of
attending seminars and reading relevant guideline materials
during the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including the duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 in the CG Code which include the
development and reviewing of policies and practices on
corporate governance and compliance with all legal and
regulatory requirements, monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, development and reviewing of the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors and reviewing the compliance with
the CG Code, and ensuring proper disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this report,
all the Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training
courses or reading materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations or the Company’s business or their
duties and responsibilities.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is summarised below:

EEERBE

EXENBERTEXERRE (BFD
XERTADIMAHEMERS) B
ENBEHERERBRREERLETHA
ERMNEERE EEEENEREEEN
BIRBEREEREE HEREHNERN
BERESNRTEIREMFM(0E)
LBEEZBNELEEATR ARRER
RARBEREEREFIERENRE -

EENFEREERER

EREFHRDEKEF LR IGE
REREMB R BREESENE
BRATREFSFLIAFTENER - H
EARERM MAEESECERB2ME
e BEEAHEEEE R RRIIE AT
EBREFEEHLBENEHN T A2 A
FEREREE-

REBEE_T-_—F+-_A=+—BILF
T REFEIHNERNSIIESEMENT
Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in relation
to the business or Directors’

duties

LEBRERD

ESRENEYE/
;e BEEE
ERNER

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung DFAEE v
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRRLE v
Dr. XU Zhi (Appointed on 26 February 2021) FEEL(RZE--F-A-T/ BEZA) v
Ms. LIN Weihuan WEETL v
Ms. AN Na 2t v
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao HeRAK v
Mr. CHEN Shaohua ROERE v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company
deviates from this provision because Mr. Zheng Jingdong
has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer from 10 May 2013 to 25 February 2021. The
Directors considered that vesting two roles in the same person
provided the Group with strong and consistent leadership
in the development and execution of the Group’s business
strategies and was beneficial to the Group. The balance
of power and authorities was ensured by the operation of
the senior management and the Board, which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals. Since 26 February
2021, Mr. Leung Tsz Chung has been appointed as Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
The Board currently comprises 3 executive Directors, 1 non-
executive Director and 3 independent non-executive Directors
and therefore has a strong independence element in its
composition.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors should attend annual
general meeting and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of the shareholders. The Company deviates from this
provision because the independent non-executive Director, Ms.
An Na did not attend the annual general meeting held on 29
June 2021 due to her other business commitments.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting, and the Chairman
should also invite the chairpersons of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to
attend. In their absence, he should invite another member of
the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to
attend. These persons should be available to answer questions
at the annual general meeting. The chairperson of the
independent board committee (if any) should also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires
independent shareholders’ approval. Due to her other business
commitments, the chairperson of remuneration committee,
Ms. An Na was unable to attend the annual general meeting
held on 29 June 2021.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group's performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision, in
particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the
Group's strategy, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group's business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders can be
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders can be protected.

As at 31 December 2021, the Board has three independent
non-executive Directors, Professor Zhao Jinbao, Mr. Chen
Shaohua and Ms. An Na. Among them, Mr. Chen Shaohua
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications
and financial management expertise in compliance with the
requirements set out in Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three-
month notice in writing served by either party on the other.

All independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
specific term. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles. The Articles provide that any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting, and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has three committees, namely, the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of all Board Committees are in line with the
Code Provision and are available on the Stock Exchange website
and the Company’s website at www.goldensolargroup.com.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

TEREREE

FHTESNEY

BEFNTEF (BRBUFNTES) DA
ARRFLNTEPR=FORBEEL E
HEE- AR TRETLPR=ZMEAN
EMBAKIEEO/ILE-

PIEBMIFATES MOFMITESFHAR
BARwRRELEE-

EENET - EERRE

ARPZEATES FATESRIBUF
WITEFCEARRR LA FE TR
Ba# WARBANRLIE=ZFRBR
BEREEHMEE— R AR E E
REMAZEEZENAHBREEZRNES
THEREZERNARBERIARRKRE
B MR R Z AR ERET MERESR
EHMAEREFTENESTHERAR
A NERFAF K ER A E&E
£

EEEEMEES
AARIRB=EZEE AEZZES ¥
MEZEe kiR ZEg (SB[ EFg5HM
ZEg|) BEEARARSEHENARIE-
FMEEEgEMZEenBREENTS
SF RIS I AT B Bk 22 BT A B Re AR B4
Uhiwww.goldensolargroup.com® & - & &
SEMLZEgRREHARERBITHRE
REBRER AIRBEEBASREBELEE
ER -BRBALXRQRIEE-

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE

_—
25




i

26

Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F.,, OfficePlus @Sheung Wan, 93-
103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The company
secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and
customer complaints, to the chief executives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise our Group’s financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function and review and monitor
appointment of the auditors and their independence.

The audit committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Shaohua, Professor
Zhao Jinbao and Ms. An Na, and Mr. Chen Shaohua was
the chairperson of the audit committee as at 31 December
2021. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been reviewed by the audit committee.
The audit committee held 2 meetings during the financial
year ended 31 December 2021 to review interim and annual
financial results and reports, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function and scope of work and appointment of external
auditors.
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Details of the attendance of the audit committee are as follow:

TEREREE

BERREBENHFELCEFBOT:

Members RE Attendance of Meeting
ERHERBR

Mr. CHEN Shaohua RAOERE (BREZEEEEF)
(Chairperson of audit committee) 2/2
Professor ZHAO Jinbao HERHE 2/2
Ms. AN Na L2+ 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the remuneration committee on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies. It shall also make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

The remuneration committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. An Na (the chairperson of
the remuneration committee), Professor Zhao Jinbao and Mr.
Chen Shaohua as at 31 December 2021. The remuneration
committee held 2 meetings during the financial year ended 31
December 2021 to assess the performance of the executive
Directors, review and make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and to
determine the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management.

The details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
are as follows:
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Members RE Attendance of Meetings
SRHERR

Ms. AN Na (Chairperson of Tt (FNEESEE)
remuneration committee) 2/2
Professor ZHAO Jinbao e REIR 2/2
Mr. CHEN Shaohua BRAOERAE 2/2
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management of the Company by
band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

RIETRIREBASK BE_T - —%F
“A=ZT-HLEFEARRASREEA
)

Number of individuals

FHEE(ARY) AH
500,001 - 1,000,000 1
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 2
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 -
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2

Details of remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the nomination committee on 8 January
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are set out below:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors;

(b) to review the size, structure and composition of the
Board;

(c) to review the terms of reference, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(d) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships;

(e) develop, review and disclose the policy for nomination
of directors, as appropriate, in the Company’s corporate
governance report annually; and

(f)  to implement and review the board diversity policy
("Board Diversity Policy”).
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The nomination committee comprised the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Zhao Jinbao (the
chairperson of the nomination committee), Mr. Chen Shaohua
and Ms. An Na as at 31 December 2021. The nomination
committee held 2 meetings during the financial year ended
31 December 2021 to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-election of Directors
at the AGM.

The details of the attendance of the nomination committee are
as follows:

TEREREE
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RAZBEHELEFBOTN:

Members RE Attendance of Meetings
SRHERR

Professor ZHAO Jinbao (Chairperson of HERHAX (IRBZEETE)
nomination committee) 2/2
Mr. CHEN Shaohua RS L 2/2
Ms. AN Na L+ 2/2

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
adopted a Board Diversity Policy setting out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Group considered
the diversity of the Board members can be achieved through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service.
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Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates of the Board members will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The nomination committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The nomination committee shall consider certain factors,
which are not exhaustive and the Board has discretion if
it considers appropriate, in assessing the suitability of the
proposed candidate regarding the appointment of directors or
re-appointment of any existing Board member(s).

In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
nomination committee shall make reference to certain criteria
including reputation for integrity; accomplishment, experience
and reputation in the business and industry; commitment
in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
businesses of the Group; diversity policy of the Company; in
case of independent non-executive director, the independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and any
other relevant factors as may be determined by the nomination
committee or the Board from time to time as appropriate.
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Nomination procedures
Appointment of new director

a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The nomination committee may select candidates
for directorship from various channels, including but
not limited to internal promotion, re-designation,
referral by other member of the management
and external recruitment agents, and should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If an independent non-executive
director is to be appointed, the nomination
committee will also assess and consider whether
the candidate can satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the nomination committee should rank
them by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The nomination committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship, as applicable. Where the Board
proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the
general meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general
meeting:

e the process used for identifying the individual
and why the Board believes the individual
should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed independent non-executive
director will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to
devote sufficient time to the Board;
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o the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of
the Board.

(iv) For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set
out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the nomination committee should
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.

Re-election of director at general meeting

(i)  The nomination committee should review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring director and his/her level of participation
and performance on the Board.

(i)  The nomination committee should also review and
determine whether the retiring director continues to
meet the criteria as set out above. If an independent
non-executive director is subject to the re-election,
the nomination committee will also assess and
consider whether the independent non-executive
director will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

(i) The nomination committee should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in
the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable
laws and regulations.
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The nomination committee will review the nomination policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the nomination
policy. The nomination committee will discuss any revisions to
the nomination policy that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors' Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company's financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval. The
Company provides all members of the Board with updates
from time to time on the Company's performance, positions
and prospects.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group, and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system in order to protect
the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group has
an internal audit function. The Board and audit committee also
conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal control systems include a well-
established corporate structure and organisation with clearly
defined lines of responsibility and authority. Each department
is responsible for its daily operations, and is also required to
implement and monitor the strategies and policies adopted by
the Board and effective employment of the resources of the
Company, in order to avoid misappropriation of resources and
damages made to the Company’s assets, and prevent against
errors and fraud.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Board
and audit committee conducted a review and assessment of
the effectiveness of the internal control system and procedures
based on information derived from discussions with the
management of the Company and its external auditor. The
Board and audit committee believe that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are adequate and
effective. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of
activities, responsibility and authority for each department
and its management staff within the Group. The Group has
a defined goal for each department to accomplish. These
goals were discussed in the Board meeting and pass on to
the management through the executive Directors, and will
be implemented and closely monitored by the executive
Directors who shall review the operational and financial results
from time to time, and take any necessary actions for the
improvement of business activities.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the Company’s auditor, Confucius International
CPA Limited was RMB1,378,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy on 20 February 2019. The
Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. Any declaration of final
dividends for the year will be subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders. In proposing any dividend pay-out,
the Board shall take into account the following factors:

—  the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

— the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

- general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports, announcements
and general meetings including AGMs in order to keep
shareholders well informed of the business activities and
directions of the Group. The Group has also established a
corporate website www.goldensolargroup.com as a channel to
facilitate effective communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F, OfficePlus @Sheung
Wan, 93-103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, there is no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

Convening an EGM and Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The same requirements and procedures also apply to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Group arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.
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This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report
(the "“Report”) covers information on the Group’s principal
activities in the manufacture and sale of slippers, sandals,
casual footwear, Graphene-based EVA Foam Material and
Graphene-based Slippers, Sterilizing Chips and graphene air
sterilizers, and Cast-mono wafers and Cast-mono HJT solar
cells and modules in the PRC. This Report is prepared in
accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. This Report
mainly summarises the environment and social performance
of the Group during the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021. The scope of the information disclosed in
this Report and the statistical methods are consistent with the
previous year.

The Company strives to safeguard and balance the interests
of each stakeholder and follows the operating principle of
“taste of life, happy production”. Facing the changes and
challenges of business environment, the Group never forget
to commit corporate social responsibility while pursuing
growth. In respect of the respective area of product safety,
product quality, energy saving and environmental protection,
social welfare and employee care, the Group will ensure
that the business operations can create value for the social,
human and natural capital, and actively fulfill corporate social
responsibility.

The Board is responsible for determining the ESG risks of the
Group, formulating ESG strategies, ensuring the establishment
and maintenance of an effective internal control system
on ESG and conducting regular analysis and independent
assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
aforementioned system through internal audit functions.
The Board have identified the material ESG issues from the
annual materiality assessment exercise that involved both
the key employees and external stakeholders. The Group’s
environmental and social related impacts and the target
to reduce the negative impacts of material ESG issues are
reported in quantitative numbers that are specific and
measurable.

The production and the major business of the Group are based
in the PRC. Therefore, the information and data included in
the Report are the information and data of the Group that
originates in the PRC.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group continues to establish diversified communication
channels with its stakeholders to proactively understand their
expectations and concerns regarding the social responsibility
of the Group. We have paid great attention to the valuable
opinions of stakeholders. The Group believes that through
understanding their opinions would assist us to analyze,
identify and revise the aspects of corporate social responsibility
in order to continuously improve and raise our comprehensive
corporate management ability and standard. The table
below sets forth the expectations and concerns which major
stakeholders are more concerned with and the relevant

engagement methods:

Expectation and
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Means of Communication and

Stakeholders Concern issues Response

FHE HERBTIRE BEREREORE
Investors — Return on investment — General meetings
REE - REM@K - BRERXREg

Government or
regulatory authorities

B o BE

Employees
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— Sustainable business growth

- ARBEERMEBER

— Compliance to listing requirements
- FAELWRE

— Timely and transparent reporting
- REFEHHORE

— Compliance with law and
regulations

- BTRRMER

— Fulfilment of tax obligations

- BITWHMER

— Promoting regional economic
development and employment

- WEMERGEERNMAERS

— Remuneration and welfares

- B KAE A

— Working environment and
occupational safety

- IERBEBERZR

— Career development opportunities

- BXEREE

— Financial results announcements and
annual report

- UBEELERFERS

— Published announcements

- BfEAE

—  Websites of the Company/the Stock
Exchange

- RRER TS

— Response to queries or investigation

- EEERZRE

— Participation in government meetings or
seminars

- ZERNERNATE

— Regular declaration

- EHIRHR

— Performance evaluation and training
sessions

- BREHERIFIIRE

— Employee performance assessment

- BI@EMERZ

— Internal meetings and announcements

- RMBFERBE
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Means of Communication and

Stakeholders Concern issues Response
BiE HMERBETIEE BEREREE
Customers — Safe and high quality products and Regular communication via email and
®F services conference calls

- RENREBEERNMRE REESBLEEFSZNTHER

— Stable and long—term business Contracts

relationship A A

- BERERHONEBHAR Business visit

— Reasonable price EEX=H

- AHEER

— Corporate reputation

- pEER
Suppliers — Stable and long—term business Business meetings and conference calls
HER relationship X¥BeEREESE

- BELRHNEBBARER Business visit

— Corporate reputation BEFED

- BRER

— Prompt payment cycles

- RERNZES

Community and general
public
A= N

— Community involvement

- HR2HE

— Economic development

- RBZRE

— Understand our environmental and
social impact to the society

- TEHREMAEEEEANRERME

B 488
TE

Charity activities and social investment
BRERHAHERE
Participate in community employment
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BRR HERERBRKE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Through communications with respective stakeholders, the
Group understands stakeholders’ expectations and concerns
and responds to the feedback of stakeholders in a timely
manner, determines the disclosure highlights of this Report
and proactively responds to the expectations and concerns of

BRI
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respective stakeholders. The Group’s and stakeholders’ matters

A

of concern are presented in the following materiality matrix:

Materiality Matrix B2 {445

Importance to stakeholders ¥1#5 & HEZ 14

High =

Development and training
R EIET
Employee benefits

EEER

Supply chain management
HrEsgER

Quality management
EEER

Occupational Health and safety

BEREEe

Medium

@® Community investment

HERE

Use of resources

ARER
Anti-corruption
R&E3/

Noise control
R B

Waste water discharge

BEKBERR
Greenhouse gas emission
B RAEEHER

Data privacy and intellectual
property protection

AL RS ERRE

Low 1

Prevention of child and forced

labour

FrlbE T Moga s

Diversity and equal
opportunities
SR T ERE
Solid waste generation

ELEREY

Low 1K

Medium

High =

Importance to the Group ¥INEEMEZ |
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

The Group always pays attention to environmental
protection. In respect of environmental management,
the 1ISO14001 environmental management system has
been established and implemented since 2006, with
annual review supervised by third-party certification
institutions and regulatory authorities. The Group
formulates appropriate environmental management
operation control procedures, commits to environmental
protection through continuous enhancement on
production technology and product quality, introduction
and promotion of energy conservation, waste reduction,
clean production, improvement on pollution prevention
and control technology, and material recycling and reuse.
In 2021, the Group invested a total of approximately
RMB1,253,000 for energy saving, environmental
protection, and emission and waste reduction. The Group
adheres to green and low-carbon development principle,
protects the environment as its mission, and integrates
environmental protection with enterprise development.
The Group strictly follows relevant national environmental
laws and regulations to minimize the impact of
production and operating activities to the environment to
the greatest extent, strives to achieve resource recycling
and non-hazardous objectives during production and
operation process and continues to build a green and
harmonious environment. Climate-change issues do not
have significant impact on the Group’s business activities.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, there were no
material non-compliances concerning environmental laws
and regulations during the reporting period.
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A.1 Emissions Management

The Group strives to carry out clean production,
abides by the “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and other relevant laws
and regulations, and reduces the environmental
impact of emissions generated from the production
and operation process. The Group ensures that the
emissions generated from production and operation
activities are in compliance with national standards
and the requirements of local environmental
protection authorities of the PRC. In the meantime,
the Group formulates and implements daily
inspection of pollution treatment facilities,
and formulates monthly, quarterly and annual
maintenance plans to ensure emission treatment
facilities are under normal operation, so as to
reduce the impact of emissions on the environment.

As summarised in Table 1 below, the Group’s
emissions during the reporting period included:

greenhouse gas (“GHG") and waste water.

Table 1: Total emissions of the Group in 2020 and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Emissions B Unit Efu Amount Amount RMB’000) RMB'000)
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\ (g, (W
HHE FmE AR%®TR) ARETRT)
GHG BERE
Direct emission EE:3:30
(Scope 1) (&)
Company car oil REFH Tonnes [f
consumption (Kti2)
(note 2) 39.31 30.97 0.0001 0.0003
Natural gas ARR Tonnes 1
(note 2) (Kra2) 2,086.33 678.58 0.0067 0.0061
Indirect emission ik 3
(Scope 2) (#E2)
Externally- SMEES  Tonnes
purchased (Kfit3)
electricity
(note 3) 12,809.84% 2,258.90 0.0409“ 0.0202
Wastewater 2N Tonnes 4§ 47,896.00 26,328.00 0.1528 0.2353
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Notes:

1. The calculation for intensity is the emissions amount
divided by revenue in the Group’s reporting period.

2. The calculation of the GHG is based on the
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”
from greenhouse gas protocol.

3. The externally-purchased electricity emission factor
refers to the 2019 Emission Factors for Purchased
Electricity in Mainland China as published by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China.

4. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the increase
in amount and intensity of indirect GHG emission
of externally-purchased electricity of the Group was
mainly attributable to the launch of new business of
Photovoltaic Products and the increase in resource
allocation in related research and development
projects.

GHG Emission

GHG included carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous
oxide, which were mainly from externally-purchased
electricity and fuel. The Group is in compliance with
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”
and other relevant laws and regulations, recycling
certain particles generated during the production
process to minimize exhaust gas emission to the
greatest extent. The Group uses clean natural gas
and has installed exhaust gas treatment equipment
on production boilers to effectively control exhaust
gas and soot generated during the combustion of
boilers and ensure the emission concentration meets
the standard stipulated in the “Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Boiler”.
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Wastewater Discharge

Wastewater generated from the production process
and daily domestic sewage from employees will
be collected for further processing. No sewage is
untreated or illegally released to external waters.
The related procedures are in compliance with the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.

Solid Wastes Generation

The main solid wastes produced during the
production process are remaining materials and
scrap materials of finished products produced by
the Group. To minimize the amount of solid waste
generated during the production process, the
Group strictly abides by the principles of recycling
and reuse, as well as the provisions of the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”. The Group carries out hazard elimination
treatment, classification and recycling on solid
wastes pursuant to the “Solid Waste Management
Operations Guide” of the Group, including (i)
recycling and reuse of grinding powder, scrap; (ii)
selling of cardboard boxes, paper products to other
paper mills for recycling and reuse; and (iii) unified
recycling of domestic wastes for hazard elimination
treatment, etc.

Noise Control

The source of noise is mainly from the noise
generated by mechanical operations during the
production process. The equipments with larger
noise are all placed indoor, while noise reduction,
sound insulation, shock absorption and other
measures are adopted in order to comply with the
relevant provisions of the “Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary”.
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A2. Use of Resources A2. ERERA

Summarised in Table 2 below, the resources used by REENBREHANMERANE

the Group during the reporting period were energy, TRAREIR K IR LA R B

water, paper and packaging materials. BB TR

Table 2: Total resources consumption of the Group RO AEE_ZE_TFL_FT

in 2020 and 2021 —FHRERERE

2021 2020 2021 2020
—g--% C-—T-TF ZB--§ C—T-TF
Resources &R Unit Efr Amount Amount  Intensity @ Intensity
(Unit/ (Unit/
RMB’000) RMB'000)
AE Az BEO EED
(E/AR® (EA/ARE
T T7)
Energy B
Direct consumption B H#%
Petrol b Litres 2AFt 17,305.54 13,632.49 0.0552 0.1219
Natural gas AAR M OMAR 954,334.00  310,396.00 3.0441 2.7746
Indirect consumption &% & %%

Electricity W) Kwh FEE  16,171,993.899 2,851,782.00 51.5843@ 25.4922
Water 7K Tonnes 1A 178,395.10 26,853.00 0.5690 0.2400
Paper B3R Tonnes 1 3.83 2.37 0.0000 0.0000
Packaging BEME

By plastic BRE Tonnes 1 13.24 6.95 0.0000 0.0001
By paper HoRME Tonnes [ 1,071.60 457.72 0.0034 0.0041

Notes: Bt st -

1. The calculation for intensity is the resources 1. DEMHEHIRANEERS
consumption amount divided by revenue in the NS EAER A
Group’s reporting period.

2. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the increase 2. EUE2021F12A318IEE
in amount and intensity of indirect consumption of E-AEEEEEREEIAE
electricity of the Group was mainly attributable to METEILMNEZER AN K
the launch of new business of Photovoltaic Products A e B0 35 75 2 ELAR A 3%
and the increase in resource allocation in related BB R E R AL INFTEL
research and development projects.

The Group strives to fully recycle resources as REBEM IR EERMAENEE

much as possible during product development and RIE - FBAIBEH T D EIR A A

production process, constantly pursuing energy BR - TETEREIRE LR BE

conservation and emission reduction.
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The Group has implemented “Green Procurement”
policy to actively encourage suppliers to establish
production management system with environmental
protection and energy saving, purchase
environmentally friendly raw materials in higher
priority through procurement mechanism and supply
chain management, so as to facilitate suppliers to
reduce waste of resources and pollution.

The Group also regularly inspects and reviews
energy consumption, through internal policies and
advanced technologies to prevent wastage so as to
conserve energy and resources. Specific measures
include: (i) reduction of natural gas consumption
through the installation of boiler thermal oil
recycling pipeline for heat recycling and reuse; (ii)
reduction of hydraulic oil consumption by the use
of hydraulic oil precipitation; and (iii) reduction of
raw material input by recycling the grinding powder
of grinding workshop and the scrap of cutting and
clipping workshop. Other actively advocated routine
resource conservation measures include: (i) replacing
high energy-consumption equipment with the more
energy-saving one; (ii) turning off unnecessary
equipment, lighting and air conditioning not in use;
(iii) strengthening inspection and maintenance of
faucets, water pipes and water storage facilities and
other water supply systems to avoid any leakage;
and (iv) announcing company information in
electronic form (such as e-mail or electronic bulletin)
if possible and reducing paper use with double-
sided printing.

To meet the energy-saving and emission reduction
targets of the government, the Group reports
and evaluates energy-saving new technologies
and emission reduction, and develops energy
performance indicators to strictly control energy
consumption, improve and enhance energy
management.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to
submit energy-saving proposals actively, reduces
power consumption, promotes continuous energy
management training, etc. in order to enhance
the knowledge on energy conservation and
environmental protection policies and energy saving
awareness among employees, so that the resources
can be used more efficiently.
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The main environmental impact of the production
business is the use of boiler and electricity in its
manufacturing process. The operation of the boiler
and the use of electricity generate both direct and
indirect GHG emissions. To minimise the impact, the
production and operation sites of the Group have
been evaluated during the initial planning period in
respect of the relevant industrial land environment
and related regulations and the selected production
sites are located in the areas permitted by the local
government. During the production and operation
process, collection and treatment facilities are
installed for proper treatment of pollutants and
emissions in order to ensure meeting the standard
required by local regulations before discharge. The
Group also assesses the feasibility of environmental
protection facilities from time to time, adopts
effective environmental protection measures and
programs, including the prevention and control of
pollution and exhaust gas emission, sustainable
use of resources and ecological and environmental
protection, more active support and promotion of
social and environmental sustainable development.

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS

1.

Employment and Labour Practices

As a responsible employer, the Group is fully
in compliance with the relevant national laws
and regulations in respect of remuneration,
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversification, anti-discrimination
and other employee benefits and welfare. The
Group also regards employees as its most valuable
asset and strives to provide the competitive salaries,
welfare and working environment for them.

7 5
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B1.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, there were
no material non-compliances with relevant laws
and regulations regarding employment, employee’s
health and safety, labour standards, product and
service responsibility or corruption during the
reporting period.

Employment

The Group adheres to fair, impartial and open
employment principles, providing all employees
equal opportunities and fair treatment. The Group
strictly abides by the relevant provisions of the
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and the “The Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”. No arbitrary dismissal of an
employee is allowed; the rights and obligations
of both parties to the employment contract are
clearly stated, the legitimate rights of employees are
protected, in order to establish a harmonious and
stable employment relationship.

Employee Benefits

The Group recruits personnel in line with its
strategic requirements through various channels
like campus interview, social recruitment, network
recruitment in a fair and impartial way. The
Group provides employees with comprehensive
social security benefits, including basic salary,
pensions, incentive bonuses, medical insurance,
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund. The Group will also provide other
employee benefits depending on job nature,
including meals, uniforms and fully equipped
accommodation. The human resources department
of the Group conducts regular reviews and updates
on the relevant company policies from time to
time pursuant to the latest laws and regulations.
Employee performance appraisal, management
position promotion, and other company policies are
implemented to provide career development path
to employees like internal promotions, on the job
training. To attract high-quality talents and retain
outstanding employees, the Group launches 2021
Share Option Scheme and timely conducts reviews
on salary with reference to market standards,
formulates competitive salary and bonus system,
and provides competitive and fair remuneration
and benefits based on personal performance,
professional qualifications, and experience.

B1.
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Diversity and Equal Opportunities

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining
an inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in
which all can thrive.

The Group treats all employees equally. No
employees are discriminated against on the grounds
of gender, race, religion, age, disability, family
status, sexual orientation, nationality, political
opinion, ethnic background or any other non-
working related factors. Each newly-recruited
employee is required to sign a labour contract,
which clearly defines the rights, responsibilities,
and obligations of both the employee and the
employer, and all employees are entitled to
terminate the employment relationship with the
related employment company of the Group. The
entering, amendment, cancellation and termination
of the relevant employment contract are strictly in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Total Employees and Turnover

The Group had a total number of 782 employees
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 597). Below is a
detailed breakdown of our employees by gender,
age group, employment type and geographical
region as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

RR - HEREBRE

ZETIERFPEHE
AEBHENONEEREE—EE
BABIEN TG XL - S
BETHAIEALAK R

AEEHETI-RRAC A
EITERAMRN Bk =R
B Fie - BR RKEMOR - R
m-BEZ BARE REKSR
SEMEMIETEREREEM
EBXREER - B ABET
FEREBLHER PAREEER
TRETETWEN BEEHEE
15 P B T#A A4 E B
SERBEERRRNERER-
HEEEA R #F
FRANAR L& AR BT HRBAREK
RRE °

EEBERTAE
RZBE-—F+-_A=+—8"
REBEGHEFINZREE (=
T_FTEF:597) R T - —4F
—EEF+-_A=+—H&%
MR FieR  BIFEER Kt
REIDHEEFMASTIWNT :

2021 2020
—2--% —TETF

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Recruitment statistics R BEIAY BOk BETIAH [ERal
By gender BRI
Male B 454 58.1% 285 47.7%
Female pegid 328 41.9% 312 52.3%
By employment type BERER
Full-time 28 740 94.6% 594 99.5%
Part-time g 42 5.4% 3 0.5%

emswRnEeRERAT —e-—sxpgs (40

N




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

2021 2020
—2--% —T-TF

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Recruitment statistics BER BETAHY BAk EIAH BAL
By age group RERMAR
Below 30 305 A T 70 8.9% 56 9.4%
30-50 30-505% 530 67.8% 396 66.3%
Above 50 S0BMA £ 182 23.3% 145 24.3%
By geographical region BHE
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) R E (F/ER M) 778 99.5% 595 99.7%
Hong Kong B 4 0.5% 2 0.3%

During the reporting period, our employee turnover R|EBHA - HMH E\ T B B
headcount was 184 (2020: 164). Below is a detailed ABAB1847 (—ZZE-FF : 164
breakdown of our employee turnover rate by Z) REBER -_ZT-_ZFERHE
gender, age group and geographical region during BRI FieE R Kb &5

the year and the corresponding period in 2020: BERARFMPMAEZ T

i

50

2021 2020
Turnover Statistics BEEA S —E-—-F —EETF
Turnover rate by gender RMERESHREAER
Male B 24.4% 28.4%
Female pegli 22.3% 26.6%
Turnover rate by age group RERAR B 2R KR
Below 30 306R AT 77.1% 66.1%
30-50 30-50%% 21.9% 25.5%
Above 50 508 A £ 7.7% 17.9%
Turnover rate by REBEE S HRKER

geographical region

PRC (excluding Hong Kong) R (FBRIN) 23.7% 27.6%

Hong Kong

0
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Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the health
and safety of employees and has obtained OHSAS
18001:2007 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System certification, Work Safety
Standardisation certification. The Group has set up
an occupational health and safety management
organisation and a safety production committee
and strictly abides by the relevant standards of
“Occupation Health and Safety Management
System” and “Basic Standard for Work Safety
Standardisation”. The Group also adheres to
the principles of safety production management
and formulates the regulatory system of safety
production management and operation rules for
all positions. The safety and health of employees
are effectively protected by the implementation
of various job safety management systems and
the clarification and definition of safe production
responsibilities of all positions.

Occupational Health and Safety

To provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment at all times, the Group regularly
provides various kinds of work protective gears to
employees in accordance with working requirements
of each position and supervises and educates them
to wear and utilise correctly; appoints responsible
staff for the safe production of each department
and implements various safety education; installs
dust removal and waste discharging devices on
facilities generating dust and exhaust gas; controls
noise transmission of machinery exceeding the noise
limit or provides protective gears to employees. Fire
safety inspection, training, and drills are regularly
organized to improve safety awareness and self-
protection of employees.
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The Group also strictly abides by the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety”,
“Rule for Storage of Chemical Dangers”, “Special
Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, to
build a safe working environment.

Occupational health and safety data
BEREEZZ2HE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRR HERERBRKE

AEBETEEET (PEARK
MBEZ2EEE) (FRLE
femirFal) (FEAR
HKMBFEREREE) THM
@%&é&ﬁ BOBRRZEH
THRE-

2021 2020
—E--F T -TF

Work related fatality cases
EITEREMmETEZR

Work injury cases
THEZE

Lost days due to work injury

AITIEEEXTIEFEH

Other Health and Safety Measures

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic in
early 2020, the Group is highly conscious of the
potential health and safety impacts that it may
bring to its employees and customers. During
the outbreak of the epidemic, the Group have
established an Epidemic Prevention Working Group
and formulated various safe management measures
against COVID-19 epidemic, displayed notices in
workplace area, provided employees with sufficient
epidemic prevention supplies, and taught employees
the correct personal protection means, so as to
prevent the virus from spreading in the workplace.
Also, regular disinfection was carried out to provide
a virus free working environment to safeguard
employee’s health.
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Bodgk

BERRE

B3. Development and Training B3. EREEIEI
In respect of human resources training, the TEANEREI T E NEBE
Group provides employees with induction and 8 TIRMEARLFES R
continuous training to promote their career HEETHRELRE S ARE
development. For newly-recruited employees, E-AEEeRHETEERE
the Group provides comprehensive orientation I EETBAR XL BIER
training of corporate culture, operation processes, BIEEREEEE BEEX
work health and safety, management policies and MEBRERE - NEBNEEE T
business development. The Group also encourages L2NEEE) BFEERKME
employees to participate in on the job training and THETEE E’]ﬁﬁﬁ ﬁijT’E 14
provides appropriate subsidies to eligible employees. g REBER Y DR
Based on job nature, the Group offers trainings IR i;;H%;Fﬁ)\HaHE,E\ HiEZ
of different types and levels to newly recruited ITE - BREFERZOAL W
employees, junior supervisors, senior supervisors BREIINAEEBEBEIN F8
and key personnel, like management and I BRI ERS A
production project training, aiming at constantly B RREBNITFERRE-
improving the overall quality of employees, so as to
maintain sustainable business development in the
future.
For the reporting period, a total of 369 (2020: 141) REREHARN #3699 (ZZE-F
of our employees received trainings with an average F14)BE T EXFH3.05
of 3.05 (2020: 6.35) training hours. Our training (ZZE-FF:6.35) @A/NFEE
statistics of employees are as follows:. Fle- BRI B TasE sl ATt B an
T
2021 2020
—B--F it St 222

Number of Number of

headcount  Percentage headcount Percentage
Employee received training ¥HI&T ETAY Bk BIAH BAL
By gender BRI
Male Co 256 69.4% 64 45.4%
Female it 13 30.6% 77 54.6%
By employment category  #Z{E{EEFI
Senior Management BREEE 6 1.6% - -
Middle Management RRERE 85 23.0% 4 29.1%
Staff = 278 75.4% 100 70.9%

N
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Average training hours 2021 2020
per employee BURETHZINFH —E-—F —ETTHF
By gender &1 Bl

Male B4 3.3 10.3
Female pegis 2.8 3.1
By employment category RERER

Senior management SREEE 2.0 -
Middle management RREIRE 2.7 4.6
Staff 81T 3.2 7.1
Labour Standards B4. T %E|

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced B5 1k B T ] % 26 45 B

Labour

To prevent illegal employment of child labour,
underage and forced labour, the Group has
established a well-developed mechanism. The
employee manual stipulates that selected candidates
must meet the legal age. Before confirming the
employment, the human resources department of
the Group will require applicants to provide valid
identity documents to ensure that they are legally
employed and fully in compliance with the latest
relevant laws and regulations prohibiting child
labour and forced labour. The Group also conducts
regular inspection and review of the implementation
of human resources policies to eliminate child
labour and forced labour.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant provisions
of the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and the “The Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, and set reasonable
working hours and leaves for employees pursuant
to local employment ordinances and employment
contracts with employees. The Group has installed a
human resources computerized attendance system
for effective management of staff working hours
and vacation dates. If overtime work is required,
employees may obtain appropriate overtime
payment or compensatory leave under the relevant
employment contract or labour legislation. To
prevent forced overtime work, overtime must be
agreed by employees voluntarily. During office
hours, employees are allowed to move freely within
the factory or office area (except prohibited special
areas), and it is not mandatory for employees to live
in the factory quarters.
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Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to sustainable
and reliable supply chain to ensure sustainable
enterprise development. The Group has formulated
and implemented supplier management system.
Regarding supplier selection, the Group conducts
qualification inspection, factory visit and other
assessment processes on potential suppliers with
the principles of fairness, impartiality, openness
and honesty. Inspection areas include the
production capacity, product quality, service quality,
environmental protection, occupational health and
safety of the supplier.

In order to avoid issues such as varied quality of
products and non-standardisation of materials,
the goods and materials provided by suppliers
are detected by the internal department of the
Group or third-party testing organisations, so as
to select qualified suppliers. Besides, the relevant
departments conduct annual re-evaluation and
assessment on the qualified suppliers for the
supervision of product quality. At the same time,
the Group closely monitors procurement process
to ensure that the procured products meet the
requirements of production technology and product
quality.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a total of
433 suppliers (2020: 296 suppliers). Among them,
425 suppliers (2020: 287 suppliers) are from the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan),
and the remaining 8 (2020: 9) are from overseas.

The Group does not include environmental and
social factors as assessment criteria of our suppliers.
Nevertheless, we will review and terminate the
business relationship with the suppliers should
there be press and media coverage on the negative
environmental and social impacts caused by them,
such as excessive pollutions and discharges to the
environment, unfair treatment, exploitation of
workers and product safety incidents.
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B6. Product Responsibility

Quality Management

The Group attaches great importance to product
quality and safety, strictly abides by the “Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”,
formulates and implements quality policies to
ensure product quality. The Group has obtained
ISO9001 quality management system certification
in 2003. During the process of mass production,
quality control personnel performs sampling
tests on raw materials, semi-finished goods and
finished goods for tracking and identification of
any potentially inferior products and preventing
problematic material misuse in production. All
finished products must be specifically checked
before packaging to ensure they are qualified.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
did not receive any complaints from regulatory
authorities or consumers regarding product safety
and did not recover any products due to product
safety and health reasons. The Group is not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters related to products
sold during the year.

Data Privacy and Intellectual Property
Protection

The Group maintains close and good business
relationships with product distributors, highly
protects the privacy and business secrets of
distributors and strives to ensure timely response to
the feedback of customers and instant response to
product inquiries. Unless prior approval is obtained,
employees shall not disclose any price-sensitive
information relating to the customers, product
distributors, intangible assets, business secrets of
the Group which may come to their knowledge
during their employment or after termination of
their employment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The promotion activities of the Group's products are
carried out by advertising agencies in accordance
with the Group’s policy of privacy, its business
strategy, and the “Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the
“Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

The Group strictly abides by the “Trademark Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, “Patent Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, and other relevant
laws and regulations relating to intellectual property
protection. Apart from manufacturing customers’
products, the Group has also established its own
brands. The Group has implemented internal
policies to eliminate the risk of infringing customers’
and third parties’ intellectual property in its design,
research, development and manufacturing processes
as well as protecting its own rights. The Group’s
design and development team shall ensure their
designs are not identical and do not bear a close
resemblance to the products of any other customers
or those in the public market. In addition, measures
have been adopted to facilitate the management
and protection of intellectual property, for example,
using password-protected computers to store
products’ information, encrypting files in the
transmission process and prohibiting employees
from taking out product prototypes and samples
without permission.
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B7. Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the core value of integrity
and strictly abides by the provisions of the
“Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and the “Interim Provisions on
Banning of Commercial Bribery” and other relevant
laws and regulations. The Group has formulated
“Personnel Management Regulations” and other
related systems to standardise various business
activities. An internal monitoring system is set up
for strengthening anti-fraud, anti-extortion, anti-
corruption, anti-money laundering and bribery
supervision, while a whistle-blowing mechanism
and a reward and punishment committee are also
set up to strengthen management and promote
compliance, so as to prevent and eliminate fraud,
extortion, bribery and corruptions on various
aspects of operation and management. The
Group prohibits any acts of fraud, extortion,
corruption and bribery, prohibits employees from
taking advantages of their powers and duties
for corruption, embezzlement, encroachment
of corporate property, acceptance of bribes and
kickbacks, etc. Through various measures like
training and promotion, the Group strengthens
the communication with employees in respect
of internal control and anti-fraud, anti-extortion,
anti-corruption, anti-commercial bribery, so as to
enhance their awareness in this regard.

The Group has formulated supplier relationship
guidelines and government authority relationship
guidelines. Standard professional code of ethics and
conduct is formulated for the communication with
business partners, suppliers, customers, etc. and
employees are required to follow strictly.

When there is any alleged case in violation of laws,
regulations or Group's policies, the Group will
investigate and impose disciplinary actions upon
offenders after verification.

During the year, the Group did not notice any non-
compliance of the applicable laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption and did not face any
disciplinary action with respect to corruption issues.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Community
Community Investment

The Group strives to implement corporate social
responsibility and actively participates in public
welfare activities. No formal policy on community
investment has been established. Nevertheless, the
Group contributed to the charity and public welfare
undertakings through organising blood donation,
and continuously encourages its employees to
participate in charitable events during the year.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBEFK

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung, aged 52, has been appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group since 26 February 2021. Before the re-designation, he
had been appointed as the executive Director, Vice-Chairman
of the Board and the authorised representative under the
Listing Rules with effect from 3 February 2015. Mr. Leung
holds a degree of bachelor of arts in Business Studies from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a degree of master
in Business Administration from the University of New South
Wales. He has 30 years of extensive experience in business
administration in domestic and overseas markets. Mr. Leung
joined 2D Material Technology Company Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the chief executive
officer in November 2014.

Mr. Zheng Jingdong

Mr. Zheng Jingdong, aged 56, is an executive Director of the
Company. Before the re-designation on 26 February 2021, Mr.
Zheng had been appointed as a Director since 21 July 2008,
and had been appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an executive Director and
the authorised representative under the Listing Rules since 10
May 2013. Mr. Zheng has more than 20 years of experience
in the slipper business in the PRC. He has been appointed as a
director of Quanzhou Baofeng since 28 March 2007 and as a
director of BAOF International Limited since 21 July 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Dr. Xu Zhi

Dr. Xu Zhi, aged 55, has been appointed as the executive
Director of the Board and Chief Technology Officer of the
Group with effect from 26 February 2021. He is an expert in
the areas of semiconductor equipment and processing, and
solar technology. Dr. Xu obtained a Doctor of Philosophy in
Materials Science and Engineering from The Leland Stanford
Junior University in June 1998. Prior to joining the Group,
Dr. Xu had worked in Applied Materials, Inc. for more than
a decade with his last positions as senior manager and
senior member of technical staff and participated in the
research and development of plasma-enhanced chemical
vapor deposition and low pressure chemical vapor deposition
system. He subsequently worked for the position of senior
manager and senior member of technical staff at the branch
office of Applied Materials, Inc. in China. He then became
a distinguished professor and doctoral tutor in Hunan
University and was elected as a State Specially Recruited
Expert and engaged in the relevant research on graphene
and nanomaterial and developed a series of graphene related
products. Dr. Xu joined the Group as a technical consultant in
December 2015 and has been the technical director of Xinfeng
2D (Fujian) Material Technology Company Limited (422 371&
WM EREBRARAT), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, since September 2017. He is responsible for
leading the research and development team of the Group in
the research and development of material technology and
applications.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBEFK

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Lin Weihuan

Ms. Lin Weihuan, aged 40, has been appointed as the non-
executive Director since 7 January 2016. Ms. Lin obtained a
bachelor of business degree in financial management from
La Trobe University in Melbourne, Australia in 2005. She
later obtained a master of business degree in professional
accounting from Victoria University in Melbourne, Australia in
2006. Ms. Lin has over ten years of experience in accounting.
She is now the sole director and sole shareholder of Total
Shine Investments Limited (“Total Shine”) which is principally
engaged in investment business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. An Na

Ms. An Na, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2010. She has been an executive
editor of A EI# T 2 H fx4t (China Light Industry Press) since
1982. She has also been a vice president of 1t& (}mEE)
MFE4L (Beijing Rayli Magazine House) since 2003 at which
she has been responsible for managing and coordinating the
publication of several fashion magazines. In August 2015,
she resigned her post in Beijing Rayli Magazine House. She
received an editor’s qualification from B E A & EEBE
% 89 (State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission) in 2002. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering with a major in the study of leather from Fa1L#E T
% 207 (Northwest Institute of Light Industry) (now known as
BRFAEHE K2 (Shaanxi University of Science and Technology))
in 1982.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Chen Shaohua

Mr. Chen Shaohua, aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 3 February 2015.
Mr. Chen graduated from the Open University of China (B
K ) (previously known as China Central Radio and TV
University (R ZEIEER KXE)), and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Management majoring in Accounting from Beijing
Technology and Business University (1t 3 L& A£) in 2010.
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA) and qualified as certified assets valuer,
certified tax agent, certified real estate valuer, certified cost
engineer and certified land valuer in the PRC. Mr. Chen is a
senior accountant and senior economist in the PRC. He has
over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, audit and
tax matters. Mr. Chen is currently the executive director and
legal representative of auditing firm, tax company, asset and
property valuation company in the PRC.

Professor Zhao Jinbao

Professor Zhao Jinbao, aged 58, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 3 February
2015. Professor Zhao graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology (Y& T % K £) of the PRC and obtained a
bachelor of engineering degree in Electrochemistry in 1984
and a master’'s degree in High Polymer Materials Engineering
in 1987. Professor Zhao further obtained a doctor’'s degree
in Engineering from Kyoto University in Japan in 1996. He
has been a distinguished professor of Physical Chemistry in
the Xiamen University (BP9 AE) of the PRC since 2011. He
has over 30 years of extensive experience in research and
development in the field of engineering and chemistry and was
recruited as one of the experts in The Recruitment Program of
Global Experts (850 @ X A Bl # 5T 31).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group commenced its business of Photovoltaic Products in
early 2021. Apart from that, there were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 and a discussion on the Group's future
business development and its principal risks and uncertainties
are provided in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the “Five-Year Financial Summary” on page 4 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group always pays attention to environmental protection.
Details of the environmental policies and performance of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries, particularly in the
PRC and Hong Kong, applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
employees and is periodically reviewed with reference to
industry practice. Discretionary bonuses and share options
may be awarded to employees according to the assessment
of individual performance. During the year under review, the
Group considered the relationship with employees was good
and the turnover rate is acceptable.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its
immediate and long-term goals. The Group has been working
continuously with its suppliers to improve the standard of
raw materials and aiming at delivering products with high
quality to its customers. All key customers and suppliers have
a close and long term relationship with the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or
customers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 89 to 212.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 30 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, sales to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 86.8% of
the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 55.2%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 34.8% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
17.6% of the total purchases for the year.

Two of the five largest customers were Gold Stone (Fujian)
Energy Company Limited (“Gold Stone Energy”) and JP-Solar
Power (Fujian) Company Ltd. (“JP-Solar”) in which Ms. Zhang
Bihong (“Ms. Zhang”), who holds approximately 6.07% of the
Company’s issued share capital, has equity interests in Gold
Stone Energy and JP-Solar.

Except as described above, none of the Directors or any
of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Chairman and the Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

e  Executive Directors:

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (re-designated from
Vice-chairman to Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer on 26 February 2021)

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong

Dr. XU Zhi (appointed as Chief Technology Officer on
26 February 2021)

e Non-Executive Director:
Ms. LIN Weihuan

¢ Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAQ Jinbao
Mr. CHEN Shaohua

Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and (2), at each AGM one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election. In accordance with Articles 84(1) and (2), Mr.
Leung Tsz Chung, Ms. Lin Weihuan and Mr. Chen Shaohua
shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM. Being eligible,
Mr. Leung Tsz Chung, Ms. Lin Weihuan and Mr. Chen Shaohua
will offer themselves for re-election as an executive Director,
a non-executive Director and an independent non-executive
Director, respectively, at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
60 to 63 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of 3 years, which will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three-month notice
in writing served by either party on the other. The details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors are revealed on note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors had entered, or was proposing to
enter, into any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by the Articles.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, the Directors and officers of the Group shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from or against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors was materially interested, directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, contract or arrangement during
the year which is significant in relation to the business of the
Group.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates
had any material interest in business which competed or might
compete with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company referred to therein; or
(iii) pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

Interests in the Shares and underlying Shares:

Name of Directors

BEEnS BEORESENE

Capacity and nature of interest
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EEEHE

EERFERITHRAERKRD - HHE
ROoOREESPNEZER AR

R_ZE-—F+-_A=+—H EFKAK
NAIEBITHRABRARNT REBE LB
(EERBHRBEGMN (TEHREBERK
Bl]) EBEXVES) B9 R% 1 18 BE AR 0 K (& HE &
PR )VREBEESFRBAEGAEXVERET R
F8N EAME AN |) N A PR 2 J2 %
B (BIEREES KEE GO E B Ow
EERRAEENERIAE)  (NRIEFE
R EAE B 535218 B 72 ARZ Pl F
RAEFERE LA R MAR - 2ii)
RE ET R BT SR 0FT S AV IZ E ST B AV IR
ERENMEARRT) RERTHER XX R R
T

RIRG R ABEEKR G AR

Number of
Shares/underlying
Shares (other than

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Beneficial owner

BEaSHEAA

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (re-
designated from Vice-
chairman to Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer
on 26 February 2021)

RFHREE(RZTE_—F
Z“RAZ+XBHRAIXFEAT
REFEFRITHABE)

Beneficial owner

BEaSBEAA

Dr. XU Zhi (appointed on
26 February 2021)

FEBL(RZZTEZ—F
Z“RAZ+BEZE)

Ms. LIN Weihuan (“Ms. Lin") @ Interest in controlled corporation

MEBLZ L ([Hrx])@ T4 A B ) #E 25

share options) held capital®
s, HER

7 (BREN) (EERTE BT

g A =AY

6,000,000(L) 0.36%

10,800,000(L) 0.65%

233,155,792(L) 14.03%
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Long positions in share options of the Company:

RAERBEREFHEFE:
Percentage of
the Company'’s

Number of share issued share

Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest options held® capital®
EAEQNFEBRITR

EEnA SR ERME FEEREZE® =l A

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong Beneficial owner 500,000(L) 0.03%

BREEE BB A

Dr. XU Zhi Beneficial owner 24,800,000(L) 1.49%

AFEEL ExnEAA

Notes: ffat -

(1 The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021 (i.e. 1,661,909,608
shares).

(2) Ms. Lin is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Total
Shine is interested.

(3) These represent the number of shares which will be allotted
and issued to the respective Directors upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each of them under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 8 January 2011
(“2011 Share Option Scheme”). Accordingly, each of them was
regarded as interested in the underlying Shares.

(4) The letter “L" denotes a long position in the Shares or
underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

(1 LB IBRER-_ZT=-—F+=
AZ+—BWMEZETRMOHEE (A
1,661,909,608f% ) 5t & -

(2)  ME LR "M Total Shinefr i
AR -

) LABBEARARBEARFAR-T——F
—ANBRANBRESS ([ ZF——
FREESS DR TSESNERERE
TTEE TR R H A 3 M BT D 8K o
FHt - ER AR AR D h A -

@ FEILIRTRRG ARG & 17

A
=

R EXRBEEN R_F_—F+_A
ST B BEEFEREIZTHRAERA
RAHEAEMBAREE (& RESF LY
BIRPIEXVER) BB tn - IR D KB E
T BEAEAOREE S KA ERDFEXV
BB 7 RS8N BR R IR ZA AN E AN A A e B
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SHARE OPTIONS OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

Details of share options of the Company are included in the
section “Share Option Schemes” below and also shown in
note 31 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted the 2011 Share Option Scheme and
2021 Share Option Scheme on 8 January 2011 and 2 July
2021 respectively. Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and 2021 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 214,750,000
accumulated total outstanding share options under the 2011
Share Option Scheme. Save for the aforementioned share
options, the Company does not have any other outstanding
share options.

The following table discloses the outstanding share options
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2021:
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BREE A EURER
AR B A 2 BB B S [ B AR T
Bl —&6 - BNERH BHEREMEI -

BRESE
ARABHR=F——F—ANAR=F
——Ft AT BRA T —— ERRRT

k= T*—E%Hﬂgﬁiﬂ"ﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁrgﬂ
M BENGEA M RRME3

RZE-Z—F+_A=+—8 ' ARFN=
T——FHEREFEP R RITEZER
1A $£214,750,00017 © Br it B8 R #E S
AN B A 4 A fA] B At 1A R 7T A B AR o

TREBER-T-—F+-A=+—A%
— T —EERAE T BE T MR TR
B 4

Number of share options
BhRHE

Outstanding
Outstanding ~ Granted ~ Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed asat 31 Exercise price
Date of asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise per share
grant” January 2021 year year year year 021 period? (HKS)

RZB=-£ RZB=-£
-5-8 t2R=1-A SRITRE
Name or Category of participants SRANREIEN REAH HATE ERRH fif  EhdE  ERAY  HRGE  AEEY (A7)

Executive Directors yfrgs

ZHENG Jingdong g2% 19/6/2018 300,000 - - - - 300,000 K 0.54
19/612018 200,000 - - - - 200,000 L 0.54
XU Zhi #% 24612016 1,620,000 - (1,620,000) - - - A 067
24/6/2016 2,160,000 - (2,160,000 - - - B 0.67
24/6/2016 2,700,000 - (2,700,000) - - - ( 0.67
24/6/2016 2,160,000 - (2,160,000) - - - D 067
24062016 2,160,000 - (2160000) - - - t 067
19/612018 6,480,000 - - - 6,480,000 K 0.54
1962018 4320,000 - - - - 4320000 L 054
2211012020 8,400,000 - - - - 8,400,000 M 055
2211012020 5,600,000 - - - - 5,600,000 N 055

Sub-tota st 36,100,000 - (10,800,000 - - 25,300,000
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Nurber of share options
BRERA

Qutstanding
Qutstanding ~ Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed as at 31 Exercise price
Date of asat1 duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe  December  Exercise pershare
grant” January 2021 year year year year 2001 period (HKS)

Ho8z-% H-gz-%
-f-8 tZAz1-A SREE

Name or Category of participants SEANBATEN RiRY HETE  ERRL  EAGE  EAZE  ERKY HETE  fERY (%7)

Employees s

240612016 26,040,000 - (25,920,000) - (120,000 - A 067
240612016 17,440,000 - (17,280,000) - {160,000) - B 067
240612016 200,000 - - - (200,000 - ( 067
24062016 160,000 - - - (160,000 - D 067
24062016 160,000 - - (160,000 - E 067
16122016 75,000 - 000) - - - F 099
16122016 100,000 - (100,000) - - - G 099
16122016 125,000 - (125,000 - - - H 099
16122016 100,000 - (100,000) - - - \ 099
16/122016 100,000 - (100,000 - - - J 099
19/6/2018 34,200,000 - (2,760,000 - - 31,440,000 K 0.54
19/6/2018 22,800,000 - (1,79 OOO) - - 21,010,000 L 054
2211012020 42,000,000 - - - 42,000,000 M 055
2201012020 28,000,000 - - - - 28,000,000 N 055
Sub-total It 171,500,000 - (48,250,000) - (800,000) 122,450,000
Consultants B

240612016 18,000,000 - (18,000,000) - - - A 067
24062016 12,000,000 - (12,000,000) - - - B 067
16122016 1,350,000 - {1,350,000) - - - F 099
16/122016 1,800,000 - {1,800,000) - - - G 099

16/122016 2,250,000 (2,250,000) - - - H 099

16122016 1,800,000 - {1,800,000) - - - \ 099
1o/ /20 6 1,800,000 - (1800 000) - - - J 099

19/6/201 24,000,000 - - - 24000000 K 0.54
19/6/20W8 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000 L 054
22/1012020 16,200,000 - - - - 16200000 M 055

22/1012020 10,800,000 - - - - 10,800,000 N 055

Sub-total I 106,000,000 - (39,000,000) - - 67,000,000

Total a5 313,600,000 - (98,050,000) - (800,000) 214,750,000

Notes: Wt 5t -

1. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before the date 1. BEHRBERFEBASH -Z /‘Ti/‘*\ﬂ
of grant on 24 June 2016, 16 December 2016, 19 June 2018 ——HT_EAEl —E—RKE+ H—f—/\E
and 22 October 2020 were HK$0.69, HK$0.99, HK$0.50 and T-NEAATNBR-E-TEF+A
HK$0.50 respectively. _"I' H ATEY U1 (8 9 Bl 720.697 7T

0.99% 7T+ 0.507% 7T &0.50/% 7T ©
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The respective exercise periods of the share options granted
are as follows:

A: From 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021,

B: From 24 June 2017 to 23 June 2021,

C: From 24 June 2018 to 23 June 2021;

D: From 24 June 2019 to 23 June 2021;

E: From 24 June 2020 to 23 June 2021;

F: From 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021;
G: From 16 December 2017 to 15 December 2021;
H: From 16 December 2018 to 15 December 2021;

From 16 December 2019 to 15 December 2021;

J: From 16 December 2020 to 15 December 2021;

K: From 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023;

L: From 19 June 2019 to 18 June 2023;

M: From 22 October 2020 to 21 October 2025; and

N: From 22 October 2021 to 21 October 2025.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

Exercise condition: Provided always that a grantee of share
options shall remain as a Director, an employee or a consultant
of the Group, at the time of exercise of his or her share
options.

The number and/or exercise price of the share options may be
subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other changes in the Company’s share capital.

The weighted average share price immediately before the
dates of exercise for share options exercised during the year
was HK$6.13.
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” above,
at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors
and chief executives of the Company, the following persons
or corporations (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as
follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares:

Capacity and nature of

EEREROVEEENZH

FREXTEFREZITERABRERMD
HERD REEIETOERRE] R
(BT S FHAIREEIN RFR
TARE TERTERNEFARSTS
BEHEBIAKNFEFLEBBBELRARF
i EEEMESHN D BN KF
N ETEEMEREEN: BEAQA
HERAr g EERNEBRQFRRR
MBARBME LCEEAERFEM
Hi A ANBEErEREENZ Tk

FERRREMALIRERMORMAE
ERGOFHEZERKXR

RZE-—F+-_A=+—HH BEENX
KRB EBITERABRA AT AL
(BEFBHARBEEZTHABRIN IR
NEEBERODPHEESERAIEEREE
RIEB S REERPIEXVEIE2 %37 &5
BEXERARNBEERELRIBIEES X
B EKPIE336KATHREN T LMK A
SITHNERRABZERRABIAT

REROREBROTHERZR XA

Percentage of the

Number of Shares/ Company’s issued

Name interests underlying Shares share capital®
Bt MAEQREET
%8 BORERMEE HERGE B BRAEBZL®
Mr. Chiu Hsin-Wang (“Mr. Chiu”) @ Interest in controlled 251,256,365 (L) 15.12%
corporation/beneficial
owner
ERFTAE S 4 (TRBSE4]) ™ sl B MR B
A A
Market Dragon Investments Interest in controlled 240,656,365 (L) 14.48%

Limited (“Market Dragon”) @ corporation

A ) B 2
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Capacity and nature of
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Number of Shares/

EEEHE

Percentage of the
Company’s issued

Name interests underlying Shares‘'? share capital®
gt P NN TR &y
= BERRERME HEIR B EE BAEFDLE®
Best Mark International Limited Beneficial owner 240,656,365 (L) 14.48%
("Best Mark”) @ EmEA A
Total Shine @ Beneficial owner 233,155,792 (L) 14.03%
Enla A
Ms. Lin @ Interest in controlled 233,155,792 (L) 14.03%
corporation
AL L@ FryE sl =B R e
Bluestone Technologies (Cayman)  Beneficial owner 220,000,000 (L) 13.24%
Limited (“Bluestone”) ©
ERRRE(HE)E8RATF EnlEE A
([ER])®
Mr. Zhuang Chaohui ® Interest in controlled 220,000,000 (L) 13.24%
corporation
HBREE SO FriZ &)= B A i e
Venus Capital Fund © Beneficial owner 100,800,000 (L) 6.07%
EnlEE A
Venus Capital Management Interest in controlled 100,800,000 (L) 6.07%
Company Limited corporation
P42 )% B My i
Ms. Zhang © Interest in controlled 100,800,000 (L) 6.07%
corporation
REZE® Friz s =B R
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Notes:

)

Mr. Chiu directly holds 600,000 Shares and is interested in
10,000,000 Shares by virtue of the share options granted to
him under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and is also deemed
to be interested in the 240,656,365 Shares held by Best Mark.
Best Mark is indirectly wholly owned and controlled by Mr.
Chiu through Market Dragon.

Market Dragon wholly owns Best Mark and is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Best Mark is interested.

Best Mark is interested in 240,656,365 Shares.

Total Shine is interested in 233,155,792 Shares. Ms. Lin,
who wholly owns and controls Total Shine, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Total Shine is interested.

Bluestone is interested in 220,000,000 Shares. Mr. Zhuang
Chaohui, who wholly owns and controls Bluestone, is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Bluestone is interested.

Venus Capital Fund is interested in 100,800,000 Shares.

Venus Capital Management Company Limited wholly owns
Venus Capital Fund and is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Venus Capital Fund is interested.

Ms. Zhang, who wholly owns and controls Venus Capital
Management Company Limited, is deemed to be interested
in the Shares in which Venus Capital Management Company
Limited is interested.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number
of Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021 (i.e. 1,661,909,608
Shares).

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares
or underlying Shares.

Fff & -

(10)

Ef %5 4 & # #5 5600,0000% I 5 A &
ERRE-_T - —FEREFERT
% 2 B B% 4 110,000,000 % f% 17 A %
B TR AR Best MarkiT B 2
240,656,3650% % 17 9 #% B # 2 © Best
Mark /B B 5t 4 i i Market Dragonf# £
BB MZES

Market DragonZ & # 4 Best Mark " #45%
737 Best Mark P& ) 1 #E A #E a ©

Best Mark240,656,3650% i 10 & # &

Mo

Total Shine233,155,792 8% I& 17 &
B ML+ (28 %A M H Total
Shine ) # % A Total ShinePT# i% (7
AR -

B 72220,000,0000% AR R A #E %5 o
HEAREL A (2 EHA MITFIER) R
BREOHERMN P HELER -

Venus Capital Fund 100,800,000/ %
MR ARER -

Venus Capital Management Company
Limited% & % & Venus Capital Fund * #
B AF Venus Capital FundfTid B0 & 4
AR -

SR+ EREAB KZEHVenus Capital
Management Company Limited * #1% &
# Venus Capital Management Company
Limited P45 B £ 7 % A #E &2 o

ZEAETDRER T —F+=
A=+—BEe &kt Be (8
1,661,909,608/% i 17 ) 5T & -

FE L] RKZALTPFER D A8 B AL
[ZESESI
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company was
aware of any other person (other than the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company) or corporation which had,
or was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and be recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transaction was entered into or in existence
during the year. The related party transactions disclosed in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted the 2011 Share Option Scheme and
the 2021 Share Option Scheme to motivate and reward its
Directors and eligible participants. Details of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and the 2021 Share Option Scheme are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
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AUDITOR

Confucius International CPA Limited will retire and a resolution
for their re-appointment as the Company’s auditor is to be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Leung Tsz Chung
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B % AR S

BIN-CHNA
RREBRFTENFH AR

TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY
TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 89 to 212, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Confucius International CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M %z BT 3R &

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

New Business Development

The Group had developed new business of producing
photovoltaic products by utilising casting technology
to produce cast monocrystalline silicon (“Cast-mono”)
wafers, which was then used to manufacture Cast-mono
heterojunction solar cells. In setting up the production facility,
the Group incorporated indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries in
Xuzhou and Quanzhou in April and August 2021 respectively
for the business of manufacturing and sales of photovoltaic
products. We identified the new business development as key
audit matter as the Group has put material resource to the
development of photovoltaic business, which was material and
gave rise to higher assessed risk of material misstatement to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, there were property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB60,839,000, trade and bills
receivables of approximately RMB29,300,000, deposits of
acquisition of equipment of approximately RMB38,001,000,
inventories of approximately RMB66,615,000 and other assets
of approximately RMB8,615,000 respectively are related to
photovoltaic products.

Revenue of approximately RMB44,834,000 from sales of
photovoltaic products and provision of technology licensing
service have been recognised.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to new business development
include:

o understanding of the group’s strategy, project
development and cost allocation of the new business to
assess the reasonableness of the resources allocated;

o understanding, evaluating and validating the operating
effectiveness of the controls over additions of property,
plant and equipment and control on selecting the
supplier;

HRETER
FARETFARRERMANERHE R
HAREEMBRRNEARREEZNS
R mEFRAERMBAERBES MR
REBABRRETREN BT SHZ
SEHREHERER -

MRBRR

EEEDERAENKERZINER  BIA
RisEdiTEEERER((BEDEA A
BEERANREEERTEAGRED -
BYAERER EXER_ZT-_—FN
ﬂ&)\ﬂe 3R IR M KRN B S B 2
BNBAR RERERHEHELARERSE
e ﬁTWE‘E‘k%‘JE'J*ﬁ%ﬁ?*@ﬁf%fk%ﬁ%

B-EAR EREDRARERERERILNR
X% HERSEARZRLASIE HEEEK
BB ERR 2 BARMFT (4 R A A g1t
&

EA_;:—EJr:H =+—H 9% BE

B4 AR #60,839,0007T  FEUW E 5
*h&ﬁuﬂz%w% # A R #29,300,0007T
ﬁ%% Q2 Ee 4 AR 38,001,0007T

FEHARYEE6,615,0005T & EAMEEL
AE#8,615,000T0 B EYARE BER -

EERREBHEE N NRER MIEEITRE
Ae 7% 2 Wz #) AR #44,834,0007T °

BN ESTONEEERENSHE
BT EBERETZREFEE

s TH BEEEMEBIRE EEH
BRERADEAFEADEERZE
Bt

o TR -FHEARERYE WEKZE
INB G IR ER 21T 28
YERC

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2021



Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
(continued)

o performing substantive tests of property, plant and
equipment additions during the year on a sample basis
by examining relevant documents to evaluate whether
additions have been properly capitalized and recorded,;

o performing physical stock take and inspection over the
relevant property, plant and equipment and inventories;

o discussing with the management about and assessing
the reasonableness of the net realisable value of the
inventories based on current market conditions, product
life cycle, marketing and promotion plans, sales records,
aging analysis and subsequent sales of the inventories;

o assessing the background check over the counterparties
of the transactions on sampling basis; and

o obtaining audit confirmation of the balance of such
deposits or any other material balances.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the
transactions of the new photovoltaic products business were
supported by available evidence.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

At 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount of the
Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB88,048,000, net of allowance for credit losses of
approximately RMB1,367,000, which was material to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The allowance was
assessed individually with a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings. The assessment of expected credit losses of trade
receivables involved significant management judgement and
estimation including their assessment of customers’ current
financial position and forward-looking information.

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the
management considers the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of the trade receivables.

Details of the trade receivables are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

o obtaining an understanding of the Group's procedures
on setting of credit limits and credit periods given to
customers with the management;

o evaluating the design and implementation of controls
over the accounting process of making allowance for
credit losses and evaluated management’s assumptions
and judgement by comparing to the historical collection
trends;

o checking the accuracy of preparation of the aging
analysis of trade receivables by customers by tracing the
data back to the source documents;

o checking on a sampling basis, the debtors’ historical
payment pattern and the bank receipts for the payments
received subsequent to the reporting period,;

o checking on a sampling basis, the evidence including
correspondence with the debtors for the latest progress
of the outstanding amounts; and

o assessing the expected credit loss provision methodology,
examining the key data inputs on a sampling basis and
reviewing the key assumptions used to determine the
expected credit losses, including both historical and
forward-looking information.

We found that the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the recoverability of trade
receivables were supportable by credible evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Valuation and impairment of inventories

We identified the valuation and impairment of inventories as
a key audit matter because the carrying amount of inventories
was significant and the assessment of recoverability of the
carrying amount involved significant judgement and estimation
uncertainty.

At 31 December 2021, inventories of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB110,659,000, which represented
approximately 19% of total assets of the Group. As described
in the accounting policies in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements, inventories are carried at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. The net realisable value
of inventory could be impacted by changes in economic
conditions as well as changes in customers’ preferences and
competitor strategies in responses to changes in market
conditions.

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised the reversal of write-down
of inventories amounting to approximately RMB3,382,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
valuation and impairment of inventories include:

o Understanding the Group’s key controls in relation
to the identification of slow-moving inventories and
measurement of the allowance for inventories;

o Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of
inventories to their net realisable value through a detailed
review of sales subsequent to the year end. When there
are no subsequent sales, assessing and examining the
assumptions and estimates applied by management
in determining the net realisable value of inventories
including discussing with the management for the
assumptions and judgement made in assessing net
realisable values;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
(continued)

o Observed the physical condition of samples of inventories
during attendance of stock take conducted by
management to identify any slow-moving or damaged
items;

o Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s
calculations of the impairment allowance for inventories;
and

o Checked the accuracy of inventory aging used by
management to estimate the appropriate provision for
slow-moving and obsolete inventories on a sample basis.

Valuation of investment properties

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements
at 31 December 2021, the Group had investment properties
held by a subsidiary of approximately RMB66,116,000 and for
which a loss arising on change in fair value of approximately
RMB4,763,000 was recognised and presented as “Fair value
loss on investment properties” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The fair
value was determined by management with reference to the
valuations performed by independent professional property
valuer (the “Valuer”) engaged by the Group.

The valuation of investment properties was considered as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgements involved in determining the inputs
used in the valuation.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Our procedures in relation to the valuations of investment
properties included:

o evaluating the competence, capabilities, independence
and objectivity of the Valuers;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

o obtaining and reviewing the valuation report prepared by
the Valuers;

o discussing the valuations with management and the
Valuers and challenging key estimates adopted and
inputs used in the valuations, including those relating
to market selling prices, market rents and capitalisation
rates, by comparing them with historical rates and market
observable data;

o evaluating the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and parameters
based on our knowledge of other property valuations for
similar types of properties; and

o checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data
used in the valuations on a sample basis.

We found the key assumptions used in management’s
valuation of investment properties were supported by available
evidence.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, but does not
included the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors;

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ho Yuen, Gary
Practising Certificate Number: PO1316

Hong Kong
30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RERBERHEMEZERE KR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B et ARBT T AREEFTT
REVENUE U &5 6 313,506 111,869
Cost of sales HER A (224,989) (93,866)
GROSS PROFIT EF 88,517 18,003
Other net income and gains H AW A e W 25558 6 32,486 13,651
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEWE 5 R FORE B 18 (648) (527)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE L DB Y (10,559) (7,922)
General and administrative expenses —M RATE RS (88,530) (59,744)
Amortisation of intangible assets B 18 (107) (12,280)
Impairment loss on intangible assets mYEEREBRE 18 - (64,842)
Finance costs BLE AR 7 (5,572) (5,912)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair  IZAF(EFFABZRZ
value through profit or loss TRBEEZ AFE
Wz 707 _
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment BEYEZ N FE
properties (F518),/ W 16 (4,763) 14,073
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ATRE,(EiE) 8 11,531 (105,500)
Income tax expense FT{S i 2 11 (2,308) (3,256)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AND KATEE AEML
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FRFE(BE)RF
(EXPENSES) FOR THE YEAR AEEKRE(BI%)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF s
THE COMPANY 12 9,223 (108,756)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BRER(&HR) 14
— Basic (RMB cent) —HERNARESD) 0.579 (7.315)
— Diluted (RMB cent) —EBE(AR%D) 0.512 (7.315)

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.

REFHBERENGAMERERMEE3 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB OIR R &

As at 31 December 2021 R-_ZFE—-—®F+_H=+—H
2021 2020
B ZE-TF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
izt AR¥ETT AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WE NRE 15 85,401 28,125
Investment properties KEYE 16 66,116 60,029
Right-of-use assets FHESE 17 8,479 4,533
Intangible assets EVEE 18 881 154
160,877 92,841
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 7 19 110,659 39,127
Trade and bills receivables EWE ZEF RN E R 20 88,340 44,454
Prepayments, deposits and other BRI - Re REMERKIE
receivables 21 79,883 14,813
Financial assets at fair value through AT (EFABR 2 S REE
profit or loss 22 707 -
Pledged deposits EERER 23 426 3,780
Cash and bank balances We MRS 23 135,794 625
415,809 102,799
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables e E SRR RENRE 24 88,867 65,705
Deposits received, other payables Biize - A FIER
and accruals et E R 25 70,835 38,926
Short term borrowings RHEE 26 100,441 130,140
Contract liabilities ERAaE 694 -
Deferred income EEA 27 3,912 -
Lease liabilities HE&E 28 2,325 131
Income tax payable FER PTG TR 1,400 -
268,474 234,902
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) #REEE (&&)FE 147,335 (132,103)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERABER
LIABILITIES 308,212 (39,262)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

As at 31 December 2021 W _-_ZFE-——4+_A=4+—H

2021 2020
—E-—& —ZT-TF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
fifat AR®TR ARETTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred income EREWRA 27 16,208 -
Lease liabilities HEAR 28 2,144 211
Deferred tax liability EERIBERE 29 5,024 5,416
23,376 5,627
NET ASSETS/(NET LIABILITIES) BERE(BEFE) 284,836 (44,889)
EQUITY R
Share capital N 30 110,606 99,310
Reserves E] 174,230 (144,199)
TOTAL EQUITY/(CAPITAL BmaE(EXEM)

DEFICIENCY) 284,836 (44,889)
The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 212 FIE2NEMEFRAUHEHRRLESTIR
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of T CF=ZA=+tAH#ERSENE I
directors on 30 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by: HATALTREREE -

LEUNG Tsz Chung ZHENG Jingdong
RFH BMER
Director Director

2 EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEaRgH X

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-—F-—F+-A=+—HILEE

rE =

Statutory ~ Exchange  Capital Share
Share Share Contributed ~ surplus  fluctuation redemption  options  Accumulated Total Total
capital ~ premium  surplus fund  reserve  reseve  reserve losses ~ reserves equity
iERs  EXR® ERRE  BRE
Rx  RHEE EERR  0Ee i i B ZiEE  RBHE  RREE
Notes  RMB'00  RMBOOD  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RWB'000  RMB'000
Wi \R®Tn ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note 30) (note 320))  (note 32(i))  (note 32/ii)
(Hi30) () () (isa)
At 1 January 2020 W-E-EE-F-B 9310 59443 141376 95478 155 54 4709 (930400 (51330 47978
Loss and total comprehensive expenses  EREER2EER
for the year g - - - - - - - (108756)  (108,75)  (108756)
Equity-settled share-based payments — ZREEEL
BORERMNG 3 - - - - - - 158 - 15889 15899
Lapse of share options BlErH 3 - - - - - - BBy 13239 - -
At 31 December 2020 and 53
1 January 2021 tZAZ1-ER
ZEC-E-f-A 9310 59443 141376 95478 155 54 49749 (105917)  (144199)  (44,889)
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ ERHER2 A
for the year e - - - - - - - 9213 9213 9213
Completon of subscripton and TR RIERR
placing of new shares 30 505 253541 - - - - - - 253541 258591
lsue of shares upon eecise of Wl ERiEe
share options ik 0 6246 68625 - - - - (18.90) - 4935 55,881
Fouity-setted share-based payments ~ RIRIEE )
RhREROME 3 - - - - - S ;1 - BB 6030
Lapse of share options BRESH 31 - - - - - - (189) 189 - -
At 31 December 2021 iut
+ZB=1-A 110606 916602 141376 95,478 155 54 36,600 (1016505 174230 284,836
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i aF AR® T ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELATRE,(BE) 11,531 (105,500)
Adjustments for: Y RIEFAE
Interest income A B A 6 (82) (43)
Interest expenses MEFRX 7 5,559 5,912
Depreciation of property, plant and M WE NEREITE
equipment 15 8,671 6,217
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 17 954 750
Gain on termination of lease RIEE RS (5) (24)
Amortisation of intangible assets & 18 107 12,280
Loss on disposals of items of HEWE BB K&
property, plant and equipment REBEEEE 1,500 614
Impairment loss on intangible B EERERBE
assets 18 - 64,842
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEW B 5 R RORE B 1B 648 527
Reversal of write-down of 15 &R B ]
inventories (3,382) (896)
Equity-settled share-based R EE ARG,
payments BEMER 6,030 15,889
Fair value gain on financial assets at BATEEFABZDZZ
fair value through profit or loss LB EY NFEEWE (707) -
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment A7 N FE
properties B (a) 16 4,763 (14,073)
Operating cash flow before changes BEESEEA L LE
in working capital HeEnse 35,587 (13,505)
Increase in inventories FEEN (68,150) (8,864)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JEWE SRR N EREZE
0 (44,534) (197)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERT IR - e R E MR
deposits and other receivables FIE (G M), R (27,069) 24,206
Increase in trade and bills payables JEN B SR R ENZE
il 23,162 8,849
Decrease in deposits received, other B iire - H b B FRIE K&
payables and accruals JESTE R (1,644) (12,627)
Increase in deferred income PEEUL A IZAN 20,120 -
Increase in contract liabilities AREEEN 694 -
Cash used in operations KERTARE (61,834) (2,138)
Interest received 2B 82 43
Enterprise income taxes paid EEEER (1,300) (497)
Net cash flows used in operating RETHMARESRERHE
activities (63,052) (2,592)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—FT-_—F1-_A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B-—-F —T-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
i aF AR®T T ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE WENMKREER
and equipment 15 (68,242) (9,820)
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE WEREBEE
property, plant and equipment HEiEe 21 (38,001) (625)
Addition of investment properties gAY 16 (10,850) -
Purchases and addition of intangible BB LA E
assets 18 (834) (21)
Proceeds from disposals of items of TEME  WMENMREEB
property, plant and equipment FriS 8 795 81
Withdrawal of pledged deposits ?EHXE%TTW?%K 3,354 75
Net cash flows used in investing REZEBTARSREFH
activities (113,778) (10,310)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from the subscription and R RS ARATS RIR
placing of new shares 258,591 -
Proceed from issue of new shares AT R AR AR B B 1T 3T AR P
upon exercise of share options BFIAE 55,881 -
Drawdown of new short term ?EHX%)TL%@%%
borrowings 35 133,600 148,140
Repayments of short term borrowings BEEHEE 35 (163,299) (132,200)
Repayments of principal of lease EEMEAELS
liabilities (768) (602)
Deposits received for placing of new BELEFIRIZ S
shares 25 32,704 -
Interest paid ERFE (4,710) (5,912)
Net cash flows generated from METEBBRSRETFHE
financing activities 311,999 9,426
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRASESEYEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2)F5 135,169 (3,476)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRE MR EEY
beginning of year 625 4,101
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRASRRESEEY
END OF YEAR 135,794 625
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBESEEVERIT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHER 135,794 625
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Golden Solar New Energy Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of
the annual report. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 January 2011 (the
“Listing Date").

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) commenced its business
of cast monocrystalline silicon (“Cast-mono”) wafers
and Cast-mono heterojunction (“HJT") solar cells and
modules (collectively as “Photovoltaic Products”) in early
2021. Apart from that, there were no significant changes
in the nature of principal activities of the Group during
the year.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 29 June
2021 and the Certificate of Incorporation on Change
of Name issued by the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman Islands on 30 June 2021, the English name of
the Company had been changed from “Baofeng Modern
International Holdings Company Limited” to “Golden
Solar New Energy Technology Holdings Limited” and its
dual foreign name in Chinese has been changed from
"B B B RERBR AR to" 2GR ER A
RaA".

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company are Best Mark International
Limited (“Best Mark”) and Market Dragon Investments
Limited, respectively, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Its ultimate controlling party
is Mr. Chiu Hsin-Wang.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs")

The Group has applied the following revised IFRSs which
include IFRSs and International Accounting Standards
("1ASs") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 phase 2
and IFRS 16

The application of the above amendments to IFRSs in
the current year does not have any material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ®RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

F& R R R] B A2 5T B PR B 35 3R
SEA(ERMBREE
R D)

© 1875 {B fef R 4 R A #7 5T RARAERT
B PR P B 3R 5 2 R

NS E MR AT B 28 MR 1E
RERRFNR] MARIER] BRI 5 3R 5

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS
1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

Insurance Contracts and
related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimate?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract'

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020'

8

BB B T A 2 B
175

BB B T R A A2 R
EELHCCHEN)

BB B 7 A 2 B
105 RER e
ERIE 285 (BT AK)

REFTERIE 15
(BFIA)

REFTERIE 1R
B B B 7S 2 A B
ERLESNR

(BEIA)

B2 R85
(BEIA)

[

(

u

N

NERTERF 125
{ERTA)

B e ERIE 163
SHES)

ARG RTERIEITH
CHES)

BRIt 5 4R 5 B
SCHES)

RiA A RABRERT
BEIER R

RAEREBEAT
RABDE RN
BEHERLEA

B EEEBRE
I

SHUEHE

BE-QHELNE
ERAERBNE
THE?

R — e AT
MR

BRAN-ETEH
R

BRI B 2R =
T-\FE-FT-

TEFENE

! RZFE__F—-HA—BRZKHAH

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2022. ZEEHRER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZEBE-_=F— A —H=2&EHR
January 2023. ZEEHRER -

3 Effective date to be determined. 3 FFEEERBH-

KANREERABERZET ME(E
AIBIBR B TSRS R T e AR S B
BT EKEATE -

The directors of the Company consider the application of
the new and amendments to IFRSs would not have any
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE



i

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all the applicable individual
IFRSs which includes all applicable individual IFRSs, IASs
and Interpretations issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) which are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policy set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the market at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments,
leasing transactions that are accounted with IFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS
2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

3.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

For investment properties which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs
is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 1

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

Going concern

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

—  is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

3.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement
of financial position of the Company at cost less any
identified impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company as the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM"). The CODM, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

J the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the Group’s
promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a
right to access the Group’s intellectual property if all of
the following criteria are met:

. the contract requires, or the customer reasonably
expects, that the Group will undertake activities that
significantly affect the intellectual property to which
the customer has rights;

J the rights granted by the licence directly expose the
customer to any positive or negative effects of the
Group's activities; and

J those activities do not result in the transfer of a
good or a service to the customer as those activities
occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group accounts for the
promise to grant a licence as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Otherwise, the Group considers the
grant of licence as providing the customers the right to
use the Group’s intellectual property and the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time at which the
licence is granted

A contract asset represents the Group’'s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (i.e.
sales-based licensing income of the Company), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will
be entitled using the most likely amount, which better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group
will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.

Notwithstanding the above criteria, the Group shall
recognise revenue for a sales-based or usage-based
royalty promised in exchange for a license of intellectual
property only when (or as) the later of the following
events occurs:

J the subsequent sale or usage occurs; and
J the performance obligation to which some or all

of the sales-based or usage-based royalty has been
allocated has been satisfied (or partially satisfied).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment or properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments
to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use asset and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment
property but are under construction are presented in
“Right-of-use assets” and reclassified as investment
properties upon the completion of construction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

J the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

J the lease payments change due to changes in
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021/2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying IFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments
are accounted for as variable lease payments. The related
lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the
event occurs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
leases. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred
by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the
initial measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the year, in which case, the exchange rate prevailing at the
dates of the transaction are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are recognised as an
expense as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Retirement benefit costs (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are required
to participate in central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiary is required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
the profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for
benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Deferred rental income

Deferred rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss as other income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Deferred
rental income from a tenant to be released within one
year has been included as deferred income under current
liabilities.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently
payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit/(loss) before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—FT—-—4F+_-_H=+—HIFE

TESTTHR#E

BE(E)
BELERBREDHREERHME AR
ELNERRERZE TIAER B
FEARSEAERI TR ZENLD B
It RS ZE B AE A R 2R A RE T B
Bl - 8 5% F 1% & N i A8 B 2 AT HUR
ERERMELCREENAEE 2
A R] B2 J2 50 8 SR B A 7] AR 1R 1R 55
ERER 2 M WA R#R
BEMER TS T AR

EIEH B A B EER S RS
R AR T B R 4 R SR
B Pl oA e 3 IR 2 20 S 0 5 B R0
YRS, -

BELERBEENBEREREHMAR
ERMREEDBHBOHR (LB
E) WiEREREBEREREENR
BEHEROR RS-

EERIBRABREENE  REA
EEEZHRMAREHREFBELE
ENMBERIENTT AMEHNHRSE
‘R

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2021



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings are
tangible assets held for use in the production or supply
of goods or for administrative purposes other than
properties under construction in progress as described
below are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, as the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Properties in the course of construction for properties
held to earn rental and/or for capital appreciation are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction for that purpose are recognised
in property, plant and equipment and transferred
to investment properties upon the completion of
construction.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties also include leasehold land
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets upon
application of IFRS 16.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs and patents are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on a
systematic basis with reference to projected sales volume,
upon future sales volume of related products.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in
the period when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets including
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful life to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful life are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such
indication exists, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment losses on non-financial assets
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overheads expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are
assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of
weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks or
other financial institutions and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of damages in
value, and having been within three months of maturing
of acquisition.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other net income and
gains” line item.

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

3. FESTHHR#E

SRMTAE)
CHEE (&)
CREEZSERAEHNE (&)

(i)  BESHACA SR B HA
HRWEHEK AT EZ EREE
HA B WA T E R BRI ZET
PARERR » KB WAL B B ¥ — I8
TREERAMAERRERTX
AEEEROREEREZE
BMEERINE T -HERE
REERECEMEEMS 8
TSR FESWATIE S
HEREE B HKANERERA
KT UHER - WEERESRT
Az EERRTE ELREE
THLEREERE REETEE
THEREERER BHREH
FIRER SWATIE B ERE
EE AR A B FE BRI R T LARE

2
7o

(i) BAFEFABRDZZEREE
TRERBHERATAEREZS
MEERNFEAARRTE -

BAFEFABZZERMEER
BREHR 2 AFEFE  EA
N EY EE B B RN 1R i R
R N iB s A RER 2 Wt Sk B 1R
FEEENEREERDZEM
P B A B EF AT H AR YA
Kol et a8 | —H o

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE

_a—
23



i
-
124

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets
(including trade and bills receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged deposits and bank balances and cash) which are
subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables which are assessed individually with a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’'s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 6
months past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2021

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 365 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2021

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the aging
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status; and

° Nature, size and industry of debtor.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management

to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

J such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9/IAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
deposit received, other payables and accruals, short
term borrowings and lease liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
share options reserve.

The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve. For
share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are lapsed after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(a)
(b)

(0)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

(0

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
that are not readily apparent for other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Certain properties of the Group comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals and another portion that is held
for use in the supply of goods and for administrative
purposes. As the portion that is held to earn rentals
is small and could not be sold separately and the
portion that is held for use in supply of goods and for
administrative purposes is significant, the properties are
not classified as investment properties.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
a subsidiary in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdiction is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend, where the Group considered
that if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiary in
the PRC will not be distributed in the foreseeable future,
then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to the ones previously estimated,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

4.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets was
approximately RMB85,401,000 (2020: RMB28,125,000)
and RMB8,479,000 (2020: RMB4,533,000) respectively. The
directors of the Company consider that no impairment loss
is required in respect of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible asset are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amounts
of the Group’s intangible asset was approximately
RMB881,000 (2020: RMB154,000). Impairment loss
on intangible assets for approximately RMB64,842,000
was recognised in profit or loss in 2020. There was no
impairment loss on intangible assets was recognised in
profit or loss as at 31 December 2021.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling merchandise of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste or competitor actions. The Group
reassesses these estimates at the end of the reporting
period. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of inventories was approximately RMB110,659,000
(2020: RMB39,127,000), net of allowance for write-
down inventories of approximately RMB249,000 (2020:
RMB3,631,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
past due analysis as groupings of various debtors on
this basis which demonstrate similar loss patterns with
shared credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
trade receivables was approximately RMB88,340,000,
net of allowance for credit losses of approximately
RMB1,367,000 (2020: RMB44,454,000, net of allowance
for credit losses of RMB1,179,000).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December 2021 at
their fair value of approximately RMB66,116,000 (2020:
RMB60,029,000). The fair value was based on a valuation
on these properties conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company,
being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance, focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating
segments are as follows:

(@) the Boree branded products segment manufactures
and sells Boree branded slippers, sandals and casual
footwear (“Boree Products”);

(b) the graphene-based products segment applied
the technology know-how by applying graphene
in the production of graphene-based ethylene-
vinyl acetate (“EVA") foam material (“Graphene-
based EVA Foam Material”) and slippers, graphene
deodorizing and sterilizing chips for air purifiers and
air conditioners (“Sterilizing Chips”) and graphene
air sterilizers (collectively as “Graphene-based
Products”);

(¢) the Original Equipment Manufacturer ("OEM")
segment produces slippers for branding and resale
by others; and

4.

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

EXRGIHERMETAEER
EXFERF )

A TREREZENETERR(E)
BEYEE
NRZZE-_—F+_A=+—H8 &E&
W AR E TSR R E BB R &
BH AR 66,116,000 ( —Z 2 =%
F . AR%60,029,0007T)° AF{ETY
BIEBL AR BEEMBEMERS R
ATRERT SR WEDHERD
HYEER ZHE - BERZEF N
TRz EgBYAEB 2 IREME
NEFEREREEARGEERRE
HEEWARANESRZIBESEE -

7 EE

AAARES BEBLEEREE
2 RAREIRD B RV E D BRI
BRI TR RATR N ST H M E
SRR ARETE - AL
SRREESHIT :

() BAMEROIBEENRKLESR
e OREMKEE(NE AR
Ednl):

(b) 2RI E G BPE A BT KR AS
AEBEANEELRR LG-
FRBL 216 LB ([EVA D) B
FHIARIBEVAZ B K ) R
B BRZERFCHMERNA
SHEERMBECH(TRET
FDARAREZERKRE S (R
WRIAERER]:

(0 REHEREM(OEM]) 2 afE
EmEENAEEE &

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE




i
~
140

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d) the Photovoltaic Products segment manufactures
and sells Cast-mono wafers and Cast-mono HJT
solar cells and modules, and the provision of
technology licensing service.

CODM monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment result, which is a measure of adjusted result
before tax.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. The segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by or loss from each segment without allocation
of interest income, other unallocated net income and
gains, amortisation of intangible assets, impairment loss
on intangible assets, fair value gain on financial assets
at FVTPL, fair value change on investment properties,
finance costs as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses.

Segment assets exclude certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets,
certain prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, pledged deposits and cash and
bank balances as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude certain other payables and
accruals, short term borrowings, contract liabilities,
certain deferred income, income tax payable and deferred
tax liability as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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AR D ERRIRIZAI 2| D BBE
ARG e AR 2L AEERTA
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REBGETEER — 2 2 80 MK E

=

BHEE D MRBMAE N HELENE
BOEYESENSRA EtRD
WA R W a5 58 B B E N
BV EERERE HAFEFAR
RZEMEEZ N FEWRS REY
EZRVEZD BEKNARDE
KEMARD B

HRETYE BEEKRE KED
X BEE BTRNRE ZE2k
Hib U IR - I A FEFABRZ
TREE CDERFERMRE RIRTT
BHRORREBEREENEE W
PEFADBEE °

HRETEMBENREALESER
REEE - AaRAE B TETRA
ENMEHEMELEHRBRESD R
SEEmEENAE TR ADE
BE-

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2021



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

e M ®RNE

HEz—E-—F+_A=+—HIFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEERE
Segment revenues and results DU EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NTRIEFZ2HRKEDEE D ARE

results by reportable and operating segment.

B s e B AT

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E-—F+ZA=1+—HLEFE
Graphene-
Boree based Photovoltaic
Products Products OEM Products Total
EAE VaE--3:
Em ER RRER ok
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR%®Tx AR¥Tn
Segment revenue k16
Sales to external FIRREHE
customers 1,300 5,663 261,709 24,834 293,506
Provision of technology — $R 4t B M7 1% 4 R 7%
licensing service - - - 20,000 20,000
1,300 5,663 261,709 44,834 313,506
Segment results PHEE (673) (1,084) 45,676 24,440 68,359
Reconciliation: bl
Interest income FEBA 82
Other unallocated net  E RS B UA K
income and gains W g 32,399
Impairment loss on ENE RSB E
trade receivables B (648)
Corporate and other (¥ REMANE
unallocated expenses fi (78,926)
Amortisation of EMEESE
intangible assets (107)
Fair value gain on BRAFEFABREZ
financial assets at PREEYL
FVTPL AR ENIE 707
Fair value loss on RENME L LNTE
investment properties 518 (4,763)
Finance costs BB (5,572)
Profit before tax W 353 A I 11,531

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5.

HE-F_—F+A=1+—"HUFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7EPER (&
Segment revenues and results (continued) DTEHNEREE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZE-_ZEF+-A=+t—HLEE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
EUN: 26
Em Em G
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBEFTT AREFT AREFTRT ARBTT
Segment revenue i L6
Sales to external customers MINREFHE 2,025 4,154 105,690 111,869
Segment results DERE (3,082) 1,914 10,876 9,708
Reconciliation: R
Interest income B A 43
Other unallocated net income EH #b k5 B U A K k25
and gains HEE 13,608
Impairment loss on trade  EUE ZIRFUREEE
receivables (527)
Corporate and other PEREMRIERL
unallocated expenses (59,371)
Amortisation of intangible BREESE
assets (12,280)
Impairment loss on intangible 44 E R E & B
assets (64,842)
Fair value gain on investment & &% 7 A FEWE
properties 14,073
Finance costs AR AR (5,912)
Loss before tax BRI RS 18 (105,500)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

Year ended 31 December 2021

Graphene-

Boree based
Products Products
B AE 8%
Em Em

RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR

e M ®RNE

DERPER ()

THEERARE

AT REAZBRELHBEDAE
EEEERBEHW -

BE-E-_—H+-A=t—-HLEE

Photovoltaic

OEM Products Total
RRER g

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR%®TrR

117,890 203,370 340,388

236,298

576,686

69,320 32,506 103,331

Segment assets DEHEE 1,462 17,666
Reconciliation: #E
Corporate and other M2 & E it K 7 it

unallocated assets BE
Total assets BEBR
Segment liabilities 2 &E 2 1,503
Reconciliation: #EE:

Corporate and other (™% K E K 2 FS
unallocated liabilities & &

Total liabilities EEE

188,519

291,850

i
A
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7EPER(#E)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PEHEEREE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZE_ZEF+-A=1t—HLFE

Graphene-

Boree based
Products Products OEM Total

EUN A2
E Em HOEE)

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTT AREBTT ARETRL

Segment assets THEE 606 682 66,197 67,485
Reconciliation: R
Corporate and other TEREMAIEEE

unallocated assets 128,155
Total assets EEBRE 195,640
Segment liabilities SHEE 300 322 - 622
Reconciliation: #HE -
Corporate and other rEREMRSERRE

unallocated liabilities 239,907
Total liabilities B8 240,529

s
~
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e M ®RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. TEPER(#E)
Other segment information Hitt oy HER
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZE-_—F+-A=1t—HLHFE
Graphene-
Boree based Photovoltaic
Products Products OEM Products Total
EYN: BER
Em ER RRE R ok

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR  AR®TR  ARETR ARET:R

Included in segment 2 EBEF /(EE)

profit/(loss) are: B
Impairment loss on trade &Y E 5 85 ZUR B
receivables &8 10 - 638 - 648
Reversal of write-down T2 &% @l
of inventories (3,382) - - - (3,382)
(2,734)
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZE_ZEF+-A=1t—HLEFE
Graphene-
Boree based
Products Products OEM Total
E A VoY
Em Em FEES
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFT AREFTRT AR®TT
Included in segment SEEF(FE)BHE

profit/(loss) are:
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ EWE Z X CR{EEE
impairment loss on trade e/ RESE

receivables (32) 34 525 527

Reversal of write-down of FEMR B E
inventories (400) - (496) (896)
(369)

i
A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE—FT-_—F1-_A=1+—HILFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7EPER (&
Geographical information i EE R

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KREIIEEFEFH Wz
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEFITT
PRC (principal place of operations) R (B ERE) 51,473 8,778
United States of America (“US") EMRAERE([=E ) 252,261 97,515
South America M 576 123
Europe BM 3,790 2,061
South East Asia R 376 141
Other countries H =R 5,030 3,251
313,506 111,869

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

AW EERTEREFLEE

7 e

(b) ¥¢FRBEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZEITF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BT ARETTT

PRC (principal place of operations) FRE(EEEE2) 160,855 92,841
Hong Kong BB 22 -
160,877 92,841

The non-current assets information above is based

on the locations of the assets.

AEFRBEEEREREE
ESD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are
as follows:

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

DEER (&)

FEEFNEHR

REBFEE  RERFZKREGASE
BEAASEERE10% A EHEMT ¢

2021 2020

—B-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®EF T

Customer A ZEA 172,913 74,834
Customer B ZFB 53,707 15,066

The Group’s major customers are included in the OEM
segment.

REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
i) the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts, and ii) the provision of
technology licensing service.

AEETBEFPBEEEOEMDED

s - EAbUA R WS
Yk TREN A SR 0 4 28 AR ERE
NBEEERESMMBENEEES
BRI RINBESITRAERS -
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with customers

An analysis of revenue and other net income and

gains is as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

6. REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS 6. Uiz  HitUh A RS FEE
(continued) (&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) BEFEXRADE

W2k N B U A K2 I 25T F BB 2
Wran T

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Revenue W &
Recognised at a point in time AR — B R 2R
Manufacture and sale of goods FENEEER 293,506 111,869
Provision of technology licensing REHBIEERE
service 20,000 -
313,506 111,869
Other net income and gains Hi WA R Wz 588
Interest income FEHA 82 43
Sales of scrap materials SHEREE 35 _
Rental income from investment REMENHS A
properties 2,182 1,445
Rental income under operating leases #&&HEREALMES
WA 1,197 1,330
Subsidy income* AR A 1,207 3,298
Compensation for land resumption Bt B E 22,158 -
Over-provision for social security MHeRECHBERE 4,570 5,154
Reversal of long outstanding payables & HiR1E 8 fE 5 D 745 2,265
Rent concession HeER - 52
Gain on termination of lease BIEEE R 5 24
Others Hitn 305 40
32,486 13,651

* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

relating to these subsidies.

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2021

* YEABZFMMARE
PRAGIF SRR IE I ©



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ®RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

6. REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS 6. W%  Hitlm A R UK FEE

(continued) (&)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with (i) EFAHNBHER
customers
The Group sells its products directly to customers. AEEEERAEPHEREM-
The Group concluded that revenue is recognised REBERABRENE Y G EE
when control of the goods has transferred, being ERER BOEDEEMEL
when (i) the goods have been loaded on board for FEE  S(NEMEERE EE

export sales; or (ii) the goods have been shipped
out from the warehouse for local sales. Upon the
relevant goods are loaded on board for export sales
or shipped out from the warehouse for local sales,
the customers have full discretion over the manner
of distribution and price to sell the goods, and have
the primary responsibility for selling the goods and
bearing the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation
to the goods. The credit terms generally vary from
one to three months (2020: three to six months)
from the date of billing.

For licensing business, the performance obligation
provides the customers with a right to use the
Group’s technology know-how as they exist at the
point in time at which the license is granted. The
Group would receive a fixed non-refundable royalty
income and variable consideration of sales-based
royalty income when the subsequent sales occurs.
Other than transferring the technology know-how,
the Group is required to provide necessary training
before use of the technology by the customers.
Given there is no explicit or implied obligation for
the Group to undertake activities during the license
period to change the form or functionality of the
technology, or support or maintain the value of
the technology know-how, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the Group provided the
necessary training and transferred the technology
know-how.

HEEMEE - NABE RN
EROHES N R EELEE 1
HER BRFE2ERATEMN D
HIANMEE BAEEESE N
EEXTBEMT WHAEEER
F%mﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁaftwoa,ﬁﬁ@
ENTHEHHSEF ==

H(_E_7 F=EXREA)-
IIREEBEM S  BOEMEET

EERNEEREBRHBERA
& BT BT A B2 REF o K
SESKE —EETHNATRE
FArERBERA  UAREER
HERLERIAHE SRR ZFRT
REMBRAZATERE - fRHE
FEEMABIN AEBEAREP
158 P By A 12 g s B o)l - B
7R 62 (B 30 45 B R BX S R R IR R
%Wﬁﬁé@&“&ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ
£ R AN B
@ZTE B R R B R
0 2R B B B AR U R A B R

=7 o
e ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS

(continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

The Group generally collects 1) the full amount of
contracted royalty income when the technology
know-how are provided to customers with a credit
term of 90 days; and 2) sales-based royalty income
that are attributable to a license of the technology
know-how when the subsequent sales occurs.
For sales-based royalty, customers agree the sales
volume with the Group annually and settle the
royalty with a credit term of three months.

The amount for provision of technology licensing
service disclosed above do not include transaction
price allocated to performance obligations which
have been satisfied but not yet recognised due to
variable consideration constraint.

HE-F_—F+A=1+—"HUFE

6. Wi EbW AR W

(&)
(i)

BEFEHNBERNERE(E)

7N S B — MR )BT R B JE AR
HIEPR 2 2RE R ORTE
ERERA  FEHR/OKX : K
EELRBHERBNE LK
T NG 2 LA SHEE R AT 2 K AT AR
FERHEBA -BIAHERERZ
RrtiEERMENE  SFPEFHE
AREBEXTEHE LA=EADN
EERGEEHTEERE -

EXBER 2 RER MRS 2
SRTEEEPEERNEED
RH5ER BEETEEKER
AJ B (B R I 1 () AR HEERR)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (iii) PBFEFENRBBHOEL
performance obligation for contracts with ZRZE%
customers
All goods or services provided by the Group are FTEBASERE 2 EMHIRTE
for contracts with original expected duration of RAGTRITEE A —F AR
one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the 1R 45 B B B 7 ¥ 5 £ Bl 251558
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied ZERT BERESIREZS
contracts is not disclosed ERERHNZR5ERE-
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have RZBE-—F+-_A=+—8"
remaining performance obligations for contracts REBUVEZFPSOFBRBENE
with customers. £
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFTT
Interest on bank loans RITREMEEFE
and other borrowings 5,466 5,868
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 93 44
Effective interest on deferred rental BLEHESBAZERFE
income 13 -
5,572 5,912
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e M ®RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 8. MRBATFIE (BHR)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after AREBMNGRRATFE (EE)E N
charging/(crediting) the following items: B (Bt A)LATIBE -
2021 2020
—E--F —EB_THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERA 226,653 94,762
Cost of services AR 7% X A 1,718 -
Reversal of write-down of inventories 15 & MR B B (3.382) (896)
Cost of sales FHER A 224,989 93,866
Depreciation of property, plant and Y WEMEREITE
equipment 8,671 6,217
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 954 750
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 107 12,280
Employee benefit expenses (including EERIFAZ(BIEES
directors’ remuneration — note 9): B — PfEE9) :
Wages and salaries TERF® 66,274 44,513
Equity-settled share-based payments RS E DR GD
REREH R 6,030 15,889
Staff welfares EEEA 1,894 1,022
Contributions to retirement benefits RKRBAIGT B
schemes 4,156 3,192
78,354 64,616
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ERED BN 1,378 1,511
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EEREREE - 64,842
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEWE 5 R PR EE B 648 527
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEME BEKREREEEB
plant and equipment g 1,500 614
Exchange loss, net Rl =P SF K] 7,845 1,946
Research and development costs [EEIDRIN 18,873 14,055

i
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9. ESRFETHAEME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the WEEALETRE FEAFIEN &
years, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules, NEWEEEFMEER)BH(E
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Companies 622GE ) IR BENFEEERE 2T
(Disclosure of information about benefits of directors) BAEMEHMT :

Regulations (Cap. 622G), are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Fees (note a) & (note b) W (Kata) % (B 7Fb) 615 570
Other emoluments: Eife -
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in —¥&  EAEREY
kind (note b) & (note c) BF(HfaEb) & (Mfatc) 2,795 1,710
— Contributions to retirement benefits — RN EFET IR
schemes (note b) & (note c) (KtaEb) 2 (Bt itc) 68 51
- Equity-settled share-based payments —RREEEUARG RE
(note ¢) R R (B At c) 760 -
4,238 2,331

s
~
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'’
REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

9. EERFERITBAEME @)
g3

() BUFBITEES
REEONHENBIIFERTES

directors during the current year are as follows: MBI
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Ms. An Na pog i B 168 180
Professor Zhao Jinbao H RER 99 106
Mr. Chen Shaohua PR EESL A 165 177
432 463

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2020: Nil).

(b) Non-executive director
The fees paid or payable to non-executive director during

FA TEENBIIIFRTEEN
Hte (ZB_TF F) -

(b) FBITES
AREEENHENFERITEEN®

the current year are as follows: ST
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARETF T

Ms. Lin Weihuan: IR B 2

Fee we 99 107
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe FAREYRET 95 90
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes iR k18 F 51 2 (3% 13 13
207 210

Ms. Lin Weihuan was appointed as the financial
consultant of a subsidiary of the Company and her
emoluments disclosed include those for services rendered
by her as the financial consultant.

MEBLXTEZRER/ARAZ—H
BRI MEER £ Eie
BREE/YEERMIEHRREZ

N
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

9. ESERFEMTBAEME(H)

et (%)

(c) Executive directors and chief executive officer (0 BITESRITHAEAR

Salaries, Contributions

allowances  Equity-settled  to retirement

and benefits share-based benefits
Fees in kind payments schemes Total

BRELE

HeREER  NROREHR BHET
he ENEA HIES HE I3 ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AREF TR ARET TR ARET TR N S

Year ended 31 December 2021 ~ HBE-F=-%
TZRZt+-HLEEE

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung RERRE - 1,098 - 15 1,113
Mr. Zheng Jingdong LIPSyt - 350 - 26 376
Dr. Xu Zhi FEEL 84 1,252 760 14 2,110
84 2,700 760 55 3,599

Salaries, Contributions

allowances Equity-settled to retirement

and benefits share-based benefits
Fees inkind payments schemes Total

BRERE

He 2k NRHAEER RN
ik BN #f 5% BELS g%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE=ZF-%%
TZRZt+-BLEE

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung REmELE - 1,178 - 16 1,194
Mr. Zheng Jingdong PRRAE - 44 - n 464
- 1,620 - 38 1,658

There was no arrangement under which a director and
chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).
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e M ®RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEREHEES
The five highest paid employees during the year include FN A8 maTEETEMBAE
two directors and chief executive officer, (2020: nil) ENTHRAH(ZZE_ZF: &) ?R/Z
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 ERMNESFFIE %ZE"J:XFH&9 ViN/N
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the EHR="R(ZZTE_ZTF: ﬁ%)#%%
remaining three (2020: five) highest paid employee who FIETTHAEZN RS HREENAFEE
is neither a director nor chief executive officer of the RS FFIBT ¢

Company are as follow:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ”ﬁ AL M EYEA 2,675 2,211
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKAE T EI K
schemes 36 59
Equity-settled share-based payments 1R IR R E AR D
REREK 1,521 10,110
4,232 12,380
The remuneration of the remaining highest paid HB S HFEEZMENFUTE
employees are fallen within the following bands: :
Number of employees
EEHE
2021 2020
—B-—-F —T-TF
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR #500,0017C
2= AR ¥1,000,0007T 1 -
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR #1,000,0017C
% AR ¥1,500,0007T 1 -
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,0017C
= AR #2,000,0007T - -
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR #2,000,0017C
2= AR ¥2,500,0007C 1 4
RMB2,500,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR #2.500,0017C
% AR ¥3,000,0007T - -
RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000 AR #3,000,0017C
Z AR #3,500,0007T - 1

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

11.

BE—FT-_—F1-_A=1+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FIHAX
2021 2020
—E-—F —ERCEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥TT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EFEHR

Charge for the year FRE 2,699 200
Under—provisions in prior years BAFERBTE 1 197
Deferred tax IEIEFRIE (392) 2,859
Total tax expense for the year FARRIER 2,308 3,256

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for the year (2020: Nil). Taxes
on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated
at the prevailing rates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2020:
25%), except for one of the PRC subsidiaries which has
been granted Advanced and New Technology Enterprise
status which entitles the subsidiary to a reduced income
tax rate at 15% for 2020 and 2021.

HRAEERAFEER ST EES
TAMERFGF - W EELEFE
MEHBEB(—_F_FF: B) T E
H) B SR A M B IR O AR ¥R AR F%E’Jfﬁ/_
O BEMRERRERTEGE

RIERESEMRGSHE(BEMEH
EDREGEMBRIEZERED  BE
PR ERSFRMEEERNT
BEBAREHR T _TFR_F
T FZHI5%HREMEBRME
N BB A RIMBI R B25%(ZF
T 1 25%)e
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REMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to
the “profit/(loss) before tax” per consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

11. FiI8HiAZ (&)

FRMBERT EN) AT EFE B
MEMEEWERAEIOBRER
R (E518) | HEBRIN T -

below:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®EF T
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELATFDE (E518) 11,531 (105,500)
Tax at the applicable tax rates RERB R ERIE 12,552 (16,858)
Income not subject to tax BERMBA (31,277) (2,279)

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  ~a] AR T UL B B9 HEH
FIx 23,141 15,393

Tax effect of temporary differences RIERE M EZE 2RI
not recognised %4 (396) 2,859
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERHREBENRETE 672 3,944

Tax effect of tax loss utilised E B AR R EROTIIA
not previously recognised BRI E (2,385) -
Under-provision of income tax in prior years 3@7F & Fr1S R BT 2 1 197
Income tax expense for the year FRABEBRE 2,308 3,256

Pursuant to the income tax law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate for the withholding tax is
5% (2020: 5%). In estimating the withholding taxes
on dividends expected to be distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008, the directors of the
Company have made assessment based on the factors
which included dividend policy and the level of capital
and working capital required for the Group’s operations
in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax liability has
been provided for retained profit as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

BIEHPBFTERE - £ B SZ /951
BRERIIEREEST RN SAS
Hm%ﬁwm HERER=ZZZN
F-—A—BRBRAER - BRAR-_ZEZ+
F+_A=Z+—HENEF - HPEH
BINRICEEB R EEEMT AR
ALY - R A A TE R AL R A EBR
Ko AEEMBERBENHMRE B5%
“ETF 5%) (HETEFRBIKL
RBAREHM —_EENFE— A —
A AR AT B ER & I 2 R A9 B% B BT 28 B0 4N
MBI ARARESEEENZE
A=ELFTE 2EAEBRNRKREK
%&%ﬂﬁ%Xﬁ%lg@%ﬁm5

K& BEANKTE - REB W HETEZ
%mmﬂﬁ%LLﬁﬁﬁﬁ PEIES
$%l7¢ﬁ%@ﬁh§%M%%
BEREZFENA] RARRRA T2 &
@o
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

11.

12.

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

At 31 December 2021, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2020: Nil) for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries
expected to be distributed, after considering the
abovementioned factors, in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

At 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB27,850,000 (2020:
RMB34,700,000) available for offsetting against future
profits, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
included a loss of approximately RMB102,724,000 (2020:
RMB949,212,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 44(i)).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 and since the end of the
reporting period.

11.

12.

13.

R8s (&)
RZFZ_—F+HA=+—H &=
B LA EE L A REBA DR
AN AT B A B B AR BE H & ) A A
BHHME  WEERXKRERETH
HEE(ZEZZF : &)

AR 0 80 1L A RUTR o 0 58, 3 8
Frighi -

R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—0 K&
EMAHAHEEBEEOARE
27,850,000L( — T - T F : AR
34,700,0007T ) A] A A 3K 88 R 2R &
F BB PR 2R s MR S A TEORD - 3 A%
HEBEREEEERELEHBEEE
RIEESEA EREE -

RARFEREARGEE

HE2_E-_—F+-_A=+—HI#F
B ARBEBABEGREBEERIE
BB 4 AR #102,724,0000(—ZZE =
TF . AR#949,212,0007T ) &
NN A B RS R R B B (B RE44(3)) ©

Hﬁ 1%\
BEZE- K- -"FF+_-A1
—t+—BLEFEURBEZ2HRBRUR
WEERIRERE
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e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the consolidated profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB9,223,000 (2020: consolidated loss of
approximately RMB108,756,000) and the weighted
average number of the ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) of 1,591,515,624 (2020:
1,486,859,608) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of Shares used
to calculate the basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2021 included the
1,486,859,608 Shares in issue as at 1 January 2021,
98,050,000 Shares issued during the year in respect
of the exercise of share options and 20,000,000
Shares and 57,000,000 Shares issued in respect of
the completion of subscription and placing of new
Shares on 19 April 2021.

The weighted average number of Shares used to
calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2020 included the 1,486,859,608
Shares in issue as at 1 January 2020 and 31
December 2020.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the consolidated profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of Shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number
of Shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion
of all dilutive potential Shares into Shares.

14. 8REF,(F#E)

(a)

(b)

BREXEBF,(FHE)

EREARBFIERARRHEE
AEBEFAZEFEHARKE
9,223,000 L(=ZE-ZF : 54
BB 4 A R #108,756,0007T )
EFERNBEBTARREBR
([ B @m 1)z m#EFHY
1,591,515,624f% ( —ZE —FF :
1,486,859,608/% )51 & -

Rt Zz—S——F+—A
=t+—RIEFESRELRBNH
BB ZMEFHEBER-2F
T —-—fF—HEBEETH
1,486,859,608% i% 17+ # 1T 1
BREmMNRFEREITH
98,050,0000% f& 17 * A K FEFEAK
REMEEFROMA T =—
09 A+ 1H3#17#920,000,000
% B4 K257,000,000% B 15 -

BEstEEBE=—E-_ZF+=A
=t+—HIEFESRERNGED
Rz MEFHEBRER=Z=
?E A—BAR-Z-_ZTF+—
A=+ — 8B %17 M’
1,486,859,608 1% % 1n

SREBERF (FH8)
BRESRNIRERNABES
AR RERE FIE R AR 1ERT
BEERERBNAEANFAD
BITRAD 2 IHEF B ARR
R FTE B EHE D H I BAR 1E
BT @R RO R IRERE
BITROR DA IS BT & -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 14. ’-@Hﬁ%ﬂ/(%ﬁ)(%)
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (continued) (b) ERBERRN (FE)E)
A reconciliation of the weighted average number of HEGREERMNEFTBERG
Shares used in calculating the diluted earnings per DIREE SR -

share amount is as follows:

2021
—E-—4F
Number of
Shares
I 5 81 B
Weighted average number of Shares used in 5+ & & J& & 24 2 K| B B &9 B& 1D = hn e
the basic earnings per share calculation NSk 1,591,515,624
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BEBRTTBER I ZE 208,482,658
Weighted average number of Shares STESREE R T AT AR5 2 niE
used in the diluted earnings per Eig g
share calculation 1,799,998,282
During the year ended 31 December 2020, diluted HE_ZE-_TEF+_A=+—H
loss per share does not assume the exercise of the FFEE SRBEEERITSEAER
Company’s share options as the exercise of the TN NTIHEIRE  REZ
Company’s share options would result in a decrease TERATNERESEERER
in loss per share, and is regarded as anti-dilutive. R MR A EE o

s
~
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REMBERRWE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

15. ¥ -BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Plant and Motor  andofficc  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
B RER
BF BERHE RE  BLERE BEXE  HRIE L
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETT AR¥TT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR  ARETR
Cost: WA
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-ZF-f-H 45,243 30,898 1,359 7,403 18,968 20,004 123,875
Additions #10 - 3,330 - 13 2,210 4267 9,820
Transfer inflout) #A/(It) - 197 - - - ) (4074
Disposalsfwrite-off HE /i - (1,002) - H) (2,510 - (3,519)
At 31 December 2020 RZF-EF+-F
=f-H 45,243 33423 1,359 7,409 18,668 - 106,102
Accumulated depreciation: 5 E:
At 1 January 2020 RZ2-TE-H-H 39,147 17,879 1,268 6,200 10,030 - 74,584
Provided during the year ~ ERE & 2,521 1,925 21 245 1,505 . 6217
Eliminated on disposals/ HER /W
write-off - (904) - (7 (1,913) - (2,824)
At 31 December 2020 W-B-FE+-F
=t-H 41,668 18,900 1,289 6,493 9,622 - 71977
Net carrying amount: BREHE:
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-EETZF
=ft-H 3575 14,523 70 911 9,046 - 28,125
Cost: WA
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%5-A-F 45,243 33,423 1,359 7409 18,668 - 106,102
Additions £ - 4,510 155 306 2,415 60,856 68,242
Transfer inflout) g1/ (i) - 39,519 - - - (39,519) -
Disposalsfwrite-off HE /Wi - (11,104) - (481) (3917) - (15,502)
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F+Zf
=ft-H 45,243 66,348 1514 1,234 17,166 21,331 158,842
Accumulated depreciation: 5 E:
At 1 January 2021 K- —%-f-F 41,668 18,900 1,289 6,498 9,622 - 11911
Provided during the year ~ FR& & 1337 3,051 8 20 4,055 - 8,671
Himinated on disposals/ ~ HERH 3K/ 55
write-off - (8,836) - (454) (3.917) - (13,207)
At 31 December 2021 RZF--E+Zf
=f-H 43,005 13,115 1297 6,264 9,760 - 73,441
Net carrying amount: BREE:
At 31 December 2021 S
-T-H 2,238 53,233 217 970 7,406 21,331 85,401
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—FT—-—4F+_-_H=+—HIFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20 years

Plant and machinery 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
office equipment
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5 years

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are
held under medium term leases.

The Group has pledged buildings with a net carrying
value of approximately RMB2,238,000 (2020:
RMB3,575,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. V¥ BERREZ)

EWE - BB RREEB A TIIE

RIRHRETE -

BF FAHA R 20 2

BEE
BB Mtk gs 104

T 54

K- FKEN  3E5F

WAZRE

HERE HEAKRSF 2

BREE

AEENEFHMRFE - RIEH H

HERAE -

AEEEEMEBFEHARE
2,238,000t( —ZE T F: AR
3,575,0007T ) MIEFIE AR EBER

—RRIRTTREE M HE(R -

16. REWE

RMB'000
ARBTT
As at 1 January 2020 R_ZE-_TF—H—H -
Upon the completion of construction: I
Building-Transfer from property, BF-ERAYE WEMEE
plant and equipment 24,074
Land-Transfer from right-of-use assets T -EREEERAEEE 21,882
Fair value gain on investment properties WEMEZ A EWNE 14,073
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZ-_ZF+-_A=+—HK
—E-—F—H—H 60,029
Additions at cost I8 Rk 2N 10,850
Fair value loss on investment properties "EYE 2 N FEEE (4,763)
As at 31 December 2021 R=-B--%+=-A=+—H 66,116
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
Representing: HER:
Leasehold land HE LT 35,180 31,189
Building BT 30,936 28,840
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s properties located in the PRC are leased to
a third party to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 had been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Quanzhou Heyi
Assets and Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd, an independent
professional valuer. In estimating the fair value of the
investment properties, the management of the Group has
considered the highest and best use of the investment
properties.

The Group has pledged the leasehold land of investment
properties with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB35,180,000 (2020: RMB31,189,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group. The
building of investment properties with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB11,137,000 (2020:
RMB10,547,000) was pledged to secure loan facility from
an independent third party.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable.

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

16. REWME(#

AEBURFEZMERTE=TA
RBHESEEAIEERE

RZEZ—FR_F_FF+=A
=+ B AEEZEEVENRTF
BEERBYREXENGER - RN
mEEFERELMEEEREMT
NAETHE BHFREDENR
TEE AEEEEEBECERIUNES
EMEEFNEAZEREDE -

AEBEHEBAEAFEHDARE
35,180,000t( ZE=—ZF : AR
31,189,0007C ) 2 B EWEF M E
THEAAEEER —MRIRTTHEN
BERo %E%E%AE%H1NOW
T(ZE=FF : AR%¥10,547,000
T2 EMEFHEFEEMELE —
BRILFE=FERERBEMER-

FEBEzREMEQTETE

TERERESEREMERAFEEES
5 (R Bl 2 BT B% A B i (B il K B A
BUR) 2 ER ARIBRB A TEREZ
%A@FMT%%&F@F“%@J
EPBRBRARFESRZER(E
EZR)2ER -
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16.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)

Fair value Valuation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BE—_FT_—F+_A=+—HIFE

16. WEYM=R4)
FEBECRENEQIFENE(E)

Significant
unobservable

Relationship of
unobservable

Fair Value hierarchy techniques inputs and ranges inputs to fair value
#HUBR2
TEHUBR BAZBHR
AVYE AFEER HEFX ZBABEREE ATENBR
2021
—B--F
RMB'000
AREFTT
Investment properties 35,180 Level 3 Combination of (1) Benchmark land price: An increase in the benchmark
located in PRC - (2020: 31,189) cost method RMB636 (2020: RMB636)  land price would result in an
Leasehold land and income per square meter increase in fair value.
method
Investment properties 30,936 Level 3 Combination of (1) Newness rate of building:  An increase in the newness rate
located in PRC - (2020: 28,840) cost method 91%-93% of building would result in an
Building and income (2020: 93% - 95%) increase in fair value.
method
(2) Annual rate of return: An increase in the annual rate
7.20% (2020: 7.20%) of return would result in a
significant increase in fair
value.
(3) Rate of change of annual ~ An increase in the rate of
income: 1.0% change of annual income
(2020: 0.5%) would result in a significant
increase in fair value.
(4) Estimated market rent for  An increase in the estimated
similar building: RMB10 market rent for similar
(2020: RMB9.70) per building would result in an
square meter increase in fair value.
A B2 5 &M 35,180 H£=/&/  AAERMEE (1) EEME: tﬁ-)&%% HEMWE FAes|BATE
-HELTH (Z22%F: e pjol S e
31 189) NG
IR E R A% 30,936 =4 KAERMEZE (1) BFRIE91%-93% BFRHEELAEIIHATFE
—&F (Z2=%F: B (Z2-FF:93%-95%) /0
28,840)

i
~
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Q) FHREE:7.20%
(ZZ2ZZF :7.20%)

(3) FhEZE:1.0%
(ZZZTF :05%)

@) ETEREEFES
BERARBIOL(ZE=
ZF: AR¥E9.707T)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ®RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

17. EREEE

Land for
development

Leasehold of investment Leased
lands properties properties Total
REME
HELH FZ A HEME s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TE ARETR
Cost: B
At 1 January 2020 R-E-TF—H—H 4,488 22,466 1,712 28,666
Additions i - - 345 345
Write-off HsH - - (879) (879)
Transfer to investment properties  FA5ERER B EEE
on completion of construction wEYE - (22,466) - (22,466)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZE-ZTHF+-F=+—H
1 January 2021 k—E-—F—H—H 4,438 - 1,178 5,666
Additions i - - 5,134 5,134
Write-off g - - (1,178) (1,178)
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%+t=A=t-H 4,488 - 5,134 9,622
Accumulated depreciation: RHE:
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF—f—H 147 584 584 1,315
Provided for the year FERERB 147 - 603 750
Write-off 8 - - (348) (348)
Transfer to investment properties R A EREERZE
on completion of construction REME - (584) - (584)
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-FEHE+-A=1+—H
1 January 2021 —E-—%—-A-H 294 - 839 1,133
Provided for the year FREE 147 - 807 954
Write-off HsH - - (944) (944)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-5£+ZA=1+-H 441 - 702 1,143
Net carrying amount: REFE
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB=-$+ZA=t-H 4,047 - 4,432 8,479
At 31 December 2020 RZB-EFE+-F=1—H 4,194 - 339 4,533
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 17. ERAEEE &)

2021 2020
—B-—-F —T_THF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R AREEFITT

Expense relating to short-term leases 242 HAFAE M ARHAR12E AR

and other leases with lease terms TEMNEMHEEENFEX
end within 12 months 1,867 2,231

Total cash outflow for leases FNHEZRE R EEE

for the year 838 1,328
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BMILEE

020 Deferred
distribution development

Technology vending costs
Know-how system and patents Total
i S 5E B
0205 A
RitAE  BERS RER BE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARET:H
(notes a, ¢)  (notes b, ¢) (note d)

(Hita c) (Bib-c)  (Kitd)

Cost: B
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZTF—F[—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,577 1,740,095
Addition i - - 21 21

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZZZF

TZA=T-HRk

—E-—%—f—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,598 1,740,116
Addition s - - 834 834
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB=—-%

+= E‘I‘ A 1,587,518 60,000 93,432 1,740,950
Accumulated amortisation and i RAE

impairment:

At 1 January 2020 RN—_E-TF—H—H 1,526,518 44,000 92,322 1,662,840
Provided for the year FREE 9,632 2,526 122 12,280
Impairment loss for the year FRREERE 51,368 13,474 - 64,842
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZ=ZfF

+ZA=+—8k

2o —%—f—H 1,587,518 60,000 92,444 1,739,962
Provided for the year ENERE - - 107 107
At 31 December 2021 R-B--&

+ZA=+—-H 1,587,518 60,000 92,551 1,740,069
Net carrying amount: BREFE:
At 31 December 2021 R-B=--F

+=B=+-H - - 881 881
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF

+ZA=1t—-H - - 154 154
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—FT—-—4F+_-_H=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

It represented technological know-how in respect of
the application of graphene and includes one patent in
the US, four invention patent applications, three utility
model patent applications and two utility model patents
in the PRC, relating to the manufacturing of Graphene-
based EVA Foam Material, Sterilizing Chips and graphene-
based pressure-sensitive sensors and the exclusive formula
(collectively “Technology Know-how"), which was
acquired from Bluestone Technologies (Cayman) Limited,
an independent third party, in 2015. The completion date
of the transaction was 16 December 2015.

The Technology Know-how has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 10 years using the straight-line method.

In July 2016, the Group acquired the design of Online-
to-Offline (“020") distribution vending system at the
consideration of RMB60,000,000 from two independent
third parties. The directors of the Company consider
that the 020 distribution vending system would provide
customers with an interactive and unique shopping
experience, enhance the distribution channel of the
products made by the Group and establish the core
technical competitiveness of the Group.

The 020 distribution vending system has definite useful
lives and is amortised over 9 years using the straight-line
method.

The directors of the Company consider that 020
distribution vending system is a contributory asset
necessary to support the earnings associated with the
Technology Know-how, being the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates earnings that are largely
independent of the earnings from other assets.

In 2020, the directors of the Company conducted an
impairment assessment on the Technology Know-how
and the 020 distribution vending system with reference
to a valuation conducted by an independent professional
valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Technology Know-how and 020 distribution vending
system had been fully impaired for the year ended 31
December 2020 due to the uncertainty of the foreseeable
future.

18.

BVEEW

Hist

(a)
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DHEERFNEZT REAAR
#60,000,0007C ° A AR EERA -
Q20N HEERMARF RIS
MBRMEMERS mahAEE
EEZEGMOHERENELAE
B2 E N e

O20n HEERMEABERAEM
FH WABEREDIOFHH -

RAFEFRR 0200 HEE XL
BR—BVENERMEEE N
BT AE AR NELER
ABINEMBEERMNZBNK
NET R E EE AR R

R-ZBE-_ZF ARAEELEH
UEEGHEMXAFEZRAERR
AETT Z A (E 8 Bl &1 3 K 0207
HEERRETRER G AQF]
EERR RMHMBRO200 HE
ERXRERBE-_ZS-_TF+=A
=t—HEFERAEEREZD
EREMEBRE-
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19.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) In July 2016, the Group engaged several independent
third parties in the research and development of
manufacturing and application technology of graphene
material on Sterilizing Chips, energy storage materials for
batteries and pressure sensitive lighting devices for shoes
for approximately RMB92,000,000. The directors of the
Company seek the opportunities in applying the graphene
material in products other than shoes and plan to launch
in future.

The Sterilizing Chips has definite useful lives and is
amortised over 5 years using the straight-line method.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount
represented the cost of acquisition of patents for research
and development of manufacturing and application
technology of graphene material on certain products
and patents for research and development of Cast-mono

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

18- /\\\ﬁ/ﬁg(zﬁ
Kat - (&)

d) RZZE—R"ELA XEEEEYH
AR #92,000,000 T HE B 8148 37
BEZFMBEL2HEMERERER
FEBmEEMA k& B EKRA
HEMNEERERBEM - AQRE
EERBLRBEMBERRERE
SN G 2 WS o W AT B R R I
Hjo

SREEAERAFERSFH I
uﬁ@& 55 BB o

RZEZ—FRZF_FTF+A
=+—8" &EE%H%%E%%
MBRETERZEERERRII
ZEFRMEESER RESHIT
KPBZEE T R 4B 1 2 BRI Y IR BB AR

wafers and Cast-mono HJT solar cells and modules. 7N o

INVENTORIES 19. B8
2021 2020
—B-—-F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Raw materials and consumables BRI K OERE S 29,760 12,701
Work in progress ekl 66,058 8,016
Finished goods R SR 14,841 18,410
110,659 39,127

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
reversal of write-down of inventories of approximately
RMB3,382,000 (2020: RMB896,000) was recognised in
the profit or loss.

ﬁi_g:—$+—ﬂz+—5¢¢
£ RIBmARERNFERRE DL
AR #3,382,00000(ZE=FF : A
R #896,0007T)

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-F_—F+A=1+—"HUFE

20. BREZRIRKRERERS

2021 2020
—B=-—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREFTT
Trade receivables: RUE ZERK

— Sales of goods —HE MM 68,215 45,633

— Provision of technology licensing — IR ERRTS
service 21,200 -
Bills receivables JE U ZE 5 292 -
89,707 45,633
Less: Allowance for credit losses i EEEERE (1,367) (1,179)
88,340 44 454

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance for credit losses as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice dates,

REHFPR  AEERKE ZERAK
EUREEHREEBRRRBRRER
HEREI D RE DM ¢

is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —TFTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Within 3 months 3EAR 84,617 42,167
4 to 6 months 45 61E A 3,723 1,635
7 to 9 months 7Z291E A - 652
88,340 44,454
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables that are

20. ERE 7R KR EWRE (&
EEOESIEE SEACENT ST S 9

past due but not impaired: WEERBRER DT -
2021 2020
—B-—-F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMT T ARBF T

Past due but not impaired: EaHERRE

Within 3 months 3ME AR 7,831 970
4 to 6 months 4% 61E A - 55
7 to 9 months 7E91E A - 609
7,831 1,634

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period offered to its customers is
generally for a period of one to three months (2020:
three to six months). The Group seeks to apply strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group's trade and bills receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade and
bills receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
payment record, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Detail of impairment assessment of trade and bills
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in note 40.

AEBREFNEHGRRTEUEE
ET-MEPEENEEN KA —
E-EAA(ZZE_ZTF: 2 @
A REBHNBREERERENE
WkIE WRAEEEEEM R
ﬂiﬁf:féﬂM SREREE Bma

fEERe BN EXA BAKEZ
Fﬁ“ﬂﬂlf’f%ﬁﬁ AN R EEAE R
WEFAB MY EEAREREFER
B o 7N 55 B0 p EL B 5 AR A
SR TR EMIETEER
HE - EREZERNEREERA T
E#/%\O

E 8 BB SRR E 0 FE U IR S ) % {8
HAEEAERFERLENBULE
FoREBENRRE NRRRES
RE AR EEEARUESANRE

BZFEA DA R 280 E - SH
JRVEHRE B o

BE-_ZT-_—H+-A=1t—HLL#F
f“ FEWE 5 Bk S R R IR 2 R E
AHERFBE BN KT FE40

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. AR RERHMEBWE
RECEIVABLES 15
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®EF T
Prepayments: TEfIFRIA
— Prepayments to suppliers — [t ERE TR K 7,079 2,999
- Others —HAh 4,336 987
Deposits: e
— Acquisition of equipment —BEXRE 38,001 6,888
— Others —HAM 441 308
Other receivables: E A FEGRIR
— Rental receivable —ElES - 444
- Others —HM 16,133 414
Value-added Tax (“VAT") recoverable JERIBER ([EER]) 13,893 2,773
79,883 14,813
As at 31 December 2021, other than prepayments and RZEZ_—F+ZA=+—"8" KB
VAT recoverable which do not have any due dates, none AT B HE B A9 TE S 3008 & BRI (B
of the above assets is either past due or impaired (2020: WoON FiiEEMEABSRE(ZE
Nil). The other receivables have no recent history of T ) o Hofh FE IR IR (T HAD fE
default. R o8 o
Detail of impairment assessment of other receivables for 22—+ _HA=1+—HI#
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 40. [E - E b fE U TR IE 2 B G IS

AMEE40 ©

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. BAFEFABRZEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFABRZEREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
Forward contract REIED
— denominated in RMB —UARKEFE 707 -
The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are BB SRS 22 RSB 958 - Falls
mandatorily measured at FVTPL in accordance with IFRS MEERMERIMERGAIZATFET A
’ A5 -
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23.

24,

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND BANK
BALANCES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, bank deposits
amounting to approximately RMB426,000 (2020:
RMB3,780,000) have been pledged to secure bills payables
of approximately RMB1,420,000 (2020: RMB12,600,000)
(note 24).

At 31 December 2021, the amount denominated in RMB
included in cash and bank balances and pledged bank
deposits amounted to approximately RMB35,606,000
(2020: RMB3,971,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under the PRC Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Pledged deposits earned interest
at fixed rate ranging from 0.55% to 1.75% (2020:
1.55% to 1.75%) per annum. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no history of default. The pledged bank deposits will
be released upon the settlement of bills payables.

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

23. EERER RERRTELR

HE-_Z-_—F+_-_A=1+—HI#F
EBEHAREL26,0000(—ZF =
TE 0 AR¥3,780,0007T ) KR 1T1F
e A ANREE1,420,0000( = =
T AR#12,600,0007T ) &) FE 1t
SBREERERHTE24).

R-ZZB-—FE+-A=+—80"HUA
REFENIIRE RFTEBNIE LG
RITTFE R A Y A R¥35,606,0007T
(ZZ-ZT4F : AREE3,971,00070)°
ARBTAIEHRLBKEMER R
i+ AR 4% P B SMNEE B I 6 1) R 4 D -
EEMNIEEERT AEEEES
BEREEITIMEEBHIRITHEARKE
R E NS o

RITRESEEHRITERFEMERN
FEEXRF R EERFRILEER
0.55%ZE1.75%MWEEFMNE(=ZF
TEF 1.55%%1.75%) 5T 8 $R1T
EHRAEERGREREEEEAE
R B TT - EEHAIRTTER
1SR FE AT SRR 4 VB R BB o

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 24. EREZRFREMNEZRE
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT  ARMTFT
Trade payables JEE SRR 87,447 53,105
Bills payables FET IR 1,420 12,600
88,867 65,705

N
SBFLRNEERARAT —B-—FFERE 17g
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—-ZF—-—F+_-A=

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice dates, is as follows:

T—HIEFE

24. ERNESRARENREE &)
KWK AEEENESRAK
RN R TR B D 0RE AT
T

2021 2020

—E-—F —TE-TF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET R AREEFITT

Within 3 months 3MEAR 68,770 40,993
Over 3 months 3ME AL E 20,097 24,712
88,867 65,705

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on six months terms (2020: six
months). Bills payable of approximately RMB1,420,000
(2020: RMB12,600,000) were secured by the Group's
pledged deposits amounted to approximately
RMB426,000 (2020: RMB3,780,000) as at 31 December
2021.

25. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES

AND ACCRUALS

ENEBESERRENRETTE B
—BRANERA(ZZE=ZF : XEAR)
ANEE RN_ZE-_—FE+-A=+—
H AEEBEBDERTROAREK
426,000 —FE T F: AR
3,780,0007T ) A 4 A R 1,420,000
T(ZZEZFF : AR%12,600,000
TO) R R RBEL AR -

EWRE  HtEARERE
FTER

25.

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Deposits received: BliES :
— From customers —RERP - 300
— Others —E b 578 682
VAT payables FEATIBERT 503 6
Accruals FEETE R 22,117 11,922
Deposit received for placing of B WAL EFARIE R
new shares (note 42) (Bft42) 32,704 -
Amounts due to a director R —RESR
and a shareholder —ZREFIE 302 -
Other payables E e 58 13,671 25,905
Interest payables JERTH] S 960 (R
70,835 38,926
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

25. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS (continued)

All accruals and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

26.

Amounts due to a director and a shareholder represent

the salary and allowance due to a director and
consultancy service fee due to a shareholder.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

25 BEWiReE  HiENSRERE
FTERE)
FrE &R kAR RBERHRR
—FRNEE -
B —REERE R —BRENRIEE
RN —R2EEH2 REMREN—F
MR ARG E A -

26. EHIEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Secured bank loans repayable BAR—FN
within one year B3
Unsecured loans repayable AR —FANEE

within one year

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loans were
denominated in RMB and bore interest rates ranging
from:

Year ended 31 December 2021 4.35% t05.13%
per annum
Year ended 31 December 2020 4.35% t05.22%
per annum

At 31 December 2021, the secured bank loans of
the Group were secured by a pledge of the Group’s
buildings with carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,238,000 (2020: RMB3,575,000), leasehold
land of right-of-use assets and the leasehold
land of investment properties with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB4,047,000 (2020:
RMB4,194,000) and approximately RMB35,180,000
(2020: RMB31,189,000) respectively. In addition,
the bank loans were secured by guarantees
provided by an independent third party, a director of
the Company and his son.

) 42 1

BEMBEMRT

(b) 91,000 97,500

B
9,441 32,640
100,441 130,140
(a) RZBE-_—FR-_ZFE-_ZFTF+=
A=+ Elvféf?kiﬁu/\&ﬁﬁ%;r

B8 WIRATHBENEXRETE

HeE—_ZT—-—F HFH4.35%
+=—A=+—H Z5.13%
BE2_2-%%F  §F435%
+=Z—A=+—8” £5.22%

by RZEZ—F+=-HA=+—H"
REEDREEBRAMEOHAR
12,238,000 C(ZF=ZF : A
R #3,575,00070) EF  BR @
BHAREA047,0000(ZF =
TF : ARYEA,194,0007T) K 4
AR#35180,000c( —E =&
F : AR%31,189,0007T ) K {&F
REEETNHEL M RIEED
¥ E T EALAERAFIR
HIRTTEROER LI BE
RITERBR—BBLE= - —
AARAIEERAR FIRMHE
R e

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

27. DEFFERED INCOME

BE—FT-_—F1-_A=1+—HILFE

27. IEZEWA

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREEFTT
Deferred rental income ELEE YA 10,126 -
Deferred subsidy income R R YA (a) 9,994 -
20,120 -

Represented by: B TogEREK
Current portion TMENER 3,912 -
Non-current portion EmENE S 16,208 -
20,120 -

Note:

(a)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 22
October 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the investment agreement and
related supplemental agreement with Xuzhou Economic
& Technological Development Zone Management
Committee* (RN BERMFAZEREIREZEE) on 21
October 2021.

In 2021, government subsidy of RMB10,000,000
(2020: Nil) have been received towards cost of capital
expenditure in property, plant and equipment incurred
in Xuzhou. The amount received in respect of the
relevant assets are under the condition that such
property, plant and equipment are not allowed to move
out from Xuzhou for 10 years. With the transformation
of the Group, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the business in Xuzhou would be last for
more than 10 years and there is reasonable assurance
that the condition would be satisfied. Upon the subsidy
was received, the amount is transferred to income over
the useful lives of the relevant assets (i.e. 10 years).

the English translation of Chinese names or
words in this note, where indicated, is included
for information purpose only, and should not be
regarded as the official English translation of such
Chinese names or words.

EE

(a)
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HARRAYA T —F1+A
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2EMBARN T -_—%1A
T — B ERIMN B R =
ERZEeRETREWSENE
2 7 T h ok

RZZTZ—F RGN E.

R M BN EAASZRAB IR
B 48 B A R %510,000,0007T
(ZEZZ=F:8) EBEEE
W W S BRI RIRIGEAZEY
¥ HMELEEBEIERI0FERNE
HEM - BEEASEEEL AR

RBERAERNBNNESBEE
10T LA b - WAl & IR BRZ K1
BERT - RNKEIWHE %2
IR EEM A EAFE (A
10 ) EREEEIA -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ®RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE&EE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

2021 2020
—E-—f BT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETTT
Lease liabilities payable: ERfEEEE:
Within one year —F R 2,325 131
Within a period of more than one year — & ZE @ 7 B A
but not more than two years 1,818 116
Within a period of more than two MEERFZHFEA
years but not more than five years 326 95
4,469 342
Less: Amount due for settlement BT RBAGBEE T AR
within 12 months shown under 128N &1 2 58
current liabilities (2,325) (131)
Amount due for settlement FIRRIEREBBEETER
after 12 months shown under 12181& #5154 2 78
non-current liabilities 2,144 211

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate
applied to lease liabilities is 4.53% (2020: 4.59%).

MEEAEER 2 MEFEEEER
T BA53%( ZFE _FF :4.59%)°

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
asset and liability have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—FT—-—4F+_-_H=+—HIFE

29. EEERIEAR
MG AMBRREMNS  ETE
TRBEERARBE THEH - ARG
3R 4 v JE IR IE £ 55 AT 55 1

T~
2021 2020
—g=—% -T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Deferred tax asset FIERIEE E
Deferred tax liability BIEHIERE

The following are the major deferred tax liability and

375 1,173
(5,399) (6,589)
(5,024) (5,416)

LA A& M T = HEE R

asset recognised and movements thereon during the TEREHRIBEABREENRES !
current and prior years:
Fair value
Allowance Undistributed (gain)/loss on
for inventories profits of PRC investment
and credit losses subsidiary properties Total
RENEZ
HENEAR DY (k) /
FERGEFRRRE A RER B8 @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETTR ARBTT
(note a)
(Kiita)
t 1 January 2020 RIE-FF-H-F 514 (3,071) - (2,557)
Charged/(credited) to i Efm?w’?/
profit or loss (;tAEBH) 659 - (3,518) (2,859)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF
and 1 January 2021 ﬂ'_HJ‘ Ak
—Z2--F-F-H 1173 (3,071) (3,518) (5416)
(Credited)/charged to (st \B%)/
profit or loss PRERR (798) - 1,190 392
At 31 December 2021 R-F_-%
+-A=1+-R 315 (3.071) (2.328) (5.024)
Note: ff & -

(@)  The amount represents Group’s withholding taxes relating
to the dividend payable by a PRC subsidiary amounting to
RMB62,075,000 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(a) ZeBWERZZTZ—FR=_F=
EF+-_A=+—H KEEH
FENEARENRKRBE AR
62,075,0007T &) A8 B8 FE 0 7% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R4
The details of the authorised and issued share capital of RAKANBEERBETRA BN
the Company are as follows: N
2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®ET T
Authorised: VERE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,0000% & i E{E
US$0.01 each 0.01ZE LAY E @AY 342,400 342,400
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER -
1,661,909,608 (2020: 1,486,859,608) 1,661,909,608/1%
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each —E-F
1,486,859,608/% ) &f%
E{E0.01ETTHY & BAR 110,606 99,310
Ordinary shares EER

Number of ordinary
shares of US$0.01 Nominal value of Nominal value of

each ordinary shares ordinary shares
SREEO1
ERMEER
HE LEREE LEREE
US$'000 RMB'000
TERL ARBFT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZE-E5-A-H"
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 “ECEFTZA=t-H
“R_-5-A-BR
“5--5+ZA=1-H 5,000,000,000 50,000 342,400
Issued and fully paid: ERTRMR :
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RZZ-Z25-F-B
1 January 2021 “EIEETCA=T-AR
“Z--%-8-H 1,486,859,608 14,869 99,310
Completion of subscription and placing of TRAEREENR
new shares 77,000,000 770 5,050
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options ~ R{TEBRERZTRA 98,050,000 980 6,246
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F+-A=+-H 1,661,909,608 16,619 110,606

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

31.

Ordinary shares (continued)

As disclosed in the Company's announcements dated
24 March 2021 and 19 April 2021, Mr. Lin Dongliang,
an independent subscriber, subscribed for a total
of 20,000,000 new Shares of US$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$4 per subscription share (the
“Share Subscription”), and the Company placed a total
of 57,000,000 new Shares through a placing agent at
placing price of HK$4 per placing share (the “Placing”).
The Share Subscription and the Placing were completed
on 19 April 2021. The net proceeds from the Share
Subscription and the Placing (after deducting the relevant
expenses) were approximately HK$79,700,000 and
approximately HK$226,720,000 respectively.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

On 8 January 2011, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “2011 Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the
2011 Share Option Scheme include, among others,
the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, employees, suppliers of goods or
services, customers, consultants of the Group, the
Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The 2011
Share Option Scheme became effective on 28 January
2011 and expired on 27 January 2021, after which period
no further options will be offered or granted but the
provisions of the 2011 Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect in all other respects with regard
to the share options granted during the life of the 2011
Share Option Scheme. The 2011 Share Option Scheme
was refreshed on 10 June 2019 in the annual general
meeting.

BE—FT-_—F1-_A=1+—HILFE

30. A (&

31.

ZER(E)
MARBHBHA_-_ZT-_—F=A
_+EE&_§:—¢@H+ﬂEZ
N — BB REA(RR L L)
EERBEEERRERDIBTRE
£ #£20,000,0000% & A% EI1EO. 01%75
RS ((IRDRBREEE]) RARQ
BEREREBENREE iﬂxﬁﬂ’iﬂxfﬁ
47 7T Bt & 4 #£57,000,0000% i A& 17
([REEHED - BHRBEZAEAMES
FEEER _ZE-_—FNATHLLER
Ao BRI REBEHEMEESFHEMBEXK
BFRE(ENMBABRZ) DN A
79,700,000/ 7T K #9226,720,000/7%
5t

URGHBHBEERANTRZRS
AT UAREEE 2 BIRET S

R-ZE——F—A\B ARREE

— AR ([ — T ——FRE
A8 BER/ARBEL ZKY

ERERIZ A BB MERERE R
WEN e — T ——FEREFTEEER
SEERFE(EFRBE)RARAIES
(BRBILIENTESE) A5EHE
B -EmdREHER BF  BHE-
RNATRERAR TN E QR ZAEM
PRI — T — — FRERE 2
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

On 2 July 2021, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2021 Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of granting options to select eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre persons
and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group. Eligible participants of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme include, among others, the directors, including
independent non-executive directors, employees,
contractors, agents, representatives, suppliers or
producers of goods or services, licensors or landlords,
customers, licensees (including any sublicensees),
distributors or tenants (including any subtenants),
consultants or advisers to any area of business of
any member of the Group or any invested entity, any
shareholders, business or joint venture partners of any
member of the Group or any invested entity. The 2021
Share Option Scheme became effective on 2 July 2021
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date, i.e. 1 July 2031,
after which period no further options will be offered or
granted but the provisions of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects with regard to the share options granted during
the life of the 2021 Share Option Scheme.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31. LB AEBRNNARZRS
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(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

Subject to the Listing Rules, the overall limit on the
number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, 2021 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the relevant class of Shares in issue from time to time.
Subject to the limit above, the maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all option
to be granted under the 2021 Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the Listing Date (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”) and at the date of approval
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting
where the Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed. The
maximum number of Shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the 2021 Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the Shares in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the Shares in issue and with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

An offer of the grant of share options under the 2021
Share Option Scheme may be accepted within 21 days
inclusive of from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and
from the date of the grant of the particular share option
subject to any early termination of the 2021 Share
Option Scheme which shall not exceed the period of 10
years. The exercise of any share option may be subject
to a vesting schedule to be determined by the board of
directors.

The 2021 Share Option Scheme does not specify a
minimum period for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the higher of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Shares on the
date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—-F - —F+_-A=4+—
31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31.
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the

HiFFE
UROBERNNRZRS
(#)

RRBARESE 2 BREE
(%)
FRRE-FT——FRERETEH

2011 Share Option Scheme during the year: RITHEEBERAENT ¢
2021 2020
—B--F St 222
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise price share options exercise price  share options
mEFEH B T BRE
T8 8E 1@ A
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January R—PB—8 0.59 313,600,000 0.65 241,180,000
Granted during the year FREL - - 0.55 111,000,000
Exercised during the year FRITE 0.69  (98,050,000) - -
Lapsed during the year FREM 0.67 (800,000) 0.81  (38,580,000)
At 31 December R+-—A=1+—H 0.55 214,750,000 0.59 313,600,000

During the year, the Company has not granted any share
option (2020: 111,000,000 share options were granted).
98,050,000 (2020: Nil) share options were exercised
and 800,000 (2020: 38,580,000 share options were
lapsed due to expiry of the share options) share options
were lapsed due to the cessation of employment of the

participants.
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31.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2021
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 62,220,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2018 with an exercise period from 19 June
2018 to 18 June 2023.

- 41,530,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2019 with an exercise period from 19 June
2019 to 18 June 2023.

- 66,600,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2020 with an exercise period from 22
October 2020 to 21 October 2025.

- 44,400,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2021 with an exercise period from 22
October 2021 to 21 October 2025.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2020
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 45,660,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2016 with an exercise period from 24 June
2016 to 23 June 2021.

- 31,600,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2017 with an exercise period from 24 June
2017 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,900,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2018 with an exercise period from 24 June
2018 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2019 with an exercise period from 24 June
2019 to 23 June 2021.

- 2,320,000 of such share options were vested on
24 June 2020 with an exercise period from 24 June
2020 to 23 June 2021.

- 1,425,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2016 with an exercise period from 16
December 2016 to 15 December 2021.

- 1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2017 with an exercise period from 16
December 2017 to 15 December 2021.
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31.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2020
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:
(continued)

- 2,375,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2018 with an exercise period from 16
December 2018 to 15 December 2021.

- 1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2019 with an exercise period from 16
December 2019 to 15 December 2021.

- 1,900,000 of such share options were vested on 16
December 2020 with an exercise period from 16
December 2020 to 15 December 2021.

- 64,980,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2018 with an exercise period from 19 June
2018 to 18 June 2023.

— 43,320,000 of such share options were vested on
19 June 2019 with an exercise period from 19 June
2019 to 18 June 2023.

- 66,600,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2020 with an exercise period from 22
October 2020 to 21 October 2025.

— 44,400,000 of such share options were vested on
22 October 2021 with an exercise period from 22
October 2021 to 21 October 2025.
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(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
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Number of Exercise price

share options HK$ per share Exercise period
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111,000,000 0.55 22 October 2020 to 21 October 2025
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103,750,000 0.54 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023
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Number of Exercise price

share options HK$ per share Exercise period
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111,000,000 0.55 22 October 2020 to 21 October 2025
—EEFF+ A+ ZHEZZE-_RAF+HA=+—H

108,300,000 0.54 19 June 2018 to 18 June 2023
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9,500,000 0.99 16 December 2016 to 15 December 2021
—E-RFt+ZAt+tRNBE=E-_—9F+=-A+HH

84,800,000 0.67 24 June 2016 to 23 June 2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 24 June
2016 and 16 December 2016 was HK$18,960,000
(equivalent to RMB16,204,000) and HK$3,924,000
(equivalent to RMB3,510,000) respectively.

The fair value of the share options granted on
19 June 2018 was HK$17,289,000 (equivalent to
RMB14,576,000).

The fair value of the share options granted on 22
October 2020 was HK$25,183,000 (equivalent to
RMB21,627,000).

The Group recognised total share based payment of
RMB6,030,000 for the year (2020: RMB15,889,000) in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

The fair value was estimated as at the date of grant,
using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 800,000
(2020: 38,580,000) of lapsed share options with
fair value of approximately RMB189,000 (2020:
RMB13,239,000) which previously recognised in share
options reserve had been transferred to retained profits.

As at 31 December 2021, 165,269,560 Shares may
be issued upon the exercise of all the share options
to be granted under the 2021 Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 9.94% and approximately
9.65% of the total issued Shares as at 31 December 2021
and the date of this annual report respectively. As at 31
December 2021, the Company had 214,750,000 (31
December 2020: 313,600,000) share options outstanding
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 12.92% (31 December 2020: 21.09%)
of the Shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 214,750,000 (31 December 2020: 313,600,000)
additional Shares and additional share capital and share
premium of approximately HK$16,746,000 (equivalent to
RMB13,692,000) (31 December 2020: HK$24,312,000
and equivalent to RMB20,462,000) and approximately
HK$100,329,000 (equivalent to RMB82,029,000) (31
December 2020: HK$161,441,000 and equivalent to
RMB135,875,000), before issue expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior reporting periods are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

()

Contributed surplus

On 17 January 2011, CITIC Capital, the Company
and its shareholders had entered into certain
conditional release and discharge agreements,
pursuant to which, the new exchangeable note
would be duly released and discharged, which had
taken place on the Listing Date, 28 January 2011,
and prior to the commencement of the trading of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange. Accordingly,
the liability component of the new exchangeable
note of RMB57,768,000 on the Listing Date was
extinguished and transferred to the contributed
surplus in shareholders’ equity upon the full
conversion of the new exchangeable note.

Pursuant to the stock borrowing agreement entered
into between Best Mark and Asia Equity Value Ltd
(the “Subscriber”) on 21 June 2012, Best Mark
lent 32,000,000 Shares to the Subscriber. Upon
initial recognition, the value of such contribution
amounting to approximately RMB12,183,000 from
the substantial shareholder was accounted for as
a deemed contribution in the shareholder’s equity.
The carrying amount of such contribution from
the substantial shareholder is not remeasured in
subsequent years.

On 10 September 2012, Best Mark and the
Subscriber entered into a letter agreement (the
“Call and Put Option Confirmation”) pursuant to
which the Subscriber had granted to Best Mark the
right to purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at a
strike price of HK$1.01 and Best Mark has granted
the Subscriber the right to require Best Mark to
purchase 32,000,000 of the Shares at the same
strike price.

On 17 December 2014, the Company was informed
by Best Mark that 32,000,000 Shares had been
transferred by the Subscriber to Best Mark and
the transaction set out in the Call and Put Option
Confirmation was terminated.
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% Best Mark[a 2B A & H I&
1732,000,000% > 1A ¥ 15 & 72
% EEEIERFIENEEY
BAREE12,183,00000 BRI E
BB TNARIARETE B
AEERFELAEERTER
HEFETTEHNE -

RZ-ZZT—_%F LA+ H " Best
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(f% BhREHERRAE]) B
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ﬁ B1.01)8 7T B EBest Mark
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32. RESERVES (continued)

33.
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(i)

(iii)

Statutory surplus fund

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profits
after tax (after offsetting any prior period’s losses), if
any, to the statutory surplus fund until the balance
of the fund reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus fund
may be used to offset against accumulated losses
of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the transfer is
subject to the approval of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
outside the PRC which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

HE-F_—F+A=1+—"HUFE

32. fRfB(#

(i)

(iii)

EEBBRAES

R EMEBERSRG  AEE
BRI B R R A KA E
FEBBRER DM (ERHTMB
EHEEBE)(MBE)NETED
LWEREXFRBAES BE
NETHEBEINEFIMER
50% &1k S EE BB ARSI A
TR EE P B B D R RET B
B ERBSTAEETEERNS
THRR - FTEBNSRRALT
MEARNESSIAE -

B R OR BN R

[E SR B R AR E P BIEI
EEYEIRARPTE B —YISNE
Z8 DREEAMBERMERME
PTG SR ARRERIE

33. &iE
AEBR 2EHEARA L TALE

2021 2020
—E=-—-F T TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Contracted for capital commitment in ERARHE AR ERET4
respect of investment in subsidiaries B EHE 2,046,855 169,970
Contracted for commitments in respect of: HRILA I8 B B3] £IH&IE ¢
— advertising and consultancy services — EE R ARE 329 329
- research and development contract —REEH 300 300
— property, plant and equipment — W BE REE 26,190 3,060
— purchase of materials — BB - 303
- services — AR - 167
26,819 4,159
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34. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGMENTS 34. REHERH

The Group as lessor AEBESHAA
All of the properties held by the Group for rental REBABRDNESMBZENEHLWE
purposes have committed lessees for the next 5 years EARRAF(ZE-_ZF AF)EH
(2020: 5 years). ATHIAEMEA ©
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as HEZRBREWRENZET
follows:

31/12/2021 31/12/2020

B —F —FTTF+=
+=-B=+-—H A=+—H”
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT

Within one year —FE R 2,035 3,288
In the second year E4F 1,833 1,762
In the third year F= 1,593 1,614
In the fourth year F P FE 1,593 1,575
In the fifth year ERF 9 1,575

7,063 9,814

N
SBFERNEERERAT —B-—FEERS 19;
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows are, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

35.
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METHMELERBEZHR

TRALAREREEDIELZR
ERE) BRASKIIRSEDH &
BEPMELZBBERESREEN
IRKASREFENAREERAR
ERERANBERERBAEELZ
HenENZFAE

activities.
Interest Short term Lease
Bills payables payables borrowings liabilities Total
EfSE EMFE yoLiaE HEER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFTL ARETT AREFTL
At 1 January 2020 RZE-5F-8-H 12,850 - 114,200 1,154 128,204
Addition 0 - - 148,140 - 148,140
Repayment of short term borrowings ~ EEEEEE - - (132,200) - (132,200)
Repayment of bills payables ERERZE (12,850) - - - (12,850)
Repayment of principal of lease EERERERE
liabilities - - - (602) (602)
Drawdown of bills payables ROERZER 12,600 - - - 12,600
Interest paid BifE - (5,757) - (44) (5,801)
Interest expenses flamy - 5,868 - 44 5,912
New leases entered EHE - - - 345 345
Gain on termination of lease BIERENE - - - (555) (555)
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-SF+-A=+-HR
1 January 2021 “E--E-f-H 12,600 M 130,140 342 143,193
Addition i - - 133,600 - 133,600
Repayment of short term borrowings ~ EEEHEE - - (163,299) - (163,299)
Repayment of bills payables EEENZE (12,600) - - - (12,600)
Repayment of principal of lease EEBERERS
liabilities - - - (768) (768)
Drawdown of bills payables ROERNZE 1,420 - - - 1,420
Interest paid BRFHE - (4,617) - (93) (4,710)
Interest expenses HER® - 5,466 - 9 5,559
New leases entered N - - - 5,134 5,134
Gain on termination of lease RIFAENE - - - (239) (239)
At 31 December 2021 KB -E+-A=1+-H 1,420 960 100,441 4,469 107,290
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALTRS
Other than disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated BrizA M EmEREMIT DTN
financial statements, the significant related party ij{?ﬁ X SWENT ¢

transactions are disclosed as follows:

Compensation of key management personnel of the REBFEBERAENMEOT ¢
Group is as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Other emoluments: Hinpi <
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 2Bt R EWHIZE 1,820 1,146
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKBRETEIE
schemes 76 37
Equity-settled share-based payments LRI A E DA () A ELRE
VAN R 1,521 1,967
3,417 3,150
Transactions with the Eﬁiiﬂ Hxﬂxﬁi i &Y
companies controlled by NAIZR
non-controlling shareholders:
Sales of goods HEEm 14,914 -
Licensing fee income REBWRA 20,000 -
Utilities expenses KEB 432 361
Rental expenses fﬂ%%ﬁ 658 123
Consultancy fee BB 22,467 -
Purchase of equipment HWERE - 2,425
Outstanding balances with the EE?H R AR B 422 o] &)
companies controlled by NA)ZREEGREE
non-controlling shareholders:
Trade receivables e E 5 BR X 24,483 -
Other receivables H {th fE YL FRIE 4,790 2,340
Deposit of acquisition of equipment BEX 1’%2? 13,980 -
Trade payables Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁw\ 188 91
Other payables H At < 5RIE 3,234 1,942

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in

the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings (note 26) net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

37. EXERERE

AEEEREER BEBEHEILLE
?r“éﬁiﬂxﬁim BRASBENERA
REKE TRARREFERANLBR-
REERBERBETFHIFTIE -

AEENEARBEEESFHE(E
mEE(ME20)(HRRAERREF
EW)RARRREAANEIEER(E
REBRTERA  REMMREEN) -

KRB EEBFFERT —REXRE
BotERRIN—HD ARFES
%Eﬁ$%$&ﬁ%ﬁ§$ﬁ@mﬂ

@FK@T%%M@ NS
%LLiﬁ& BITH AR - B E AR
1%&%ﬁﬁﬁik@ﬁﬁﬁ%%¥
B H BB E ARG -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. REHETHEMTIA

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RZEBE-_—FR_ZE-_ZTF+_HA
financial instruments as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 St+—HANSEe T AREEAN
are as follows: T
Financial assets SREE
2021 2020
—E-—& —T-FF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETIT

At fair value: HAE -
Financial assets at FVTPL RATHER B SRUEE 707 -
At amortised cost: HEEEA AN
Trade and bills receivables (note 20) FEUE B R M U= (FT7220) 88,340 44,454
Financial assets included in prepayments, BERTRMNFIE e REM
deposits and other receivables R TFIENEREE 54,575 8,054
Pledged deposits EEHER 426 3,780
Cash and bank balances R & MIRTTEEER 135,794 625
279,842 56,913
Financial liabilities cRaE
2021 2020
ZB=-% It S 23
Financial Financial
Financial liabilities at Financial  liabilities at
liabilities at  amortised liabilities at ~ amortised
FVTPL cost Total FVTPL cost Total
BAYE I8 8 BRATE DS
FTABRE  RKHE HABE EAE

MERMEE WERAR a8 MIBAE NIEAE i
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR

Non-derivative financial liabilities:  3E{T42BEE :
Trade and bills payables (note 24) eI & S8 RER

SR(H24) - 88,867 88,867 - 65,705 65,705
Financial liabilities included in BeEElES  Hit
deposits received, other payables  [ENFIE K€ E F
and accruals mepas - 38,131 38,131 - 38,926 38,926
Lease liabilities (note 28) REAREHH28) - 4,469 4,469 - 342 342
Short term borrowings (note 26) R EREE (A17#26) - 100,441 100,441 - 130,140 130,140
- 231,908 231,908 - 235,113 235113

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE
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39. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMNT

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

39. ATEE
FEERBEEHEERQFER

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Other than the investment properties disclosed in the
note 16 in the consolidated financial statements, some
of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how

ENTREENRSHEENAFE

BRéRa MBS HARM S 16 ENIREY
N RNBEE2JPR AEBNET
TREENERBERAFENE
TREVZFEREENERARA
FEEE S A(LERMAOMGET

ERBAB)WREER

the fair values of these financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at Fair value Significant Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets 31 December 2021 hierarchy unobservable inputs and key input(s)
R-ZB--F+=AH
tREE =ST-ANATE  AFESR EXTUBRBAE REAEZRETERAE
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ RMB707,000 Level 2 Quoted exchange rate Future cash flows are
- Forward contract (2020: N/A) - ranged from 6.48 estimated based on
t0 6.50 forward exchange rates
(from observable forward
exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period)
and contracted forward
rates
ROTEGABRZ AR#%707,0007C F-H FTiRiE % ARBERE BB RHER
SREE (Z2ZFF: —#EH6.48E6.50 (B2HARITEHREHE
—RHEH @A) ) RENERLE
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during FER B RS = R e
the year.

Fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost recorded in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

BBERASR2AEEEREE
RE@adEz AR E
RRAREERR RNEAMBHRERIZ
BERNIENEREENSRAE
MRRE(ERE A FERS -

GOLDEN SOLAR NEW ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL Report 2021



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments, include financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits, cash and bank balances,
trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included in
deposits received, other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities and short term borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

e M ®RNE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

0. B EMEEBFERBEK

AEENTIZoMIABRERATE
AAABRmcERMEE  RIKESERK
MEWER B2EBNREA B
MEMEBKFENSREE CEH
FRCBReRRTER BNESER
AEENRE BE2ECRZRE H
fENRBEREFERANEREE
HERBELEMEE ZEEWMIA
BB B M R EE -

AEETRTANTIEARBREING
R EERR - MEER RBHES
2B K 7 dn (B AR RV KR o TS XX E B AR AR
BREZSEBRIBRR - EEBEER
B TR AR M B A Ut
PREUE & H¥E 5 ©
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. B ERBEEEERBEKRE)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk S = B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such rEBERSEBRAR EZ2REN
exposures arise from sales transactions and financing Ex(Ex ) RBET(BTFER
denominated in US dollars (“US$”) and Hong Kong HERX LB -
dollars ("HK$").
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRETVREFREBER WA HMME
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible ERFTE  XEERBATFE (B
change in the US$ and HK$ exchange rate, with all other BIHETRBTEXRNESIEAEE
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before Eylzof= g3
tax.

Increase/

(decrease) in

Increase/  the Group's
(decrease) in  profit/(loss)
US$/HK$ rate before tax
A& B RR B AT

Ex/ BrER FE(FBR)
ERH(CTER) EH(T)

% RMB'000
ARETT
2021 —E-—f
If US$ strengthens against RMB MWETIARERE 5 2,937
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT H AREHE 5 3,669
If US$ weakens against RMB WETLARERE (5) (2,937)
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT L ARERE (5) (3,669)
2020 —EZEHF
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHAREHE 5 (2,214)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT H AREHE 5 (19)
If US$ weakens against RMB METHARKERE (5) 2,214
If HK$ weakens against RMB WA TRAREEE (5) 19
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency AEEREWEINESE FEE - BE
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign BEERIINERR YEREFER
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant = R ERINE R o

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

s
~
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade receivables
which are assessed individually with a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

For financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, the Group makes individual assessment
based on industrial factors, historical observed default
rates and adjusts for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. No impairment
was recognised by the Group on financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables during the
current year.

The Group’s credit risk on bank balances and cash is low
and there is no significant concentration of credit risk
because all bank deposits are deposited in or contracted
with several banks with good reputation and with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. No recognition of ECL on bank balances,
restricted bank balances and cash is considered necessary.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the US (2020: US), which accounted
for 65% (2020: 99%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2021.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 60%
(2020: 89%) and 96% (2020: 99%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

REMBERRWE

HE—F-—F+-_A=1+—HIFFE

Mg mEbEEE B ERBER (&

=& R b BORE R

R_B_—F+A=+—RH K&
.Fﬁ@ﬁnn.éj.ﬁﬂi E?T G:‘ﬁﬂ‘fﬁj
AEBBRVBELANZAEER

B - TIRBIRERE MR ARR 2R BT 51 BA
BRI EEMNREE-

RGEERREEZRE AXEEE
BEZRKHE /J\iﬂﬁ #EPE@
LA Ttt/%fg,l AR ERHEMEEER
Fr LARE{R & mt Uk [0 360 HA (E TE SR ERER 1
1TE) o thoh - N5 B A FE A B PR B 75

LR FIR B IRTBHEEEERE
Ik FE W E 5 BR SRR R B 4 A P i

ERDHEETEBREN G- Bt
ME ARAEERAE AEEMNE
ER BB AIEPEE o

HEEERMNFE e MEMER
RENSRMEEN S AEBERET
XA BEVBRENERERED
Al WL BANE AL BR AN KL
HNENAI R 2 TR E R ETTARE -
AEERAFERERBRSERNK
B RBehEMEYRHRIENEBEE
HERRRL(E

AEBRTEHRIRE ZEERBRA
B EfESEXREEETRER RE
RAARTEFGFERZREER
i ERBREEFERBRTSER
AR RIT-BARBITHESR IR
BIRITAERR IR SRR RIS ERE

AEEZMEMCEEDNEERRET
BEPEXE(ZT_TF: %l)
%lfﬁﬁ/\_;_—iﬂ- H=+—H

REWE SIRAABENSN( —F =
T 1 99%)e
Nilﬁ%qﬂ:ié R 2 FE UL

g5 EM %EE’]GO%(fvfgii
9%)&96%(_ = -FTH 1 99%) A

DRIRERAEBNZRATENAKX
BFE -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL

40. B EREEBERBERE)

EE R RORE R ()
TREINDRBEBCTTEERERE

that has been recognised trade receivables under the SRR HEREEBER 2 #8 -
simplified approach.
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HFE AR 2 HFE A
FEEE FEEFE
(E|IEERE) (EERHE) BEt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT AR®EF T
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_FF—H—H 38 7,948 7,986
— Transfer to credit-impaired — @R EERE (38) 38 -
— Impairment losses recognised — 2R REE B 609 36 645
— Impairment losses reversed — B EE RO - (118) (118)
— Write-off — 5 - (6,834) (6,834)
— Exchange adjustments — [ERFHRK - (500) (500)
At 31 December 2020 and N-E_EHF
1 January 2021 +=-g=+—-8HEF
—B2-—-%—-A—H 609 570 1,179
— Transfer to credit-impaired —ERZEERE (609) 609 -
— Impairment losses recognised — B ERBEE B - 653 653
— Impairment losses reversed — REEER[E - (5) (5)
— Write-off —HsE - (436) (436)
— Exchange adjustments —[E R - (24) (24)
At 31 December 2021 R=ZB=—F
+=-A=+-—H - 1,367 1,367
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. BIEREEEERBE &

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or when the trade receivables are over one year past due,
whichever occurs earlier.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market

interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short term
borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risks. The short term borrowings, cash and short
term deposits are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income
and expenses are credited/charged to the statement of
profit or loss as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s net
profit/(loss) before tax (through the impact on floating
rate borrowings).

EE Rk RO E R ()
WAEEMBRNESARREEVHR
BB W R FRIB R R AR ER A
BBRRIEARERF  XEKE S
REREAMBEBE —F UKEESR
%) AR R H R IR B AR

HEER
AEEAEENH SRR ARTE
SRR BT R B RS R -

AEBTHEERENZBMEEUE
BEAMEXER - CHEE Re @
BRI IR S A AR ABR - e E HR
B OZERBWMARSTHREBERR AN
EHREBEL T AER Ik -

TRETHABEEMEERTTE
AEERBATAE,(B1E) FE(RZ
BHEEFE)HN R AR EEH
BRI -

Decrease in Increase in

Increase in  profit before loss before

interest rate tax tax

RR B AT RR B AT

FI 2= 38 hn FIE R 2 B8 1g

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT AREF T

2021 —E-—F 1% 1,004 N/A
2020 —ETEF 1% N/A 1,301
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. BIEREEEERBE &

i
—
204

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings, internal resources
and external facilities provided by an independent
third party as significant sources of liquidity. As at 31
December 2021, the Group has fully utilised the short-
term bank loan facilities (2020: fully utilised short-term
bank loan facilities).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

ERSHECRERERE S H NEBEE
REUEFEEERRENRNAEE
LEMFEREMAESEEYKTE A
BERERSRENDNFE B
BERRTEENERBR LR

[ a~i=

BT ERRA -

AEEIKREIRITEE ABERKA
BIUFR =T RENINEREERTE
BeWNEERR R _T-_—F+=
A=+—A A&EECEXHIHAEH
RITERBME(ZT_ZF : 2 BH
BANEHRTERRE)-

TRAVAEBFTESHBENR
TEMBEBER - ZRREAEEA
EREERNRT AHERAEDN
RBERREREMRR - KM IEITE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Mg mEbEEE B ERBER (&

RBEEEM(E)
REHBHR WAERBFEBHN X
APRBAR S BRIR M R AR5 E -

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve

at the end of the reporting period.

2021
B —F
More than More than
Less than 12 1 year but 2 years but
months less than less than  Undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
)
t2fA BE-F BEZE AHR
ARERE BAR=E BAIREE ReRE REE
RMB‘000 RMB000 RMB‘000 RMB000 RMB‘000
ARBT R N ARETR AR®BT R ARBT T
Non-derivative financial liabilties; FiiremaG:
Trade and bills payables (note 24) EREAERRENSE
(Hrit24) 88,867 - - 88,867 88,867
Financial fiabiliies included in deposits  B15EFWES  EHERFER
recelved, other payables and accruals — EHERNSRAR 38,131 - - 38,131 38,131
Lease liabilties HERE 2,488 1,869 343 4,700 4,469
Short term borrowings BERE 102,737 - - 102,737 100,441
232,223 1,869 343 234,435 231,908
2020
—E-EF
More than More than
Less than 12 1 year but 2 years but
months less than lessthan ~ Undiscounted
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow  Carrying amount
TZfA BA-F BAZE N
JRELE  EIRCE EHRTE RERg BaE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT  AR¥TRT  ARBTR ARETT
Non-derivative financial liabilites: HTEeRasE:
Trade and bills payables (note 24) LS Ve
(Hiit24) 65,705 - - 65,705 65,705
Financial liabilities included in deposits ~ B1&5EEMES  EHERFUER
recelved, other payables and accruals — EHERNSRAR 38,926 - - 38926 38,926
Lease liabilties HEAR 143 124 97 364 34
Short term borrowings BERE 133,722 - - 133,722 130,140
238,496 124 97 238717 235113
SHEFERBBERERAT —S-—FFERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates

differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group’s products include rubber, plastics, silicon and
graphene. The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the
prices of these raw materials which are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect the Group’s financial performance. The Group
historically has not entered into any commodity derivative
instruments to hedge the potential commodity price
changes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year of 2020, a supplier had filed lawsuit
against the overdue payment of Quanzhou Baofeng
Shoes Co., Ltd. (“Quanzhou Baofeng”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with total
amount of approximately RMBO0.5 million (the “Amount
in Question”) and the first trial held that Quanzhou
Baofeng shall repay the Amount in Question plus interest.

Based on the best estimation of the management of the
Company at that time, Quanzhou Baofeng had valid
ground in opposing the Amount in Question in the
judgement of the above said case. As the lawsuit was in
the process of appeal, the corresponding legal fee and
interest were uncertain. Accordingly, no provision had
been made in the consolidated financial statement as at
31 December 2020.

According to the judgement of the second trial, the
appeal was rejected and Quanzhou Baofeng was required
to repay the Amount in Question plus interest to the
supplier. Subsequently on 28 April 2021, Quanzhou
Baofeng entered into a settlement agreement with the
supplier, which Quanzhou Baofeng would settle the
Amount in Question without interest to the supplier in
five monthly instalments from April to August 2021. As
at 31 December 2021, the Amount in Question and the
corresponding legal fee were fully settled by Quanzhou
Baofeng.

40.

41.

HE-F_—F+A=1+—"HUFE
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B ENE BT TARBEGR
Ty

& E A LB
AEBEEERNTIZ R BRER
B2 R RARG - NEEE R
EHEREERIERSZERMHE
RO B B LR o R A RHE IR IR B AT B
HAKBOMBRAEBEIFNZE - K
SEEEYEF L EAEMITETR
SR gE IR B m BRI E

RREE

R_ZE-_TF ARalz2BE2EN
BRARRMEEEEFR AR M
By —ZHERGRREINE B
e E2 84 ARIEK500,0007T
([FEemREBHRD —FHRA
RNEEEEEEHSENFE -

ERARFERBEERN 2 &ETHR
MNE g BB JIBERYE FatHrAh 2
FREBE-ARFAREELFRAR
o MR AR AT B A B R T
At AR -_ZT-_ZTF+ - A
=+ —BZEREUBEmERPATIREE -

RIE ZF|AOHR . FREE QAR R M
ERAMZEERNEEFZSEMF
BerRr T -_—FHA=+N
B RN E & R ¢ FE R 3 AT AN AR 15
FORMEER-_ZE-_—FOAEN
AoBAEAMEREEEESFZESE
(TEFB) HER - —F+=
A=+—H FEH&EXERENEE
BEMRMEERHLES -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Except as described above, there was no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 30 December 2021, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent, pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to place through the
placing agent, on a best effort basis, up to 50,000,000
new Shares at HK$10 per share (the “Placing 2022").

The Placing 2022 was completed on 14 January 2022 in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the placing
agreement. A total of 50,000,000 Shares have been
successfully placed by the placing agent to two placees
at the placing price of HK$10 per Share. The gross
proceeds and the net proceeds from the Placing 2022
were approximately HK$500,000,000 and approximately
HK$497,900,000 respectively. Reference is made to the
announcements of the Company dated 30 December
2021 and 14 January 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, deposit for the Placing 2022 of
approximately RMB32,704,000 had been received (note
25).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures has been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

e M ®RNE

HEz—E-—F+_A=+—HIFFE

41.

42.

43,

KREEE)
BEXFRE R —F R

—EEF_A=1— EI%EKI%
BE-

REHEEE
RZBE-—F+-_A=+8 A&RQ
H—ARRERBIT RS H TFEE
ARRIEREFBREERBIZERIO0
BT aE L& 5% 250,000,000 0% 7 Ak
M ZEZ—FREEE])-

CE I CFREETBEER T F
— AT BRERE R 2 RR R IE
K i ERIBZREEBEFRI10E
TTRMEBARAKIDE A &
50,000,000 fx o —F = —F &
EHEMEBRERBERFED AL
500,000,000/ 7T & #7497,900,000/%
Tem2EARAQRBRAE-_T - —F
+-A=t+BR - —F— A+
B2z Ao

HE-_ZE-_—49+-_A=+—H =
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HiFFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44, KD T 2 BRI T

THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ffit ARWFR ARBTT

NON-CURRENT ASSET FREBEE

Property, plant and equipment E B

Interest in subsidiaries AN NGILE oL Fa

Right-of-use assets ERERE

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Prepayments, deposits and other AN e R EAME
receivables L& RE]

Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHE S

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Deposits received, other payables and iz % - H b fESS
accruals FIE R ERTE R

Deposit received for placing of new BUREETRIZS
shares

Amounts due to subsidiaries JE B B 2 B R IE

Lease liabilities HeEaE

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEE
LIABILITIES

EQUITY Ea

Share capital LN

Reserves 1

CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B 4

Approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s
board of directors on 30 March 2022 and signed on its
behalf by:

LEUNG Tsz Chung
RF M
Director

EF

22 -
207,431 40,057
- 19
207,453 40,076
3,111 295
65,264 190
68,375 485
1,724 1,885
32,704 -
1,097,546 1,112,580
- 20
1,131,974 1,114,485

(1,063,599) (1,114,000)

(856,146) (1,073,924)

110,606 99,310
i (966,752) (1,173,234)

(856,146) (1,073,924)

ARAEEEgRN _E-_—F=A=+
BHLERRETZ  WHRATALER

T

ZHENG Jingdong
SRR
Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44, DB 2 MR K (E
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note ioFza
i) Reserves of the Company i) KRN BIFEE
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE EMRS BARERE BRERE ZitER &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZZZ%E-f-H 594,436 395,026 524 47,09 (1,276,996) (239,911)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FABERZERTEE
for the year - - - - (949,212) (949,212)
Equity-settled share-based payments RS S AR AR
fi3t - - - 15,889 - 15,889
Lapse of share options BRELH - - - (13,239) 13239 -
At 31 December 2020 and RZ2-EF+ZR=1-H
1 January 2021 k=E--E-f-H 594,436 395,026 524 49,749 (2,212,969) (1173,234)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FRBERZAF XA
for the year - - - - (102,724) (102,724)
Completion of subscription and placing ~ TARERE &R
of new shares 253,541 - - - - 253,541
Issue of shares upon exercise of share ~ FTEEREREIRM
options 68,625 - - (18,990) - 49,635
Equity-settled share-based payments RS S AR AR
LS - - - 6,030 - 6,030
Lapse of share options BIELT - - - (189) 189 -
At 31 December 2021 WoEI-EtZBIT-R 9660 39506 524 36600 (2315504  (96675)

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE

=
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44, KR T 2R R T (&

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note (continued) Bt (&)

i) Going concern of the Company i)

The directors of the Company are aware of the capital
deficiency in the Statement of Financial Position of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. In assessing
whether the Company will be able to finance its future
working capital and finance, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Company is able to operate as
a going concern by considering the following:

1) The majority of the liabilities of the Company are
amounts due to direct or indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries. The Company would consider all
available source of funding included but not limited
to, requiring the subsidiaries to declare dividend or
waiver of current accounts.

2)  The Placing 2022 was completed on 14 January
2022 in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the placing agreement. A total of 50,000,000
Shares have been successfully placed by the
placing agent to two placees at the placing price
of HK$10 per Share. The gross proceeds and
the net proceeds from the Placing 2022 were
approximately HK$500,000,000 and approximately
HK$497,900,000 respectively. Reference is made
to the announcements of the Company dated 30
December 2021 and 14 January 2022 respectively.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that it can solve the liquidity issue of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-—ZFE—-—F+_-H=+—HIFZF

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Place of registration/

incorporation and

Issued and fully

45. KN R X EME QRIS

Percentage of equity

Name operations paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BR/EMRIR BROREH
£ mEwy BREX AAARGERZADL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE 53
BAOF International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Trading of slippers and
investment holding
BEHERERAA Bk 10,0007 100 - EEfE RREER
Quanzhou Baofeng Shaes Co., Ltd.*  PRC RMB544,229,000 - 100 Manufacturing and sale
("Quanzhou Baofeng”) of slippers, sandals and
casual footwear
FMNEBEXRRAT Gk ARE - 100 RERHEEEE RER
(TRINEE]) 544,229,0007C NG
Baofeng Modern (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Dormant
BERHE (BE)BRAR Bk 10,0007 1T 100 - EEEX
Astute Sino Developments Limited ~ BVI Us$100 100 - Dormant
BERRARAA ABRAES 100%7T 100 - EEEX
2D Material Technology Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Investment holding and
Company Limited trading of Graphene-
based Products
WEH AR RBRAA &k 1007 100 - REGRREELERER
2D Material Technology Limited BVI Us$100 100 - Dormant
ABRAES 100%7T 100 - EEEX
Xinfeng 2D (Fujian) Material PRC RMB22,051,000 - 100 Manufacturing and sale
Technology Company Limited* of Graphene-based
("Xinfeng 2D") Products, provision of
technology licensing
service and investment
holding
BEME_EMHAMBRRAF*  BE ARE - 100 HERHEARBEM
([#E-#]) 22,051,0007 R RERS Rk
R
Fujian Caidian Keji Company Limited* PRC RMB1,150,000 - 100 Sale of Graphene-based
("Caidian Keji") Products
BRERENRARAER A e ARE - 100 HERRREM
(TEREMR) 1,150,0007C

TEHFERNRERERAE —B-—FFEHRSE

P —
D
211



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. XA RIFEMB A AINFS

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Place of registration/
incorporation and  Issued and fully Percentage of equity
Name operations paid up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BR/AMALR  ERARER
£ Bews BEEX ARARGEREADL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE 5k
Golden Solar (Hong Kong) Solar Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding

Material Company Limited

el (BR)AGRMHERRAT &R 1,000,000 T - 100 REZR

Golden Solar Silicon Science & PRC RMB120,096,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Technology (Xu Zhou) Co., Ltd.* sale of Photovoltaic
("Golden Solar Xuzhou") Products

eBERRR (EN)BERAR*  PE ARE - 100 BERHEEXRER
(T2BHEM]) 120,096,007

Golden Solar (Quanzhou) New PRC RMB24,850,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* sale of Photovoltaic
("Golden Solar Quanzhou") Products

2B (RM)FERRMRERAA  +E ARE - 100 BERHEEXRER
(T2BRM]) 24,850,0007C

* Quanzhou Baofeng, Xinfeng 2D, Golden Solar Xuzhou * %UHEE IR 4 2 BRIN RS
and Golden Solar Quanzhou are registered as companies BRMNAERETR EEIMOER
with limited liability (solely invested by Taiwan, Hong Kong EXRA (ABREABE) -
or Macau legal person) under the law of the PRC.

# Caidian Keji is registered as company with limited liability # e R ARERBEESMNE
(wholly invested by a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise) REEAT (HEEEDEE A
under the law of the PRC. &) o

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at R-E-—FN T -ZTF+_H

31 December 2021 and 2020 or at any time during the =t+— Eiﬁiﬁfiﬂﬁjf’ﬁ 1RF 4 Bf

year. BRREITERERES

46. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 46. SOFBI TSR 2B

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved B BRRECESTER T ==

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 ZA=THAEREERNE-

March 2022.
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